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PART

ITEM BUSINESS

General Corporate Overview

ProAssurance Corporation is holding company for property and casualty insurance companies focused on professional

and product liability insurance Throughout this report references to ProAssurance we us and our refer to ProAssurance

Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries Our executive offices are located at 100 Brookwood Place Birmingham

Alabama 35209 and our telephone number is 205 877-4400 Our stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the

symbol PRA Our website is www.ProAssurance.com and we maintain dedicated Investor Relations section on that website

www.ProAssurance.com/InvestorRelations to provide specialized resources for investors and others seeking to learn more

about us

As part of our disclosure through the Investor Relations section of our website we publish our annual report on Form

10K our quarterly reports on Form IOQ and our current reports on Form 8K and all other public SEC filings as soon as

reasonably practical after filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC on its EDGAR system These SEC

filings can be found on our website at www.proassurance.com/InvestorRelations/reports_filings.aspx This section also provides

access to details about stock trading by corporate insiders by providing access to SEC Forms and when they are filed with

the SEC We maintain access to all public SEC filings for at least one year
after they are filed with the SEC

Further because the insurance business uses certain terms and phrases that carty special and specific meanings we

encourage you to read the Glossary of Selected Insurance and Related Financial Terms posted on the Supplemental Information

page of our website www.proassurance.com/InvestorRelations/supplemental.aspx

In addition to federal filings on our website we make available other documents that provide important additional

information about our financial condition and operations Documents available on our website include the financial statements

we file with state regulators compiled under Statutory Accounting Principles as required by regulation news releases that we

issue listing of our investment holdings and certain investor presentations

The Governance section of our website provides copies of the Charters for our Audit Committee Internal Audit

Department Compensation Committee and Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee In addition you will find our Code

of Ethics and Conduct Corporate Governance Principles and Share Ownership Guidelines We also provide our Lead Director

Policy our Policy Regarding Determination of Director Independence our Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policy and

Procedures our Policy Regarding Stockholder-Nominated Director Candidates and our Procedures Governing Hiring

Employees of the Registered Independent Public Accounting Firm Printed copies of these documents may be obtained from

Frank ONeil Senior Vice President ProAssurance Corporation either by mail at P.O Box 590009 Birmingham Alabama

35259-0009 or by telephone at 205 877-4400 or 800 282-6242

Caution Re1ardin2 Forward-Lookin2 Statements

Any statements in this Form 10K that are not historical facts are specifically identified as forward-looking statements

These statements are based upon our estimates and anticipation of future events and are subject to certain risks and uncertainties

that could cause actual results to vary materially from the expected results described in the forward-looking statements

Forward-looking statements are identified by words such as but not limited to anticipate believe estimate expect

hope hopeful intend likely may optimistic possible potential preliminary project should will

and other analogous expressions There are numerous factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those

in the forward-looking statements Thus sentences and phrases that we use to convey our view of future events and trends are

expressly designated as forward-looking statements as are sections of this Form 10K that are identified as giving our outlook on

future business

Forward-looking statements relating to our business include among other things statements concerning liquidity and

capital requirements investment valuation and performance return on equity financial ratios net income premiums losses and

loss reserves premium rates and retention of current business competition and market conditions the expansion of product

lines the development or acquisition of business in new geographical areas the availability of acceptable reinsurance actions

by regulators and rating agencies court actions legislative actions payment or performance of obligations under indebtedness

payment of dividends and other matters



These forward-looking statements are subject to significant risks assumptions and uncertainties including among other

things the following factors that could affect the actual outcome of future events

changes in general economic conditions

our ability to maintain our dividend payments

regulatory legislative and judicial actions or decisions that could affect our business plans or operations

the enactment or repeal of tort reforms

formation or dissolution of state-sponsored medical professional liability insurance entities that could remove or add

sizable groups of physicians from or to the private insurance market

the impact of deflation or inflation

changes in the interest rate environment

changes in U.S laws or government regulations regarding financial markets or market activity that may affect the U.S

economy and our business

changes in the ability of the U.S government to meet its obligations that may affect the U.S economy and our

business

performance of financial markets affecting the fair value of our investments or making it difficult to determine the

value of our investments

changes in accounting policies and practices that may be adopted by our regulatory agencies the Financial Accounting

Standards Board the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

changes in laws or government regulations affecting medical professional liability insurance or the financial

community

the effects of changes in the healthcare delivery system including but not limited to the Patient Protection and

Affordable Care Act

consolidation of healthcare providers and entities that are more likely to self insure and not purchase medical

professional liability insurance

uncertainties inherent in the estimate of loss and loss adjustment expense reserves and reinsurance

changes in the availability cost quality or collectability of insurance/reinsurance

the results of litigation including pre- or post-trial motions trials and/or appeals we undertake

allegation of bad faith which may arise from our handling of any particular claim including failure to settle

loss of independent agents

changes in our organization compensation and benefit plans

our ability to retain and recruit senior management

assessments from guaranty funds

our ability to achieve continued growth through expansion into other states or through acquisitions or business

combinations

changes to the ratings assigned by rating agencies to our insurance subsidiaries individually or as group

provisions in our charter documents Delaware law and state insurance law may impede attempts to replace or remove

management or may impede takeover

state insurance restrictions may prohibit assets held by our insurance subsidiaries including cash and investment

securities from being used for general corporate purposes

taxing authorities can take exception to our tax positions and cause us to incur significant amounts of legal and

accounting costs and if our defense is not successful additional tax costs including interest and penalties

insurance market conditions may alter the effectiveness of our current business strategy and impact our revenues and

expected benefits from completed and proposed acquisitions may not be achieved or may be delayed longer than

expected due to business disruption loss of customers employees and key agents increased operating costs or

inability to achieve cost savings and assumption of greater than expected liabilities among other reasons



Additional risks that could adversely affect the merger of Independent Nevada 1octors Insurance Exchange now

Independent Nevada Doctors Insurance Company IND and Medmarc Mutual Insurance Company now Medmarc Insurance

Company Medmarc into ProAssurance include but are not limited to the following

the outcome of any potential claims from policyholders of Medmarc and INI relating to payments or other issues

arising from their respective conversions to stock insurance companies and subsequent mergers
into ProAssurance

the businesses of ProAssurance and Medmarc or ProAssurance and IND may not be integrated successfully or such

integration may take longer to accomplish than expected

cost savings from either transaction may not be fully realized or may take longer to realize than expected

operating costs customer loss and business disruption following either or both transactions including adverse effects

on relationships with employees may be greater than expected

Our results may differ materially from those we expect and discuss in any forward-looking statements The principal risk

factors that may cause these differences are described in Item 1A Risk Factors in this report

We caution readers not to place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements which are based upon conditions

existing only as of the date made and advise readers that these factors could affect our financial performance and could cause

actual results for future periods to differ materially from any opinions or statements expressed with respect to future periods in

any current statements Except as required by law or regulations we do not undertake and specifically decline any obligation to

publicly release the result of any revisions that may be made to any forward-looking statements to reflect events or

circumstances after the date of such statements or to reflect the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events

Business Overview

We are an insurance holding company operating through subsidiaries which are primarily focused on providing

professional and products liability insurance and operate as single business segment within the United States The

composition of our gross
written premiums by coverage type and by state for the past three years is as follows

Year Ended December31

68717 13% 81253 14% 74967 14%

51865 10% 57.389 10% 13202 2%

48338 9% 51040 9% 63143 12%

33685 6% 3801 7% 39909 7%

33393 6% 32402 6% 30767 6%

30200 6% 24322 4% 25790 5%

26571 5% 29965 5% 30.772 6%

243662 45% 251509 45% 254655 48%

536431 100% 565895 100% 533205 100%

Primarily comprised of one year term policies but includes premium related to policies with two year term of$13.l

million in 2012 $22.3 million in 2011 and $10.9 million in 2010

Includes tail coverage premiums of $29.4 million in 2012 $20.9 million in 2011 and $23.2 million in 2010

States representing 6% or more of total annual premium during 2012 2011 or 2010 are shown separately

The increase in premiums written in the state of Texas for 2012 and 2011 as compared to 2010 is attributable to the

acquisition of American Physicians Service Group Inc APS in November of 2010

in thousands 2012 2011 2010

416510 78% 451181 80% 418173 78%

42864 8% 45641 8% 43339 8%

28259 5% 2808 5% 28524 5%

17146 3% 16474 3% 13250 2%

31652 6% 24511 4% 29919 7%

536431 100% 565895 100% 533205 100%

Gross premium written by coverage type

Physicians

Other healthcare professionals

Healthcare facilities

Legal professionals

All other

Total

Gross premiums written by state

Alabama

Texas

Ohio

Florida

Michigan

Illinois

Indiana

All other states

Total



Gross written premium of acquired entities is not included in our results for periods prior to the acquisition date of the

entity The following table provides the approximate amount of IND and Medmarc gross premium written for the
year

ended

December 31 2012 that was not included in our 2012 results

In thousands 2012

Gross premium written by coverage type

Physician 11447

Medical and life science products liability 32085

Legal professionals 9541

Total 53073

Gross premium written by state

Texas 5407

Florida 6114

AU other states 41552

Total 53073

State total is less than $5 million or is not state representing more than 6% of ProAssurance 2012 total

annual premium

Corporate Or2anization and History

We were incorporated in Delaware as the successor to Medical Assurance Inc in connection with its merger with

Professionals Group Inc Professionals Group in June 2001

Much of our growth has occurred through mergers
and acquisitions we are the successor to twenty insurance

organizations and have further grown our business with four significant renewal rights transactions Key personnel have been

retained in our acquisitions allowing us to maintain market knowledge and
preserve important institutional knowledge in

underwriting claims risk management and marketing Our ability to utilize this knowledge has allowed us to grow effectively

through acquisitions

Recent Developments

On January 2013 we acquired Medmarc through sponsored demutualization that provided Medmarcs eligible

members with cash payments of $146.2 million and future policy credits of $7.5 million funded at acquisition Medmarc is an

underwriter of products liability insurance for medical technology and life sciences companies and also underwrites book of

legal professional liability insurance

On December 2012 the Board of Directors of ProAssurance the Board or our Board declared two-for-one split of

our common stock effective December 27 2012 Additionally the Board declared special dividend of $2.50 per share and

quarterly dividend of $0.25 both paid on December 27 2012 on post-split basis

We entered into revolving credit agreement in April 2011 and updated the agreement in September 2012 The

agreement which expires in April 2016 allows us to borrow up to $150 million for general corporate purposes including but

not limited to short-term working capital share repurchases as authorized by the Board and support for other activities we

enter into in the normal course of business In December 2012 we elected to partially fund our acquisition of Medmarc by

borrowing $125 million from our existing credit facility on fully secured basis as this allowed us to continue to hold rather

than liquidate certain higher yielding securities At December 31 2012 $25 million of the credit facility remains available for

use See Note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included herein for additional information regarding the

revolving credit agreement

During 2012 we used $57.7 million of available funds to repay long-term debt and terminate related interest rate swap
We recognized loss on the debt repayment of $2.2 million

On November 30 2010 we acquired 100% of the outstanding shares ofAPS provider of medical professional liability

MPL insurance for physicians largely in the state of Texas in transaction valued at $237 million including cash paid of

$233 million and liabilities assumed of $4 million See Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included

herein for additional information regarding the acquisition of APS

In November 2010 the Board authorized $200 million to be used for the repurchase of our common stock or debt

securities which was in addition to previous authorizations of $100 million in September 2009 $100 million in August 2008



and $150 million inApril 2007 As of February 14 2013 approximately $135.1 million of the total amount authorized by the

Board remains available for use

On April 2009 we acquired 100% of Podiatry Insurance Company of America PICA and subsidiaries The transaction

was valued at $134 million including future premium credits to qualified insureds of $15 million

In December 2008 we repurchased $23 million of our outstanding trust preferred securities for approximately $18

million We recognized gain of approximately $5 million on the extinguishment

In July 2008 we converted all our outstanding Convertible Debentures aggregate principal of $108 million issued in

2003 into approximately 5144000 shares of ProAssurance common stock No gain or loss was recorded related to the

conversion

Products Services and Marketing

Our insurance subsidiaries are primarily focused on providing professional liability insurance to individuals and

institutions engaged in the delivery of healthcare We also maintain book of legal professional liability business Physicians

are currently our core customer group but we target the full spectrum of the healthcare professional liability market For our

legal professional liability product we target smaller law practices Our Medmarc subsidiary acquired on January 2013

offers products liability insurance for medical technology and life sciences companies While most of our business is written in

the standard market we also offer professional and products liability insurance on an excess and surplus lines basis We are

licensed to do business in every state

We utilize independent agencies and brokers as well as an internal sales force to write our business We estimate that with

the addition of Medmarc approximately 65% of our gross premiums written in 2013 will be produced through independent

insurance agencies or brokers The agencies and brokerages we use typically sell through professional liability insurance

specialists who are able to convey the factors that differentiate our professional liability insurance products No single agent

broker brokerage or agency accounts for more than 10% of our total direct premiums written

Our marketing approach is closely tied to our promise of Treated Fairlywhich is our public pledge that all of our

actions will deliver fair treatment informed by the core values that guide our organization integrity respect doctor

involvement in our healthcare insurance activities collaboration communication and enthusiasm We emphasize that we offer

financial strength

coverages
tailored to meet the evolving needs and demands of our insureds and prospective customers

excellent claims and underwriting services

risk management consultation loss prevention seminars and other educational programs

regular newsletters discussing matters of interest to healthcare providers including updates on legislative

developments

support of legislation that will have positive effect on healthcare liability issues and

involvement in and support for local medical societies and related organizations

These communications and services demonstrate our understanding of the professional liability insurance needs of the

healthcare industry promote commonality of interest between us and our insureds and provide opportunities for targeted

interactions with potential insureds

Underwriting

Our underwriting process
is driven by individual risk selection Our underwriting decisions are focused on achieving

pricing adequacy For our professional liability business we assess the quality and pricing of the risk emphasizing loss history

areas of practice and location in making our underwriting decision For our products liability business we consider the type of

risk the amount of coverage being sought the expertise and experience of the applicant the location of the risk and the

expected volume of product sales in making our underwriting decision In performing this assessment our underwriters may
also consult with internal actuaries regarding loss trends and pricing and utilize loss-rating models to assess the projected

underwriting results of certain insured risks

Our professional liability underwriting concentrates on knowledge of local market conditions and legal environments

through market-focused underwriting offices located throughout our business footprint Our underwriters work closely with our

claims departments consulting with staff about claims histories and patterns of practice in particular locale as well as

monitoring claims activity



For our MPL business underwriters are assisted by our medical advisory committees that operate in our key markets

These committees are comprised of physicians representatives of hospitals and healthcare entities and other medical

professionals and help us maintain close ties to the medical communities in these markets provide information on the practice

of medicine in each market and provide guidance on critical underwriting issues

Claims Mana2ement

We have professional liability claims offices strategically located throughout our business footprint so that we can provide

specialized and timely attention to claims If desired by the insured we offer strong defense of claims that we believe are non-

meritorious or claims that we believe cannot be settled reasonably by good faith negotiations Many of these claims are

resolved by jury verdict Our products liability claims are centrally processed in Chantilly Virginia We strongly defend these

claims as well with negotiated settlement being the most frequent means of resolution

Our internal claims personnel promptly and thoroughly investigate the circumstances surrounding each reported claim

against an insured As this investigation progresses our claims department develops an estimate of the case reserves for each

claim Thereafter we monitor development of new information about the claim and adjust the case reserve as loss cost

estimates are revised

Through our investigation and in consultation with the insured and appropriate experts we evaluate the merit of the

claim and determine the appropriate strategy for resolution of the claim either seeking reasonable good faith settlement

appropriate for the circumstance of the claim or aggressively defending the claim Our claims personnel carefully manage each

case and obtain medical legal and/or other expert professionals as needed to assist in the analysis and defense of the claim As

part of the evaluation and preparation process for medical professional liability claims we meet regularly with medical

advisory committees in our key markets to examine claims attempt to identif potentially troubling practice patterns and make

recommendations to our staff For both professional liability and products liability claims we engage experienced independent

litigation attorneys in each venue to handle the defense of our policyholder and believe this practice aids us in providing

defense that is aggressive effective and cost-efficient

We believe our local approach to claims contributes to lower overall loss costs and results in customer loyalty

particularly for our physician insureds Our claims personnel are experienced claims professionals who possess specialized

knowledge of the local medical and legal environments and are able to effectively assist our independent attorneys with

defending our claims

Investments

The majority of our assets are held in our insurance companies and we apply consistent management strategy to the

entire portfolio

Our overall investment strategy is to focus on maximizing current income from our investment portfolio while

maintaining safety liquidity duration targets and portfolio diversification The portfolio is generally managed by professional

third party asset managers whose results we monitor and evaluate The asset managers typically have the authority to make

investment decisions within the asset classes they are responsible for managing subject to our investment policy and oversight

including requirement that securities in loss position cannot be sold without specific authorization from us See Note of

the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on our investments

Ratin2 A2encies

Our claims paying ability is regularly evaluated and rated by three major rating agencies Best Fitch and Moodys
In developing their claims paying ratings these agencies make an independent evaluation of an insurers ability to meet its

obligations to policyholders



The following table which includes subsidiaries acquired January 2013 presents the claims paying ratings of our core

insurance subsidiaries as of February 14 2013 NR indicates that the subsidiary has not been rated by the listed rating agency

Rating Agency

A.M Best Fitch Moodys
www.ainbest.com ww .fitchratings.com w.moodys.com

ProAssurance Indemnity Company Inc Excellent Strong A3

ProAssurance Casualty Co Excellent Strong A3

ProAssurance Specialty Insurance Company Inc Excellent Strong NR

Podiatry Insurance Company of Anierica Excellent Strong A3

PACO Assurance company Inc A-Excellent Strong NR

Medmarc Insurance Company A-Excellent NR NR

Noetic Specialty Insurance Company A-Excellent NR NR

Medmarc Casualty Insurance Company A-Excellent NR NR

Independent Nevada Doctors Insurance Company NR Strong NR

Four rating agencies evaluate and rate our ability to ser ice current debt and potential debt These financial strength

ratings reflect each agencys independent evaluation of our ability to meet our obliga ion to holders of our debt if any While

financial strength ratings may be of greater interest to investors than our claims paying ratings these ratings are not evaluations

of our equity securities nor recommendation to buy hold or sell our equity securities

Competition

Within our primary MPL line of business we compete in fragmented market comprised of more than one hundred

providers according to 2011 industry data with the top five writers having combined market share of approximately 32% We

are the fourth largest MPL writer in the United States Competitive distinctions
vary

from state-to-state and within areas of

healthcare delivery e.g individual physicians vs hospitals and facilities and include pricing size name recognition service

quality market commitment market conditions breadth and flexibility of coverage method of sale financial stability ratings

assigned by rating agencies and regulatory conditions Our competitors range from large national insurers whose financial

strength and resources may be greater than ours to smaller insurance entities that concentrate on single state and as result

have an extensive knowledge of the local markets

Our financial stability local market presence and knowledge leading position in number of markets service quality

experience insuring hospitals and facilities as well as individual providers size and geographic scope provide us with

competitive advantages We are widely recognized in our markets for our heritage as policyholder founded company with

long-term focus on the professional liability insurance industry as well as our demonstrated commitment to the defense of non-

meritorious claims and the prompt reasonable settlement of those claims that involve breach of the applicable standard of

professional care by our insured and that have caused damages that are covered by cur insurance policy

Historically we have principally insured solo or small
group practitioners but in recent years we have increased our

focus on offering unique joint or cooperative insurance programs that are attractive to hospitals or other large groups Often

these large groups and hospitals choose to manage their MPL risks through alternative insurance mechanisms such as risk

retention groups or self insurance entities and we offer insurance programs designed to compete with these mechanisms In

recent years there has been substantial increase in the number of physicians employed full time by hospitals or large group

practices which has required us to refine our existing hospital/physician insurance programs and develop new insurance

mechanisms to serve this emerging market

Our regional claims and underwriting offices also provide competitive advantages We utilize our local market knowledge

to rigorously underwrite each application for
coverage to ensure that we understand and develop adequate prices for the risks

we accept Our local market knowledge also allows us to effectively evaluate claims because we have detailed understanding

of local medical and legal climates Our locally-based claims and underwriting professionals allow us to cultivate and maintain

active relationships with our customers so that we can quickly respond to their needs

Additionally we differentiate ProAssurance from our competitors through our Treated Fairly corporate culture

Treated Fairly is our public pledge that all of our actions will deliver fair treatment informed by the core values that guide

our organization integrity respect doctor involvement in our healthcare insurance activities collaboration communication

and enthusiasm

Economic pressures on our insureds continue to increase and we recognize the importance of providing our products at

competitive rates In general loss cost trends have mitigated in recent years resulting in corresponding rate reductions In

addition to reflecting current loss trends in our filed rates we have responded by offiring targeted new business and renewal



retention programs in selected markets These steps improve policyholder retention but decrease our average premiums We do

not aggressively compete on price alone and we have not compromised our commitment to disciplined underwriting

Insurance Regulatory Matters

We are subject to regulation under the insurance and insurance holding company statutes of various jurisdictions

including the domiciliary states of our active insurance subsidiaries and other states in which our insurance subsidiaries do

business Our active insurance subsidiaries are domiciled in Alabama Illinois Michigan Nevada and Vermont

Our insurance subsidiaries are required to file detailed annual statements with the state insurance regulators in each of the

states in which they do business The laws of the various states establish agencies with broad authority to regulate among other

things licenses to transact business premium rates for certain types of coverage trade practices agent licensing policy forms

underwriting and claims practices reserve adequacy transactions with affiliates and insurer solvency Such regulations may
hamper our ability to meet operating or profitability goals including preventing us from establishing premium rates for some

classes of insureds that adequately reflects the level of risk assumed for those classes Many states also regulate investment

activities on the basis of quality distribution and other quantitative criteria States have also enacted legislation regulating

insurance holding company systems including acquisitions the payment of dividends the terms of affiliate transactions and

other related matters

Applicable state insurance laws rather than federal bankruptcy laws apply to the liquidation or reorganization of

insurance companies

Insurance companies are also subject to state and federal legislative and regulatory measures and judicial decisions These

could include new or updated definitions of risk exposure and limitations on business practices

Insurance Regulation Concerning Change or Acquisition of Control

The insurance regulatory codes in each of the domiciliary states of our operating subsidiaries contain provisions subject

to certain variations to the effect that the acquisition of control of domestic insurer or of any person that directly or

indirectly controls domestic insurer cannot be consummated without the prior approval of the domiciliary insurance regulator

In general presumption of control arises from the direct or indirect ownership control or possession with the power to vote

or possession of proxies with respect to 10% 5% inAlabama or more of the voting securities of domestic insurer or of

person that controls domestic insurer Because of these regulatory requirements any party seeking to acquire control of

ProAssurance or any other domestic insurance company whether directly or indirectly would usually be required to obtain

such approval

In addition certain state insurance laws contain provisions that require pre-acquisition notification to state agencies of

change in control of non-domestic insurance company admitted in that state While such pre-acquisition notification statutes

do not authorize the state agency to disapprove the change of control such statutes do authorize certain remedies including the

issuance of cease and desist order with respect to the non-domestic admitted insurers doing business in the state if certain

conditions exist such as undue market concentration

Statutory Accounting and Reporting

Insurance companies are required to file detailed quarterly and annual reports with the state insurance regulators in each

of the states in which they do business and their business and accounts are subject to examination by such regulators at any

time The financial information in these reports is prepared in accordance with Statutory Accounting Principles SAP
Insurance regulators periodically examine each insurers adherence to SAP financial condition and compliance with insurance

department rules and regulations

In late 2010 the National Association of Insurance Commissioners the NAIC adopted the Model Insurance and Holding

Company System Regulatory Act and Regulation Model Law The Model Law as compared to previous NAIC guidance
increases regulatory oversight of and reporting by insurance holding companies including reporting related to non-insurance

entities and requires reporting of risks affecting the holding company group The Model Law will be binding only if adopted by

state legislatures and/or state insurance regulatory authorities and actual regulations adopted by any state may differ from the

Model Law None of the states in which we are domiciled have adopted the Model Law



Regulation of Dividends and Other Paynents from Our Operating Subsidiaries

Our operating subsidiaries are subject to various state statutory and regulatory restrictions that limit the amount of

dividends or distributions an insurance company may pay to its shareholders including our insurance holding company without

prior regulatory approval Generally dividends may be paid only out of earned surplus In every case surplus subsequent to the

payment of any dividends must be reasonable in relation to an insurance companys outstanding liabilities and must be adequate

to meet its fmancial needs

State insurance holding company regulations generally require domestic insurers to obtain prior approval of extraordinary

dividends Insurance holding company regulations that govern our principal operating subsidiaries deem dividend as

extraordinary if the combined dividends and distributions to the parent holding company in any twelve-month period are more

than the greater of either the insurers net income for Vermont and Michigan net income not including realized capital gains

for the prior fiscal year or 10% of its surplus at the end of the prior fiscal year

If insurance regulators determine that payment of dividend or any other payments within holding company group

such as payments under tax-sharing agreement or payments for employee or other services would because of the financial

condition of the paying insurance company or otherwise be detriment to such insurance companys policyholders the

regulators may prohibit such payments that would otherwise be permitted

Risk-Based Capital

In order to enhance the regulation of insurer solvency the NAIC specifies risk-based capital requirements for property

and casualty insurance companies At December 31 2012 all of ProAssurances insurance subsidiaries exceeded the minimum

required risk-based capital levels

Investment Regulation

Our operating subsidiaries are subject to state laws and regulations that require diversification of investment portfolios

and that limit the amount of investments in certain investment categories Failure to comply with these laws and regulations

may cause non-conforming investments to be treated as non-admitted assets for purposes
of measuring statutory surplus and in

some instances would require divestiture of investments We monitor the practices used by our operating subsidiaries for

compliance with applicable state investment regulations and take corrective measures when deficiencies are identified

Guaranty Funds

Admitted insurance companies are required to be members of guaranty associations which administer state guaranty

funds To fund the payment of claims up to prescribed limits against insurance companies that become insolvent these

associations levy assessments on all member insurers in particular state on the basis of the proportionate share of the

premiums written by member insurers in the covered lines of business in that state Maximum assessments permitted by law in

any one year generally vary
between and 2% of annual premiums written by member in that state although state

regulations may permit larger assessments if insolvency losses reach specified levels Some states permit member insurers to

recover assessments paid through surcharges on policyholders or through full or partial premium tax offsets while other states

permit recovery of assessments through the rate filing process In recent years participation in guaranty funds has not had

material effect on our results of operations

Shared Markets

State insurance regulations may force us to participate in mandatory property and casualty shared market mechanisms or

pooling arrangements that provide certain insurance
coverage to individuals or other entities that are otherwise unable to

purchase such coverage in the commercial insurance marketplace Our operating subsidiaries participation in such shared

markets or pooling mechanisms is not material to our business at this time

Changes in Legislation and Regulation

Tort reforms generally restrict the ability of plaintiff to recover damages by among other limitations eliminating certain

claims that may be heard in court limiting the amount or types of damages changing statutes of limitation or the period of

time to make claim and limiting venue or court selection number of states in which we do business notably Florida

Georgia Illinois Missouri Ohio Texas and West Virginia enacted tort reform legislation in the previous decade as response

to rapid deterioration in loss trends These reforms are generally thought to have contributed to the improvement in the overall

loss trends in those states although loss trends have also been favorable in states that did not pass any type of tort reform In

states where these reforms are perceived to have improved the MPL climate we have experienced an increase in competition



The Missouri tort reform statutes were overturned in 2012 the Illinois and Georgia statutes were overturned in 2010 and

challenges to tort reform are underway in most states where tort reforms have been enacted Other state reforms may also be

overturned although we cannot predict with any certainty how appellate courts will rule We monitor developments on state-

by-state basis and make business decisions accordingly

Tort reform proposals are considered from time to time at the Federal level As in the states passage of Federal tort

reform package would likely be subject to judicial challenge and we cannot be certain that it would be upheld by the courts

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010 otherwise known as the Healthcare Reform Act was passed and

signed into law in March 2010 Although some provisions of the Act have already become effective the most comprehensive

provisions will become effective beginning in 2013.We do not expect that the provisions thus far enacted will have significant

direct effect on our business but specific regulations to implement the law are still being written

The Healthcare Reform Act is expected to have significant impact on the practice of medicine in future years and could

have unanticipated or indirect effects on our business or alter the risk and cost environments in which we and our insureds

operate These risks include reduced operating margins that may cause physicians and hospitals to join in larger groupings

which are more likely to utilize self-insured solutions for MPL insurance products use of electronic medical records may lead

to additional medical malpractice litigation or increase the cost of litigation and patient dissatisfaction may increase due to

greater strain on the patient-physician relationship Conversely it is anticipated that there will be growth in the number of

ancillary healthcare providers that will become customers for MPL products We are unable to predict with any certainty the

effect that the Healthcare Reform Act or future related legislation will have on our insureds or our business

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act Dodd-Frank Act was passed in July 2010 Although

provisions of the Act do not appear to materially affect our business the Act establishes new regulatory oversight of financial

institutions As detailed regulations are developed to implement the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act there may be changes in

the regulatory environment that affect the way we conduct our operations or the cost of compliance or both

Other federal initiatives could be proposed including additional patient protection legislation that could ultimately affect

our business We are unable to predict the likelihood of any particular type of legislation becoming effective or the

ramifications to our business

In recent years the insurance industry has been subject to increased scrutiny by regulators and legislators The NAIC and

number of state legislatures have considered or adopted legislative proposals that alter and in many cases increase the

authority of state agencies to regulate insurance companies and insurance holding company systems

Employees

At December 31 2012 we had 690 employees none of whom were represented by labor union We consider our

employee relations to be good
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ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

There are number of factors many beyond our control which may cause results to differ significantly from our

expectations Some of these factors are described below Any factor described in this report could by itself or together with one

or more other factors have negative effect on our business results of operations and/or financial condition There may be

factors not described in this report that could also cause results to differ from our expectations

Insurance market conditions may alter the effectiveness 0/our current business strategy and impact our revenues

The property and casualty insurance business is highly competitive We compete with large national property and casualty

insurance companies locally-based specialty companies self-insured entities and aliernative risk transfer mechanisms such as

captive insurers and risk retention groups whose activities are directed to limited markets in which they have extensive

knowledge Competitors include insurance companies that have substantially greater financial resources than we do alternative

risk transfer mechanisms used by hospitals purchasing physician practices as well as mutual insurance companies and similar

companies not owned by shareholders whose return on equity objectives may be lower than ours

Competition in the property and casualty insurance business is based on many factors including premiums charged and

other terms and conditions of coverage services provided financial ratings assigned by independent rating agencies claims

services reputation geographic scope local presence agent and client relationships financial strength and the experience of

the insurance company in the line of insurance to be written Increased competition could adversely affect our ability to attract

and retain business at current premium levels impact our market share and reduce the profits that would otherwise arise from

operations

Our results of operations and financial condition may be affected actual insured losses dffer from our loss reserves

We establish reserves as balance sheet liabilities representing our estimates of amounts needed to pay reported and

unreported losses and the related loss adjustment expense Our largest liability is our reserve for loss and loss adjustment

expenses Due to the size of our reserve for loss and loss adjustment expenses even small percentage adjustment to our

reserve can have material effect on our results of operations for the period in which the change is made

The process of estimating loss reserves is complex Significant periods of time often elapse between the occurrence of an

insured loss the reporting of the loss by the insured and payment of that loss Ultimate loss costs even for claims with similar

characteristics can vary significantly depending upon many factors including but not limited to the nature of the claim and the

personal situation of the claimant or the claimants family the outcome of jury trials the legislative and judicial climate where

the insured event occurred general economic conditions and for MPL and medical products claims the trend of healthcare

costs Consequently the loss cost estimation process requires actuarial skill and the application ofjudgment and such estimates

require periodic revision As part of the reserving process we review the known facts surrounding reported claims as well as

historical claims data and consider the impact of various factors such as

for reported claims the nature of the claim and the jurisdiction in which the claim occurred

trends in paid and incurred loss development

trends in claim frequency and severity

emerging economic and social trends

trend of healthcare costs for MPL and medical products claims

inflation and

changes in the regulatory legal and political environment

This process assumes that past experience adjusted for the effects of current developments and anticipated trends is an

appropriate but not necessarily accurate basis for predicting future events There is no precise method for evaluating the

impact of any specific factor on the adequacy of reserves and actual results are likely to differ from original estimates We

evaluate our reserves each period and increase or decrease reserves as necessary
based on our estimate of future claims

payments An increase to reserves has negative effect on our results of operations in the period of increase reduction to

reserves has positive effect on our results of operations in the period of reduction

Our loss reserves also may be affected by court decisions that expand liability of our policies after they have been issued

and priced In addition significant jury award or series of awards against one or more of our insureds could require us to pay

large sums of money in excess of our reserved amounts Due to uncertainties inherent in the jury system any case that is

litigated to jury verdict has the potential to incur loss that has material adverse effect on our results of operations
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We purchase reinsurance to mitigate the effect of large losses Our receivable from reinsurers on unpaid losses and loss

adjustment expenses represents our estimate of the amount of our reserve for losses that will be recoverable under our

reinsurance programs We base our estimate of funds recoverable upon our expectation of ultimate losses and the portion of

those losses that we estimate to be allocable to reinsurers based upon the terms and conditions of our reinsurance agreements

Given the uncertainty of the ultimate amounts of our losses our estimates of losses and related amounts recoverable may vary

significantly from the eventual outcome Also we estimate premiums ceded under reinsurance agreements wherein the

premium due to the reinsurer subject to certain maximums and minimums is based in part on losses reimbursed or to be

reimbursed under the agreement Due to the size of our reinsurance balances changes to our estimate of the amount of

reinsurance that is due to us could have material effect on our results of operations in the period for which the change is made

We are exposed to and may face adverse developments involving mass tort products liability claims arising from allegedly

defective medical products including medical devices biotechnology and diagnostic products prescription and non

prescription pharmaceuticals personal care products or animal healthcare products

Establishing claim and claim adjustment expense reserves for mass tort claims is subject to uncertainties due to many

factors including expanded theories of liability geographical location and jurisdiction of the lawsuits and the number of

manufacturers and/or distributors involved Moreover it is difficult to estimate our ultimate liability for such claims due to

evolving judicial interpretations of various tort theories of liability and defense theories such as federal preemption and joint

and several liability as well as the application of insurance coverage to these claims

If market conditions cause reinsurance to be more costly or unavailable we may be required to bear increased risks or reduce

the level of our underwriting commitments

As part of our overall risk and capacity management strategy we purchase reinsurance for significant amounts of risk

underwritten by our insurance company subsidiaries Market conditions beyond our control determine the availability and cost

of the reinsurance We may be unable to maintain current reinsurance coverage or to obtain other reinsurance coverage in

adequate amounts and at favorable rates If we are unable to renew our expiring coverage or to obtain new reinsurance

coverage either our net exposure to risk would increase or if we are unwilling to bear an increase in net risk exposures we

would need to reduce the amount of our underwritten risk

We cannot guarantee that our reinsurers will pay in timely fashion or at all and as result we could experience losses

We transfer part of our risks to reinsurance companies in exchange for part of the premium we receive in connection with

the risk Although our reinsurance agreements make the reinsurer liable to us to the extent the risk is transferred our liability to

our policyholders remains our responsibility If reinsurers fail to pay us or fail to pay on timely basis our financial results and/

or cash flows would be adversely affected and could have material effect on our results of operations in the period in which

uncollectible amounts are identified

At December 31 2012 our Receivable from Remsurers on Unpaid Losses is $191.6 million and our Receivable from

Reinsurers on Paid Losses is $4.5 million As of December 31 2012 the estimated net amount due from four of our reinsurers

exceeded $10 million on an individual basis with the largest estimated amount due from an individual reinsurer being $31.2

million table listing reinsurers is provided in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis as part of the Liquidity

section under the caption Reinsurance

Our claims handling could result in bad faith claim against us

We have been from time to time sued for allegedly acting in bad faith during our handling of claim The damages

claimed in actions for bad faith may include amounts owed by the insured in excess of the policy limits as well as consequential

and punitive damages Awards above policy limits are possible whenever case is taken to trial These actions have the

potential to have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

Changes in healthcare policy could have material effect on our operations

The Healthcare Reform Act was passed and signed into law in March 2010 While the primary provisions of the

Healthcare Reform Act do not appear to directly affect our business specific regulations to implement the law are still being

written

The Healthcare Reform Act is expected to have significant impact on the practice of medicine in future years and could

have unanticipated or indirect effects on our business or alter the risk and cost environments in which we and our insureds

operate These risks include reduced operating margins that may cause physicians and hospitals to join in larger groupings

which are more likely to utilize self-insured solutions for MPL insurance products use of electronic medical records may lead

to additional medical malpractice litigation or increase the cost of litigation and patient dissatisfaction may increase due to
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greater strain on the patient-physician relationship Conversely it is anticipated that there will be growth in the number of

ancillary healthcare providers that will become customers for MPL products We are unable to predict with any certainty the

effect that the Healthcare Reform Act or future related legislation will have on our insureds or our business

Changes due to financial reform legislation could have material effect on our operations

The Dodd-Frank Act was passed and signed into law in July 2010 The provisicns of the bill do not appear to materially

affect our operations however the bill establishes new regulatory oversight of financial institutions and regulations to

implement the Act remain in the process of development As detailed regulations are developed to implement the provisions of

the bill there may be changes in the regulatory environment that affect the way we conduct our operations or the cost of

regulatory compliance or both We are unable to predict with any certainty the effect that the Dodd-Frank Act will have on our

business

The passage of tort reform or other legislation and the subsequent review ofsuch 1a14s by the courts could have material

impact on our operations

Tort reforms generally restrict the ability of plaintiff to recover damages by among other limitations eliminating certain

claims that may be heard in court limiting the amount or types of damages changing statutes of limitation or the period of

time to make claim and limiting venue or court selection number of states in which we do business notably Florida

Georgia Illinois Missouri Ohio Texas and West Virginia enacted tort reform legislation in the previous decade as response

to rapid deterioration in loss trends

Challenges to tort reform are underway in most states where tort reforms have been enacted The statutes in Missouri

were overturned in 2012 those in Georgia and Illinois were overturned in 2010 We cannot predict with any certainty how other

state appellate courts will rule on these laws While the effects of tort reform have been generally beneficial to our business in

states where these laws have been enacted there can be no assurance that such reforms will be ultimately upheld by the courts

Further if tort reforms are effective the business of providing professional liability insurance may become more attractive

thereby causing an increase in competition In addition the enactment of tort reforms could be accompanied by legislation or

regulatory actions that may be detrimental to our business because of expected benefits which may or may not be realized

These expectations could result in regulatory or legislative action limiting the ability of professional liability insurers to

maintain rates at adequate levels Coverage mandates or other expanded insurance requirements could also be imposed States

may also consider state-sponsored MPL insurance entities that could remove some physicians from the private insurance

market

We continue to monitor developments on state-by-state basis and make business decisions accordingly

Our performance is dependent on the business economic regulatory and legislative conditions of states where we have

sign ficant amount of business

Our top five states Alabama Texas Ohio Florida and Michigan represented 44% of our gross premiums written for the

year ended December 31 2012 Moreover on combined basis Alabama Texas and Ohio accounted for 32% 33% and 28%

of our gross premiums written for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively Because of these

concentrations unfavorable business economic or regulatory conditions in any of these states could have disproportionately

greater effect on us than they would if we were less geographically concentrated

We may be unable to ident5 future strategic acquisitions or expected benefits from completed and proposed acquisitions may
not be achieved or may be delayed longer than expected

Our corporate strategy anticipates growth through the acquisition of other companies or books of business However such

expansion is opportunistic and sporadic and there is no guarantee that we will be able to identify strategic acquisition targets in

the future Additionally if we are able to identify strategic target for acquisition state insurance regulation concerning change

or acquisition of control could delay or prevent us from growing through acquisitions State insurance regulatory codes provide

that the acquisition of control of domestic insurer or of any person that directly or indirectly controls domestic insurer

cannot be consummated without the prior approval of the domiciliary insurance regulator There is no assurance that we will

receive such approval from the respective insurance regulator or that such approvals will not be conditioned in manner that

materially and adversely affects the aggregate economic value and business benefits expected to be obtained and cause us to not

complete the acquisition

There is no guarantee that any businesses acquired in the future will be succesfully integrated and the ineffective

integration of our businesses and processes may result in substantial costs or delays and adversely affect our ability to compete

The process of integrating an acquired company or business can be complex and costly and may create unforeseen operating

difficulties and expenditures Potential problems that may arise include among other reasons business disruption loss of
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customers and employees the ineffective integration of underwriting claims handling and actuarial practices the increase in

the inherent uncertainty of reserve estimates for period of time until stable trends reestablish themselves within the combined

organization diversion of management time and resources to acquisition integration challenges the cultural challenges

associated with integrating employees increased operating costs or inability to achieve cost savings and the assumption of

greater than expected liabilities

If we are unable to maintain favora ble financial strength ratings it may be more difJIcult for us to write new business or renew

our existing business

Independent rating agencies assess and rate the claims-paying ability and the financial strength of insurers based upon

criteria established by the agencies Periodically the rating agencies evaluate us to confirm that we continue to meet the criteria

of previously assigned ratings The financial strength ratings assigned by rating agencies to insurance companies represent

independent opinions of financial strength and ability to meet policyholder and debt obligations and are not directed toward the

protection of equity investors

Our principal operating subsidiaries hold favorable claims paying ratings with A.M Best Fitch and Moodys Claims

paying ratings are used by agents and customers as an important means of assessing the financial strength and quality of

insurers If our financial position deteriorates or the rating agencies significantly change the rating criteria that are used to

determine ratings we may not maintain our favorable financial strength ratings from the rating agencies downgrade or

involuntary withdrawal of
any

such rating could limit or prevent us from writing desirable business

The following table which includes subsidiaries acquired January 2013 presents the claims paying ratings of our core

insurance subsidiaries as of February 14 2013 NR indicates that the subsidiary has not been rated by the listed rating agency

Rating Agency

A.M Best Fitch Moodys
www.ambest.com www.fitcliratings.com www.moodys.com

ProAssurance Indemnity Company Inc Excellent Strong A3

ProAssurance Casualty Co Excellent Strong

ProAssurance Specialty Insurance Company Inc Excellent Strong NR

Podiatry Insurance Company of America Excellent Strong A3

PACO Assurance Company Inc A-Excellent Strong NR

Medmarc Insurance Company A- NR NR

Noetic Specialty Insurance Company A- Excellent NR NR

Medmarc Casualty Insurance Company A-Excellent NR NR

Independent Nevada Doctors Insurance Company NR Strong NR

Four rating agencies evaluate and rate our ability to service current debt and potential debt Ihese financial strength

ratings reflect each agencys independent evaluation of our ability to meet our obligation to holders of our debt if any While

these ratings may be of greater interest to investors than our claims paying ratings these are not ratings of our equity securities

nor recommendation to buy hold or sell our equity securities
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Our business could be adversely affected by the loss of independent agents or brokers

We depend in part on the services of independent agents and brokers in the marketing of our insurance products We face

competition from other insurance companies for their services and allegiance These agents and brokers may choose to direct

business to competing insurance companies

Our business could be adversely affected by the loss of one or more senior executives

We are heavily dependent upon our senior management and the loss of services of our senior executives could adversely

affect our business Our success has been and will continue to be dependent on our ability to retain the services of existing key

employees and to attract and retain additional qualified personnel in the future The loss of the services of key employees or

senior managers or the inability to identify hire and retain other highly qualified personnel in the future could adversely affect

the quality and profitability of our business operations

Our Board regularly reviews succession planning relating to our Chief Executive Officer as well as other senior officers

Mr Starnes our Chief Executive Officer has indicated to the Board that he has no immediate plans for retirement

Provisions in our charter documents Delaware law and state insurance law may impede attempts to replace or remove

management or may impede takeover which could adversely affect the value of our common stock

Our certificate of incorporation bylaws and Delaware law contain provisions that may have the effect of inhibiting non-

negotiated merger or other business combination We currently have no preferred stock outstanding and no present intention to

issue any shares of preferred stock In addition our Corporate Governance Principles provide that the Board subject to its

fiduciary duties will not issue any series of preferred stock for any defense or anti-takeover purpose for the purpose of

implementing any stockholders rights plan or with features intended to make any acquisition more difficult or costly without

obtaining stockholder approval However because the rights and preferences of any series of preferred stock may be set by the

Board in its sole discretion the rights and preferences of any such preferred stock may be superior to those of our common

stock and thus may adversely affect the rights of the holders of common stock

The voting structure of common stock and other provisions of our certificate of incorporation are intended to encourage

person interested in acquiring us to negotiate with and to obtain the approval of the Board in connection with transaction

However certain of these provisions may discourage our future acquisition including an acquisition in which stockholders

might otherwise receive premium for their shares As result stockholders who might desire to participate in such

transaction may not have the opportunity to do so

In addition state insurance laws provide that no person or entity may directly cr indirectly acquire control of an insurance

company unless that person or entity has received approval from the insurance regulator An acquisition of control of

ProAssurance would be presumed if any person or entity acquires 10% 5% in Alabama or more of our outstanding common

stock unless the applicable insurance regulator determines otherwise These provisions apply even if the offer may be

considered beneficial by stockholders

We are holding company and are dependent on dividends and other payments from our operating subsidiaries which are

subject to dividend restrictions

We are holding company whose principal source of funds is cash dividends and other permitted payments from

operating subsidiaries If our subsidiaries are unable to make payments to us or are able to pay only limited amounts we may
be unable to make payments on our indebtedness meet other holding company financial obligations or pay dividends to

shareholders The payment of dividends by these operating subsidiaries is subject to restrictions set forth in the insurance laws

and regulations of their respective states of domicile as discussed in Item Insurance Regulatory Matters

Regulatory requirements or changes to regulatory requirements could have material effect on our operations

Our insurance businesses are subject to extensive regulation by state insurance authorities in each state in which they

operate Regulation is intended for the benefit of policyholders rather than shareholders In addition to the amount of dividends

and other payments that can be made to holding company by insurance subsidiaries these regulatory authorities have broad

administrative and supervisory power relating to

licensing requirements

trade practices

capital and surplus requirements

investment practices and

rates charged to insurance customers
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These regulations may impede or impose burdensome conditions on rate changes or other actions that we may desire to

take in order to enhance our results of operations In addition we may incur significant costs in the course of complying with

regulatory requirements Most states also regulate insurance holding companies like us in variety of matters such as

acquisitions changes of control and the terms of affiliated transactions

Also certain states sponsor MPL insurance entities which affects the amount and type of MPL coverages purchased by

healthcare providers in the sponsoring state Changes to the number of state sponsored entities of this type could result in

large number of healthcare practitioners changing the amount and type of coverage purchased from private insurance entities

such as ProAssurance

The guaranty fund assessments that we are required to pay to state guaranty associations may increase and results of

operations and financial condition could suffer as result

Each state in which we operate has separate insurance guaranty fund laws requiring admitted property and casualty

insurance companies doing business within their respective jurisdictions to be members of their guaranty associations These

associations are organized to pay covered claims as defined and limited by the various guaranty association statutes under

insurance policies issued by insurance companies that have become insolvent Most guaranty association laws enable the

associations to make assessments against member insurers to obtain funds to pay covered claims after member insurer

becomes insolvent These associations levy assessments up to prescribed limits on all member insurers in particular state on

the basis of the proportionate share of the premiums written by member insurers in the covered lines of business in that state

Maximum assessments generally vary between 1% and 2% of annual premiums written by member in that state Some states

permit member insurers to recover assessments paid through surcharges on policyholders or through full or partial premium tax

offsets while other states permit recovery
of assessments through the rate filing process In 2012 net guaranty fund

assessments approximated $0.3 million while in 2011 refunds/recoupments exceeded assessments by $0.1 million Our

practice is to accrue for insurance insolvencies when notified of assessments We are not able to reasonably estimate

assessments or develop meaningful range
of possible assessments prior to notice because the guaranty funds do not provide

sufficient information for development of such estimates or ranges

Our investment results willfluctuate as interest rates change

Our investment portfolio is primarily comprised of interest-earning assets marked to market each period Thus

prevailing economic conditions particularly changes in market interest rates may significantly affect our results of operations

Significant movements in interest rates potentially expose us to lower yields or lower asset values Changes in market interest

rate levels generally affect our net income to the extent that reinvestment yields are different than the yields on maturing

securities Changes in interest rates also can affect the value of our interest-earning assets which are principally comprised of

fixed and adjustable-rate investment securities Generally the values of fixed-rate investment securities fluctuate inversely with

changes in interest rates Interest rate fluctuations could adversely affect our stockholders equity income and/or cash flows

Our investments are subject to credit prepayment risk and other risks

significant portion of our total assets $3.9 billion or 81% at December 31 2012 are financial instruments whose value

can be significantly affected by economic and market factors beyond our control including among others the unemployment

rate the strength of the domestic housing market the price of oil changes in interest rates and spreads consumer confidence

investor confidence regarding the economic prospects of the entities in which we invest corrective or remedial actions taken by

the entities in which we invest including mergers spin-offs and bankruptcy filings the actions of the U.S government and

global perceptions regarding the stability of the U.S economy Adverse economic and market conditions could cause

investment losses or other-than-temporary impairments of our securities which could affect our financial condition results of

operations or cash flows

At December 31 2012 approximately 13% of our investment portfolio is invested in mortgage and asset-backed

securities We utilize ratings determined by Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations NRSROs Moodys
Standard Poors and Fitch as an element of our evaluation of the credit worthiness of our securities The ratings are subject

to error by the agencies therefore we may be subject to additional credit
exposure

should the rating be misstated
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At December 31 2012 we held the following asset-backed securities

Carrying Amortized NRSRO Weighted

In thousands Value Cost Basis Average Rating

Asset backed securities collateralized by

Agency mortgages 275670 259327 AA
Non-agency mortgages 6791

Subprime home equity loans 7304

Alt mortgages 7389

Agency commercial mortgages 59464

Other commercial mortgages 74106

Credit card loans 1796

Automobile loans 33622

Other asset loans 12379

Total asset-backed securities 494692

At December 31 2012 all asset-backed securities were carried at fair value

Guaranteed by Ginnie Mae Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac

Persistent value declines in the U.S housing and real estate markets as well as the U.S economic downturn have resulted

in increases in delinquencies and losses with respect to mortgage- and asset-backed securities The value of our mortgage- and

asset-backed securities is subject to the risk that some of these investments may default or become significantly impaired Such

defaults or impairments would result in realized investment losses

Our asset-backed securities are also subject to prepayment risk prepayment the unscheduled return of principal

When rates decline the propensity for refinancing may increase and the period of time we hold our asset-backed securities may
shorten due to prepayments Prepayments may cause us to reinvest cash proceeds at lower yields than the retired security

Conversely as rates increase and motivations for prepayments lessen the period of time we hold our asset-backed securities

may lengthen causing us to not reinvest cash flows at the higher available yields

At December 31 2012 the fair value of our state/municipal portfolio was $1.2 billion amortized cost basis of $1.1

billion While our state/municipal portfolio had high credit rating AA on average which indicates strong ability to pay

there is no assurance that there will not be credit related event which would cause fair values to decline The economic

downturn in preceding years lessened tax receipts and other revenues in many states and their municipalities and the frequency

of credit downgrades of these entities has increased

In August 2011 one of the major rating agencies downgraded the rating of U.S Government debt Other rating agencies

have indicated that they will likely downgrade U.S Government debt in 2013 if significant fiscal reform is not implemented

The rating agencies have also indicated that debt instruments of issuers dependent upon federal support and distributions

including state and local municipalities may also be downgraded but this has not yet occurred to any widespread extent except

with respect to U.S Agency debt or U.S Agency guaranteed debt If ratings downgrades become more widespread the average

credit rating of our investment portfolio will be reduced Due to the unpredictable nature of this situation we are unable to

provide reliable estimate regarding the extent to which our portfolio might be affected As of December 31 2012 debt

securities represented 88% of our total investments and included U.S Government debt U.S Agency debt and U.S Agency

guaranteed debt having combined fair value of $598 million and state and municipal securities having combined fair value

of $1.2 billion

In period of market illiquidity and instability the fair values of our investments are more dfJIcult to assess and our

assessments may prove to be greater or less than amounts received in actual transactions

In accordance with applicable GAAP we value 96% of our investments at fair value and the remaining 4% at cost equity

or cash surrender value See Notes and of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information

We determine the fair value of our investments using quoted exchange or over-the-counter OTC prices when available

At December 31 2012 we valued approximately 7% of our investments in this manner When exchange or OTC quotes are not

available we estimate fair values based on broker dealer quotes and various other valuation methodologies which may require

us to choose among various input assumptions and which requires us to utilize judgment At December 31 2012 approximately

89% of our investments were valued in this manner When markets exhibit much volatility there is more risk that we may

6546

7809

7117

57234

69062

17405

33356

12100

469956

BBB
13-

AA
AAA

AAA

AAA

AA
AA

US Government debt rating has been downgraded
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utilize quoted market price broker dealer quote valuation technique or input assumption that results in fair value estimate

that is either over or understated as compared to actual amounts received upon disposition or maturity of the security

Our Board may decide that our financial condition does not allow the continued payment of quarterly cash dividend or

requires that we reduce the amount of our quarterly cash dividend

Our Board approved cash dividend policy in September 2011 most recently paid at $0.25 per share However any

decision to pay future cash dividends is subject to the Boards final determination after comprehensive review of the

Companys financial performance future expectations and other factors deemed relevant by the Board

Resolution of uncertain tax matters and changes in tax laws or taxing authority interpretations of tax laws could result in actual

tax benefits or deductions that are different than we have estimated both with regard to amounts recognized and the timing of

recognition Such differences could affect our results of operations or cash flows

Our provision for income taxes our recorded tax liabilities and net deferred tax assets including any valuation

allowances are recorded based on estimates These estimates require us to make significant judgments regarding number of

factors including among others the applicability of various federal and state laws the interpretations given to those tax laws

by taxing authorities courts and ProAssurance the timing of future income and deductions and our expected levels and sources

of future taxable income We believe our tax positions are supportable under tax laws and that our estimates are prepared in

accordance with GAAP Additionally from time to time there are changes to tax laws and interpretations of tax laws which

could change our estimates of the amount of tax benefits or deductions expected to be available to us in future periods In either

case changes to our prior estimates would be reflected in the period changed and could have material effect on our effective

tax rate financial position results of operations and cash flow

We are subject to U.S federal and various state income taxes We are periodically under routine examination by various

federal state and local authorities regarding income tax matters and our tax positions could be successfully challenged the

costs of defending our tax positions could be considerable Our estimate of our potential liability for known uncertain tax

positions is reflected in our financial statements and considers the Notice of Proposed Adjustment NOPA received in 2012 as

discussed in the following paragraph As of December 31 2012 our current tax liability was approximately $19.3 million

which included our liability for unrecognized current tax benefits of $4.8 million and we had net deferred tax liabilities of

approximately $14.6 million Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31 2012 if recognized would not affect the effective tax

rate but would accelerate the payment of tax

In December 2012 we received NOPA related to our federal returns for the 2009 and 2010 tax years which would

substantially reduce the deduction allowed for our loss and loss adjustment expenses and would increase taxes due by

approximately $130 million The proposed adjustment affects only the timing of our deduction and any payment acceleration

resulting from the NOPA would not increase tax expense for the current or priorperiods exclusive of interest that might be

assessed on past-due taxes if any Any payments would come out of our cash and investments and could reduce future

investment earnings We disagree with and are contesting the position taken by the IRS but cannot reliably predict the timing of

the final resolution or the ultimate outcome

New or changes in existing accounting standards practices and/or policies and also subjective assumptions estimates and

judgments by management related to complex accounting matters could sign fIcantly affect our financial results

U.S generally accepted accounting principles GAAP and related accounting pronouncements implementation

guidelines and interpretations with regard to wide range of matters that are relevant to our business such as revenue

recognition estimation of losses determination of fair value asset impairment particularly investment securities and goodwill

and tax matters are highly complex and involve many subjective assumptions estimates and judgments Changes in these rules

or their interpretation or changes in underlying assumptions estimates or judgments could significantly change our reported or

expected financial performance or financial condition See Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the

discussion on accounting policies

ProAssurance is primarily holding company of insurance subsidiaries which are required to comply with statutory

accounting principles SAP SAP and its components are subject to review by the NAIC and state insurance departments The

NAIC Accounting Practices and Procedures manual provides that state insurance department may allow insurance companies

that are domiciled in that state to depart from SAP by granting them permitted non-SAP accounting practices This permission

may allow for more favorable treatment to competitors

It is uncertain whether or how SAP might be revised or whether any revisions will have positive or negative effect It is

also uncertain whether any changes to SAP or its components or any permitted non-SAP accounting practices granted to our

competitors will negatively affect our financial results or operations See the Insurance Regulatory Matters section in Item for

the full discussion on regulatory matters

18



ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM PROPERTIES

We own five office properties all of which are unencumbered

Square Footage of Properties

Occupied by Leased cr Available

Property Location ProAssurance for Lease Total

Birmingham AL 104 000 61 000 165 000

Franklin TN 52000 51000 103000

Okemos MI 53000 53 000

Madison WI 38000 38000

Las Vegas NV 4640 4640

Corporate Office

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Our insurance subsidiaries are involved in various legal actions substantial number of which arise from claims made

under insurance policies While the outcome of all legal actions is not presently determinable management and its legal counsel

are of the opinion that these actions will not have material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations See

Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included herein
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF PROASSURANCE CORPORATION

The executive officers of ProAssurance Corporation ProAssurance serve at the pleasure of the Board We have

knowledgeable and experienced management team with established track records in building and managing successful

insurance operations In total our senior management team has average experience in the insurance industry of 29 years

Following is brief description of each executive officer of ProAssurance including their principal occupation and relevant

background with ProAssurance and former employers

Stancil Starnes Mr Starnes was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of ProAssurance in July 2007 and has

served as the Chairman of the Board since October 2008 Mr Starnes previously served as

President Corporate Planning and Administration of Brasfield Gorrie Inc large

commercial construction firm Prior to October 2006 Mr Starnes served as the Senior and

Managing Partner of the law firm of Stames Atchison LLP where he was extensively

involved with ProAssurance and its predecessors in the defense of medical professional

liability claims for over 25 years Mr Stames currently serves as director of Infinity

Property and Casualty Corporation public insurance holding company where he serves on

the audit compensation and executive committees He formerly served as director of

Alabama National Bancorporation Age 64

Victor Adamo Mr Adamo was appointed Vice Chairman in May 2012 and has been an executive officer of

ProAssurance since its inception Mr Adamo served as an officer of ProAssurances

insurance subsidiary ProAssurance Casualty Company formerly ProNational Insurance

Company from 1985 to 2001 and as director and President and Chief Executive Officer

of its former holding company Professionals Group Inc from 1996 to 2001 From 1975 to

1985 Mr Adamo was in private legal practice and represented the predecessor to

Professionals Group Inc Mr Adamo is Chartered Property Casualty Underwriter Age
64

Howard Friedman Mr Friedman was appointed as Co-President of our Professional Liability Group in

October 2005 and is also our Chief Underwriting Officer Mr Friedman has previously

served as Chief Financial Officer Corporate Secretary and as the Senior Vice President of

Corporate Development Mr Friedman joined our predecessor in 1996 Mr Friedman is an

Associate of the Casualty Actuarial Society Age 54

Jeffrey Lisenby Mr Lisenby was appointed as Senior Vice President in December 2007 and has served as

our Corporate Secretary since January 2006 and head of the corporate Legal Department

since 2001 Mr Lisenby previously practiced law privately in Birmingham Alabama Mr

Lisenby is member of the Alabama State Bar and the United States Supreme Court Bar and

is Chartered Property Casualty Underwriter Age 44
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Frank ONeil Mr ONeil was appointed as our Senior Vice President of Corporate Communications and

Investor Relations in September 2001 Mr ONeil joined our predecessor in 1987 and has

been our Senior Vice President of Corporate Communications since 1997 Age 59

Edward Rand Jr Mr Rand was appointed Chief Financial Officer in April 2005 having joined ProAssurance

as our Senior Vice President of Finance in November 2004 Prior to joining ProAssurance

Mr Rand was the Chief Accounting Officer and Head of Corporate Finance for PartnerRe

Ltd Prior to that time Mr Rand served as the Chief Financial Officer of Atlantic American

Corporation Mr Rand is Certified Public Accountant Age 46

Darryl Thomas Mr Thomas has been with ProAssurance since its inception and currently serves as Co
President of our Professional Liability Group position he has held since October 2005
and as our Chief Claims Officer Previously Mr Thomas was Senior Vice President of

Claims for Professionals Group Prior to joining the predecessor to Professionals Group in

1995 Mr Thomas was Executive Vice President of national third-party administrator of

professional liability claims Prior to that time Mr Thomas served as Vice President and

Litigation Counsel for the Kentucky Hospital Association Age 55

We have adopted code of ethics that applies to our directors and executive officers including but not limited to our

principal executive officers principal financial officer and principal accounting officer We also have share ownership

guidelines in place to ensure that management maintains significant portion of their personal investments in the stock of

ProAssurance Both our Code of Ethics and our Share Ownership Guidelines are available on the Governance section of our

website Printed copies of these documents may be obtained from Frank ONeil Senior Vice President ProAssurance

Corporation either by mail at P.O Box 590009 Birmingham Alabama 5259-0009 or by telephone at 205 877-4400 or

800 282-6242
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

At February 14 2013 ProAssurance Corporation PRA had 3131 stockholders of record and 61623504 shares of

common stock outstanding ProAssurances common stock currently trades on the New York Stock Exchange NYSE under

the symbol PRA

2012 2011

Quarter High Low High Low

First 45.00 39.35 32.04 28.98

Second 45.06 41.94 35.16 31.25

Third 46.29 43.80 36.48 33.28

Fourth 46.49 42.17 40.61 34.64

Dividends Declared Dividends Paid

2012 2011 2012 2011

First 0.125 0.125

Second 0.125 0.125

Third 0.125 0.125 0.125

Fourth 2.750 0.125 2.875 0.125

Includes special dividend of $2.50 per common share in 2012

The Board of ProAssurance declared two-for-one stock split on December 2012 effected December 27 2012 in the

form of stock dividend All share information provided in this report considers the effect of the split for all periods presented

The Board initiated regular quarterly dividend in September 2011 and on December 2012 declared special dividend of

$2.50 per common share that was paid December 27 2012 Any decision to pay regular or special cash dividends in the future

is subject to the Boards final determination after comprehensive review of financial performance future expectations and

other factors deemed relevant by the Board

ProAssurances insurance subsidiaries are subject to restrictions on the payment of dividends to the parent Information

regarding restrictions on the ability of the insurance subsidiaries to pay dividends is incorporated by reference from the

paragraphs under the caption Insurance Regulatory MattersRegulation of Dividends and Other Payments from Our Operating

Subsidiaries in Item of this 10-K

Securities uthorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides information regarding ProAssurances equity compensation plans as of December 31 2012

Number of securities

remaining available

Number of securities to be Weighted-average for future issuance

issued upon exercise of exercise price of under equity compensation

outstanding options warrants outstanding options plans excluding securities reflected
Plan Category and rights warrants and rights in column

Equity compensation plans approved by

security holders 909021 23.22 2507279

Equity compensation plans not approed

by security holders

Applicable only to approximately 20000 outstanding options Other outstanding share units have no exercise price

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

No shares were purchased as part of publicly announced plans or programs during the fourth quarter of 2012 Of the $200

million authorized by the ProAssurance Board of Directors in November 2010 for the repurchase of common shares or the

retirement of outstanding debt $135.1 million remained available for use as of December 31 2012
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Selected Financial Data

Gross premiums written

Net premiums earned

Net investment income

Equity in earnings loss of unconsolidated

subsidiaries

Net realized investment gains losses

Other revenues

Total revenues

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses

Net income

Net income per
share

Basic

Diluted

Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic

Diluted

Balance Sheet Data as of December 31
Total investments

Total assets

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment

expenses

Long-teun debt

Total liabilities

Total capital

Total capital per
share of common stock

outstanding

Common stock outstanding period end

Year Ended December31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

In thousands except per share data

536431 565895 533205 553922 471482

550664 565415 519107 497543 459278

136094 140956 146380 150945 158384

6873 9147 1245 1438 7991

28863 5994 17342 12792 50913

7106 13566 7991 9965 8410

715854 716784 692065 672683 567162

179913 162287 221115 231068 211499

275470 287096 231598 222026 177725

4.49 4.70 3.64 3.38 2.71

4.46 4.65 3.60 3.35 2.61

61342 61140 63576 65696 65500

61833 61684 64351 66300 68724

3926902 4090541 3990431 3838222 3575942

4876578 4998878 4875056 4647414 4280938

2054994 2247772 2414100 2422230 2379468

125000 49687 51104 50203 34930

2605998 2834425 3019193 2942819 2857353

2270580 2164453 1855863 1704595 1423585

36.85 35.42 30.17 26.30 21.35

61624 61107 61506 64824 66692

Includes acquired entities since date of acquisition only

Includes loss on extinguishment of debt of $2.2 million and $2.8 million for the years ended December 31 2012 and

2009 respectively and gain on extinguishment of debt of $4.6 million for the year ended December 31 2008

For all periods presented share and per share amounts reflect the effect of the two-for-one stock split effected in the

form of stock dividend that was effective December 27 2012
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to those

statements which accompany this report glossary of insurance terms and phrases is available on the investor section of our

website Throughout the discussion references to ProAssurance PRA Company we us and our refer to

ProAssurance Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries The discussion contains certain forward-looking information that

involves risks and uncertainties As discussed under Forward-Looking Statements our actual financial condition and

operating results could differ significantly from these forward-looking statements

CriticaL Accountin2 Estimates

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

GAAP Preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts we

report on those statements We evaluate these estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis based on current and historical

developments market conditions industry trends and other information that we believe to be reasonable under the

circumstances There can be no assurance that actual results will conform to our estimates and assumptions reported results of

operations may be materially affected by changes in these estimates and assumptions

Management considers the following accounting estimates to be critical because they involve significant judgment by

management and the effect of those judgments could result in material effect on our financial statements

Reserve for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The largest component of our liabilities is our reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses reserve for losses or

reserve and the largest component of expense for our operations is incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses also referred

to as loss and loss adjustment expenses incurred losses losses incurred and losses Incurred losses reported in any

period reflect our estimate of losses incurred related to the premiums earned in that period as well as any changes to our

estimates of the reserve established for losses of prior periods

The estimation of professional liability losses is inherently difficult and is the subject of significant judgment on the part

of management Loss costs even for claims with similarcharacteristics can vary significantly depending upon many factors

including but not limited to the nature of the claim and the personal situation of the claimant or the claimants family the

outcome ofjury trials the legislative and judicial climate where the insured event occurred general economic conditions and

for MPL claims the trend of healthcare costs Professional liability claims are typically resolved over an extended period of

time often five years or more The combination of changing conditions and the extended time required for claim resolution

results in loss cost estimation process that requires actuarial skill and the application of significant judgment and such

estimates require periodic revision

Our reserves are established by management after taking into consideration variety of factors including premium rates

claims frequency historical paid and incurred loss development trends the effect of inflation general economic trends the

legal and political environment and the conclusions reached by our internal and consulting actuaries We update and review the

data underlying the estimation of our reserve for losses each reporting period and make adjustments to loss estimation

assumptions that we believe best reflect emerging data Both our internal and consulting actuaries perform an in-depth review

of our reserve for losses on at least semi-annual basis using the loss and exposure data of our insurance subsidiaries We

partition our reserves by accident year which is the year in which the claim becomes our liability As claims are incurred

reported and claim payments are made they are aggregated by accident year for analysis purposes We also partition our

reserves by reserve type case reserves and IBNR reserves Case reserves are established by our claims department based upon

the particular circumstances of each reported claim and represent our estimate of the future loss costs often referred to as

expected losses that will be paid on reported claims Case reserves are decremented as claim payments are made and are

periodically adjusted upward or downward as estimates regarding the amount of future losses are revised reported loss is the

case reserve at any point in time plus the claim payments that have been made to date IBNR reserves represent our estimate of

losses that have been incurred but not reported to us and future developments on losses that have been reported to us

At high level our reserving process can be broadly grouped into two areas the establishment of initial or current

accident year reserves and the re-estimation of prior years loss reserves Activity in our net reserve for losses during 2012
2011 and 2010 is summarized in the Liquidity and Capital Resources and Financial Condition Losses section that follows

Initial Reserve Estimates

In the current environment and taking into consideration current claims trends we believe we are pricing our business

today to 75% loss ratio however considerable judgment is required in the pricing of our business and in establishing our

initial reserves for given accident year Due to the lack of available data for both open and closed claims for the initial
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accident year we heavily rely on the loss assumptions that are used in pricing our business Historically and at present we

utilize loss ratios that are approximately to 10 percentage points above the ratios we believe we have achieved in our pricing

for the current accident year We believe this considers inherent risks associated with our rate development process and the

historic volatility of professional liability losses the industry has experienced accident year loss ratios as high as 163% and as

low as 57% over the past 30 years and produces reasonable best estimate of the reserves required to cover actual ultimate

unpaid losses In the current enviromnent this equates to an initial loss ratio of approximately 85% as compared to an average

loss ratio of approximately 74% targeted in our pricing Although we remain uncertain regarding the ultimate severity trend as

discussed in following paragraphs the consideration we have given to observed lower loss costs has resulted in rate reductions

in recent years On average excluding our podiatry business acquired in 2009 we have gradually reduced the premium rates

we charge by 16% from 2006 to 2012

Reestimation of Prior Years Loss Reserves

Process

The foundation of our reserve re-estimation process is an actuarial analysis thai is performed by both our intemal and

consulting actuaries The very detailed analysis projects ultimate losses on line of business geographic coverage layer and

accident year basis The procedure is intended to balance the use of the most representative data for each partition capturing its

unique patterns of development and trends In all there are approximately 140 different partitions of our business for purposes

of this analysis We believe that the use of consulting actuaries provides an independent view of our loss data as well as

broader perspective on industry loss trends

The analysis performed by the consulting actuaries analyzes each partition of our business in variety of ways and uses

multiple actuarial methodologies in performing these analyses including

Bornhuetter-Ferguson Paid and Reported Method

Paid Development Method

Reported Development Method

Average Paid Value Method

Average Reported Value Method

Backward Recursive Development Method

brief description of each method follows

Bornhuetter-Ferguson Method We use both the Paid and the Reported Bornhuetter-Ferguson methods The Paid method

assigns partial weight to initial expected losses for each accident year initial expected losses being the first established case

and IBNR reserves for specific accident year and partial weight to paid to-date losses The Reported method assigns partial

weight to the initial expected losses and partial weight to current expected losses The weights assigned to the initial expected

losses decrease as the accident year matures

Paid Development and Reported Development Method These methods use historical cumulative losses paid losses for

the Paid Development Method reported losses for the Reported Development Method by accident year and develop those

actual losses to estimated ultimate losses based upon the assumption that each accident year will develop to estimated ultimate

cost in manner that is analogous to prior years adjusted as deemed appropriate for the expected effects of known changes in

the claim payment environment and case reserving environment for the Reported Development Method and to the extent

necessary supplemented by analyses of the development of broader industry data

Average Paid Value and Average Reported Value Methods In these methods average
claim cost data paid claim cost for

the Average Paid Value Method and reported claim cost for the Reported Value Method is developed to an ultimate average

cost level by report year based on historical data Claim counts are similarlydeveloped to an ultimate count level The average

claim cost after rounding and adjustment if necessary to accommodate report year data that is not considered to be predictive

is then multiplied by the ultimate claim counts by report year to derive ultimate loss and ALAE

Backward Recursive Development Method This method is an extrapolation of the movements in case reserve adequacy in

order to estimate unpaid loss costs Historical data showing incremental changes to case reserves over progressive time periods

is used to derive factors that represent the ratio of case reserve values at successive maturities Historical claims payment data

showing the additional payments in progressive time periods is used to derive factors that represent the portion of case

reserve paid in the following period Starting from the most mature period after which all of the case reserve is paid and the

case reserve is exhausted the next prior ultimate development factor for the prior case reserve can be calculated as the case

factor times the established ultimate development factor plus the paid factor For each successive priormaturity the ultimate
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development factor is calculated similarly The result of multiplying the ultimate development factor times the case reserve is

the total indicated unpaid amount

Generally methods such as the Bomhuetter-Ferguson method are used on more recent accident
years

where we have less

data on which to base our analysis As time progresses and we have an increased amount of data for given accident year we

begin to give more confidence to the development and average methods as these methods typically rely more heavily on our

own historical data These methods emphasize different aspects of loss reserve estimation and provide variety of perspectives

for our decisions

Certain of the methodologies utilized to estimate the ultimate losses for each partition of our reserves consider the actual

amounts paid Paid data is particularly influential when large portion of known claims have been closed as is the case for

older accident years In selecting point estimate for each partition management considers the extent to which trends are

emerging consistently for all partitions and known industry trends Thus actual rather than estimated severity trends are given

consideration When actual severity trends are lower than those estimated at the time that reserves were previously established

the recognition of favorable development is indicated This is particularly true for older accident
years where our actuarial

methodologies give more weight to actual loss costs severity

The various actuarial methods discussed above are applied in consistent manner from period to period In addition we

perform statistical reviews of claims data such as claim counts average settlement costs and severity trends when establishing

our reserves

We utilize the selected point estimates of ultimate losses to develop estimates of ultimate losses recoverable from

reinsurers based on the terms and conditions of our reinsurance agreements An overall estimate of the amount receivable from

reinsurers is determined by combining the individual estimates Our net reserve estimate is the gross reserve point estimate less

the estimated reinsurance recovery

Use of Judgment

Even though the actuarial process is highly technical it is also highly judgmental both as to the selection of the data used

in the various actuarial methodologies e.g initial expected loss ratios and loss development factors and in the interpretation

of the output of the various methods used Each actuarial method generally returns different value and for the more recent

accident years the variations among the various methodologies can be significant For each partition of our reserves the results

of the various methods along with the supplementary statistical data regarding such factors as closed with and without

indemnity ratios claim severity trends the expected duration of such trends changes in the legal and legislative environment

and the current economic environment are used to develop point estimate based upon managements judgment and past

experience The process of selecting the point estimate is based upon the judgment of management taking into consideration the

actuarial methods and other environmental factors discussed previously For each partition of our reserves we select point

estimate with due regard for the age characteristics and volatility of the subset of the business the volume of data available for

review and past experience with respect to the accuracy of estimates The series of selected point estimates is then combined to

produce an overall point estimate for ultimate losses

Given the historical volatility of the MPL line of business we are cautious in giving full credibility to emerging trends

that when more fully mature may lead to the recognition of either favorable or adverse development of our losses There may
be trends both positive and negative reflected in the numerical data both within our own information and in the broader MPL

marketplace that mitigate or reverse as time
progresses

and additional data becomes available

Over the past several years the most influential factor affecting our analysis of reserves has been the changes or lack

thereof in the severity of claims

Severity is defined as the average cost of resolving claims The severity trend assumption is key assumption for both

pricing models and actuarial estimation of reserves The severity trend is an explicit component of our pricing models whereas

in our reserving process
the severity trends impact is implicit Our estimate of this trend and our expectations about changes in

this trend impact variety of factors from the selection of expected loss ratios to the ultimate point estimates established by

management

Because of the implicit and wide-ranging nature of severity trend assumptions on the loss reserving process it is not

practical to specifically isolate the impact of changing severity trends However because severity is an explicit component of

our pricing process we can better isolate the impact that changing severity can have on our loss costs and loss ratios as regards

our pricing models Our current pricing model assumes severity trend of 2% to 3% in most states and lines of business If the

severity trend were to be higher by percentage point the impact would be an increase in our expected loss ratio of 3.2

percentage points An increase in the severity trend of percentage points would result in 10.1 percentage point increase in

our expected loss ratio Due to the long tailed nature of MPL claims and the previously discussed historical volatility of loss

costs selection of severity trend assumption is subjective process that is inherently likely to prove inaccurate over time

Given this long-tail and the previously discussed historical volatility of loss costs we are generally cautious in making changes
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to the severity assumptions within our pricing model Also of note is that all open claims and accident years are generally

impacted by change in the severity trend which compounds the effect of such change

From 2004 to 2009 both our internal and consulting actuaries have observed an unprecedented reduction in the frequency

of claims or number of claims per exposure unit that cannot be attributed to any single factor which has complicated the

selection of an appropriate severity trend for our pricing models It has also made it more challenging to factor severity into the

various actuarial methodologies discussed above We believe that much of the reduction in claim frequency is the result of

decline in the filing of frivolous lawsuits that have historically been dismissed or otherwise result in no payment of indemnity

on the part of our insureds With fewer frivolous claims being filed we expect that the claims that are filed have the potential

for greater average losses or greater severity As result we cannot be certain as to the impact this decline will ultimately have

on the average cost of claims Based on weighted average of payments only 85% are resolved after eight years for given

accident year Due to this long tail it can take several years before we are able to determine what impact if any has resulted

from the decline in frequency and whether there is related increase in severity

Loss Development

We recognized net favorable development related to prior accident years of $272.0 million for the year ended

December 31 2012 $325.9 million for the year ended December 31 2011 and $234.0 million for the year ended

December 31 2010 In support of our concern that the decline in frequency will result in higher severity trend we have seen

our closed-with-indemnity-payment ratio i.e the number of claims closed with an indemnity or loss payment as compared to

the total number of closed claims increase from 7% in 2005 to 14% in 2012 While this trend has been in keeping with our

expectations the anticipated increase in severity incorporated into our loss assumptions has not occurred Rather we have

experienced lower than expected severity which has been the primary driver of the favorable development recognized in recent

years

The following tables present additional infirmation about our loss development

Estimated Ultimate Losses Net of Reinsurance established ultimates

In thnu.indsj 202 20 201

2012 451951 N/A N/A

2011 483264 488152 N/A

2010 476449 490061 493354

2009 451298 475676 497.766

2008 403641 459.299 510861

2007 385530 436577 498240

2006 340983 379692 438487

2005 362319 387280 423380

2004 348738 367656 406944

2003 492576 507673 529722

Prior to 2003 5065129 5089.899 5.120925

Anounts shown for 2012 exclude ultimates associated with

the reserves assumed in 2012 due to business combination
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Reserve Development favorable unfavorable

In thousands 2012 2011 2010

2011 4$S8 N/A N/A

2010 13612 3293 N/A

2009 24378 22090 2004

2008 55658 51562 5035
2007 S1047 61663 36858
2006 38709 58795 67418

2005 24961 36100 42259
2004 18918 39288 38182

2003 15097 22049 17362
Prior to 2003 24770 31025 28880

An extended period of time is required to get clear estimate of the loss cost for given accident year As an example

looking at the 2008 accident year we had resolved 71.2% of the known claims by the end of 2010 83.1% of the known claims

by the end of 2011 and 90.3% of the known claims by the end of 2012 These statistics are based on the number of reported

claims since many non-meritorious claims are resolved early percentages of ultimate loss payments known at the same points

in time are considerably lower similarpattern can be seen in each open accident year as demonstrated in the table below

Historically we have resolved more than 85% of our physician and hospital professional liability claims with no

indemnity payment and generally these claims are the first to be resolved As an accident year matures the number of claims

resolved with indemnity payments progressively increases In similar fashion we typically expend more in loss adjustment

expenses legal fees as claims mature

The following table represents the percentage of known MPL claims closed

December 31

Accident Year 2012 2011 2010

2012 13.5% N/A EN/A

2011 45.0% 13.2% N/A

2010 68.8% 45.3% 16.4%

2009 80.6% 67.7% 46.3%

2008 903% 83.1% 71.2%

2007 93.9% 89.5% 82.5%

2006 97.1% 947% 90.0%

2005 98.4% 96.9% 94.4%

2004 991% 98.3% 96.8%

2003 98.7% 98.0% 96.8%

Based upon the additional claims closed during 2012 2011 and 2010 as shown above and the continuation of better than

expected severity trends management reduced its expected ultimate losses in each of these years resulting in the recognition of

corresponding amounts of favorable development in the income statements of those periods At December 31 2010

management reserve estimates for the three most recent prior accident years which have closed claim percentages below 85%
were more heavily influenced by the initial reserves estimates set for these years while estimates for older accident years with

higher percentages of closed claims were more heavily influenced by the more moderate severity trend observed during the

period particularly with regard to claims closed during the period At December 31 2012 and 2011 the continued lack of

increase in the severity trend in spite of the increase in the ratio of claims closed with indemnity influenced managements

judgment both in regard to the older accident years where this trend has more fully played out and in regard to the more recent

accident years The increased favorable development recognized in 2011 as compared to 2010 is largely attributable to the

initial effect of giving greater consideration to the moderated severity trend Management continued to reflect approximately

the same level of consideration of the moderated trend in its estimate of the reserve required at December 31 2012 however

the effect was not as pronounced in 2012 as that initially recorded in 2011
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This can be seen in looking at both the absolute amount of favorable reserve deelopment recognized for the less

developed accident years as well as the size of such development when compared to established ultimates for those same

accident years at the end of the preceding calendar year The following table provides this information for years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 with respect to the three then most recent prior accident years

in mi//iOns 2012 2011 2010

Prior accident years 2009-2011 2008-2010 2007-2009

Net favorable development recognized for the

specified years $42.9 S76.9 $39.9

Development as of established ultimates

prior calendar year end 2.9% 5.1% 2.6%

Variability of Loss Reserves

As previously noted the number of data points and variables considered and the subjective process followed in

establishing our loss reserve makes it impractical to isolate individual variables and demonstrate their impact on our estimate of

loss reserves However to provide better understanding of the potential variability in our reserves we have modeled implied

reserve ranges around our single point net reserve estimates for our professional liability business assuming different

confidence levels The ranges have been developed by aggregating the expected volatility of losses across partitions of our

business to obtain consolidated distribution of potential reserve outcomes The aggregation of this data takes into

consideration the correlation among our geographic and specialty mix of business The result of the correlation approach to

aggregation is that the ranges are narrower than the sum of the ranges determined for each partition

We have used this modeled statistical distribution to calculate an 80% and 60% confidence interval for the potential

outcome of our net reserve for losses The high and low end points of the distributions are as follows

Low End Point Carried Net Reserve High End Point

80% Confidence Level $1 418 billion $1 $63 billion $2314 billion

60% Confidence Level $1.535 billion $1.863 billion $2.16 billion

Any change in our estimate of net ultimate losses for prior years is reflected in net income in the period in which such

changes are made Over the past several years such changes have been to reduce our estimate of net ultimate losses resulting in

reduction of reported losses for the period and corresponding increase in income

Due to the size of our reserve for losses and the large number of claims outstanding at any point in time even small

percentage adjustment to our total reserve estimate could have material effect on our results of operations for the period in

which the adjustment is made

Reinsurance

We use insurance and reinsurance collectively reinsurance to provide capacity to write larger limits of liability to

provide protection against losses in excess of policy limits and to stabilize underwriting results in
years

in which higher losses

occur The purchase of reinsurance does not relieve us from the ultimate risk on our policies but it does provide reimbursement

for certain losses we pay

We make determination of the amount of insurance risk we choose to retain based upon numerous factors including our

risk tolerance and the capital we have to support it the price and availability of reinsurance volume of business level of

experience with particular set of claims and our analysis of the potential underwriting results We purchase reinsurance from

number of companies to mitigate concentrations of credit risk We utilize reinsurance broker to assist us in the placement of

our reinsurance program and in the analysis of the credit quality of our reinsurers The determination of which reinsurers we

choose to do business with is based upon an evaluation of the then-current financial slrength rating and stability of prospective

reinsurers

We evaluate each of our ceded reinsurance contracts at inception to confirm that there is sufficient risk transfer to allow

the contract to be accounted for as reinsurance under current accounting guidance At December 31 2012 all ceded contracts

were accounted for as risk transferring contracts

Our receivable from reinsurers on unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses represents our estimate of the amount of

our reserve for losses that will be recoverable under our reinsurance programs We base our estimate of funds recoverable upon

our expectation of ultimate losses and the portion of those losses that we estimate to be allocable to reinsurers based upon the

terms and conditions of our reinsurance agreements Our assessment of the collectabiiity of the recorded amounts receivable
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from reinsurers considers the payment history of the reinsurer publicly available financial and rating agency data our

interpretation ofthe underlying contracts and policies and
responses by reinsurers

Given the uncertainty inherent in our estimates of losses and related amounts recoverable from reinsurers these estimates

may vary significantly from the ultimate outcome

Under the terms of certain of our reinsurance agreements the amount of premium that we cede to our reinsurers is based

in part on the losses we recover under the agreements Therefore we make an estimate ofpremiums ceded under these

reinsurance agreements subject to certain maximums and minimums Any adjustments to our estimates ofeither balances

recoverable under our reinsurance agreements or premiums owed under our agreements are reflected in then-current operations

Due to the size of our reinsurance balances an adjustment to these estimates could have material effect on our results of

operations for the period in which the adjustment is made

The financial strength of our reinsurers and their corresponding ability to pay us may change in the future due to forces

or events we cannot control or anticipate We have not experienced significant collection difficulties due to the fmancial

condition of any reinsurer as of December 20 however periodically reinsurers may dispute our demand for

reimbursement from them based upon their interpretation of the terms of our agreements We have established appropriate

reserves for any balances that we believe may not be ultimately collected Should future events lead us to believe that any
reinsurer will not meet its obligations to us adjustments to the amounts recoverable would be reflected in the results of current

operations Such an adjustment has the potential to be material to the results of operations in the period th which it is recorded

however we would not expect such an adjustment to have material effect on our capital position or our liquidity

Investment Valuations

We record the majority of our investments at fair value as shown in the table below The distribution of our investments

based on GAAP fair value hierarchies levels was as follows

Distribution by GAAP Fair Value Hierarchy December 31 2012

Level Level Level Total Investments

Investments recorded at

Jair value 7% 87% 2% 96%

Other valuations 4%

Total Investments iOa%

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date All of our fixed maturity and equity security investments are

carried at fair value Our short-term securities are carried at amortized cost which approximates fair value

Because of the number of securities we own and the complexity and cost of developing accurate fair values we utilize

multiple independent pricing services to assist us in establishing the fair value of individual securities The pricing services

provide fair values based on exchange traded prices if available If an exchange traded price is not available the pricing

services if possible provide fair value that is based on multiple broker/dealer quotes or that has been developed using pricing

models Pricing models vary by asset class and utilize currently available market data for securities comparable to ours to

estimate the fair value for our security The pricing services scrutinize market data for consistency with other relevant market

information before including the data in the pricing models The pricing services disclose the types of pricing models used and

the inputs used for each asset class Determining fair values using these pricing models requires the use ofjudgment to identif

appropriate comparable securities and to choose valuation methodology that is appropriate for the asset class and available

data

The pricing services provide single value per instrument quoted We review the values provided for reasonableness each

quarter by comparing market yields generated by the supplied value versus market yields observed in the market place We also

compare yields indicated by the provided values to appropriate benchmark yields and review for values that are unchanged or

that reflect an unanticipated variation as compared to prior period values In addition we compare provided information for

consistency with our other pricing services known market data and information from our own trades considering both values

and valuation trends We also review weekly trades versus the prices supplied by the services If supplied value appears

unreasonable we discuss the valuation in question with the pricing service and make adjustments if deemed necessary To date

our review has not resulted in any changes to the values supplied by the pricing services

The pricing services do not provide fair value unless an exchange traded price or multiple observable inputs are

available As result the pricing services may provide fair value for security in some periods but not others depending

upon the level of recent market activity for the security or comparable securities
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Level Investments

Fair values for our equity and portion of our short-term securities are determined using exchange traded prices There is

little judgment involved when fair value is determined using an exchange traded price In accordance with GAAP for

disclosure purposes we classify securities valued using an exchange traded price as Level securities

Level Investments

Most fixed income securities do not trade daily and thus exchange traded prices are generally not available for these

securities However market infonnation often referred to as observable inputs or market data including but not limited to last

reported trade non-binding broker quotes bids benchmark yield curves issuer spreads two sided markets benchmark

securities offers and recent data regarding assumed prepayment speeds cash flow and loan performance data is available for

most of our fixed income securities We determine fair value for large portion of our fixed income securities using available

market information In accordance with GAAP for disclosure purposes we classify securities valued based on multiple market

observable inputs as Level securities

Level Investments

When pricing service does not provide value for one of our fixed maturity securities management estimates fair value

using either single non-binding broker quote or pricing models that utilize market based assumptions which have limited

observable inputs The process involves significant judgment in selecting the appropriate data and modeling techniques to use

in the valuation process For disclosure purposes we classify fixed maturity securities valued using limited observable inputs as

Level securities

We also classify as Level our investment interests that are carried at fair value based on fund-provided net asset value

NAV for our interest All investments valued in this manner are LP or LLC interests that hold debt and equity securities At

December 31 2012 interests valued using fund-provided NAV totaled $33.7 milliorL or 1% of total investments and were

classified as part of our Investment in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries

Investments Other Valuation Methodologies

Certain of our investments in accordance with GAAP for the type of investment are measured using methodologies

other than fair value At December 31 2012 these investments had carrying value of approximately $170.8 million which

represented 4% of total investments as shown in the following table Additional information about these investments is

provided in Notes and of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

GAAP Measurement

In rni11ion Carrying Value Method

Other investments

Investments in LP/LLCs 25.1 Cost

Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB capital stock 4.3 Cost

Other 1.7 Amortized cost

Total other investments 31.1

Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries

Investments in tax credit partnerships 87.3 Equity

Business owned life insurance 52.4 Cash surrender value

Total investments Other valuation methodologies 170.8

Investment Impairments

We evaluate our investments on at least quarterly basis for declines in fair value that represent other than temporary

impairment OTTI In all instances we consider an impairment to be an OTTI if we intend to sell the security or if we believe

we will be required to sell the security before we fully recover the amortized cost basis of the security Otherwise we consider

various factors in our evaluation depending upon the type of security as discussed below

For debt securities we consider whether we expect to fully recover the amortized cost basis of the security based upon

consideration of some or all of the following

third party research and credit rating reports

the current credit standing of the issuer including credit rating downgrades
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the extent to which the decline in fair value is attributable to credit risk specifically associated with an investment or

its issuer

our internal assessments and those of our external portfolio managers regarding specific circumstances surrounding an

investment which can cause us to believe the investment is more or less likely to recover its value than other

investments with similarstructure

for asset-backed securities the origination date of the underlying loans the remaining average life the probability that

credit performance of the underlying loans will deteriorate in the future and our assessment of the quality of the

collateral underlying the loan

failure of the issuer of the security to make scheduled interest or principal payments

any changes to the rating of the security by rating agency

recoveries or additional declines in fair value subsequent to the balance sheet date and

our intent to sell and whether it is more likely than not we will be required to sell the investment before the recovery of

its amortized cost basis

In assessing whether we expect to recover the cost basis of debt securities particularly asset-backed securities we must

make number of assumptions regarding the cash flows that we expect to receive from the security in future periods These

judgments are subjective in nature and may subsequently be proved to be inaccurate

We evaluate our cost method interests in LPs/LLCs for OTTI by considering whether there has been decline in fair

value below the recorded value which involves assumptions and estimates We receive report from each of the LPsILLCs at

least quarterly which provides us NAV for our interest in the LP/LLC The NAV is based on the fair values of securities held

by the LP/LLC as determined by the LP/LLC manager We consider the most recent NAV provided the performance of the LP/

LLC relative to the market the stated objectives of the LP/LLC the cash flows expected from the LP/LLC and audited

financial statements of the entity if available in considering whether an OTTI exists

Our investments in tax credit partnerships are evaluated for OTTI by comparing cash flow projections of the underlying

projects generating the tax credits to our recorded basis and by considering our ability to utilize the tax credits generated by the

investments

We also evaluate our holdings of FHLB securities for impairment We consider the current capital status of the FHLB
whether the FHLB is in compliance with regulatory minimum capital requirements and the FHLB most recently reported

operating results

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Policy acquisition costs primarily commissions premium taxes and underwriting salaries which are directly related to

the successful acquisition of new and renewal premiums are capitalized as deferred policy acquisition costs and charged to

expense as the related premium revenue is recognized We evaluate the recoverability of our deferred policy acquisition costs

each reporting period and any amounts estimated to be unrecoverable are charged to expense in the current period Prior to our

adoption of the new Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB guidance on January 2012 we capitalized all internal

selling agent and underwriter salary and benefit costs including costs associated with unsuccessful contract efforts Adoption of

the new guidance had no material effect on our results of operations or financial position

Deferred Taxes

Deferred federal income taxes arise from the recognition of temporary differences between the bases of assets and

liabilities determined for financial reporting purposes and the bases determined for income tax purposes Our temporary

differences principally relate to loss reserves unearned premiums deferred policy acquisition costs unrealized investment

gains losses and investment impairments Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates expected

to be in effect when such benefits are realized We review our deferred tax assets quarterly for impairment If we determine that

it is more likely than not that some or all of deferred tax asset will not be realized valuation allowance is recorded to reduce

the carrying value of the asset In assessing the need for valuation allowance management is required to make certain

judgments and assumptions about our future operations based on historical experience and information as of the measurement

period regarding reversal of existing temporary differences carryback capacity future taxable income including its capital and

operating characteristics and tax planning strategies

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

We evaluate tax positions taken on tax returns and recognize positions in our financial statements when it is more likely

than not that we will sustain the position upon resolution with taxing authority If recognized the benefit is measured as the
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largest amount of benefit that has greater than fifty percent probability of being realized We review uncertain tax positions

each period considering changes in facts and circumstances such as changes in tax law interactions with taxing authorities and

developments in case law and make adjustments as we consider necessary Adjustments to our unrecognized tax benefits may
affect our income tax expense and settlement of uncertain tax positions may require the use of cash At December 31 2012

our current tax liability included $4.8 million for unrecognized tax benefits and $1.4 million for related accrued interest

Goodwill

Management evaluates the carrying value of goodwill annually during the fourth quarter If at any time during the year

events occur or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value below the carrying value we also

evaluate goodwill at that time We evaluate goodwill as one reporting unit because we operate as single operating segment

and our segment components are economically similar We estimate the fair value of our reporting unit on the evaluation date

based on market capitalization and an expected premium that would be paid to acquire control of our Company control

premium We then perform sensitivity analysis using range of historical stock prices and control premiums We concluded

as of our last evaluation date October 2012 that the fair value of our reporting unit exceeded the carrying value and no

adjustment to impair goodwill was necessary

Goodwill is recognized in conjunction with acquisitions as the excess of the purchase consideration for the acquisition

over the fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed Goodwill of $3.4 million was recognized in 2012

related to acquisitions completed during the period

ProAssurance Overview

We are an insurance holding company and our operating results are primarily derived from the operations of our

insurance subsidiaries which principally write medical and other professional liability insurance

Corporate Strategy

Our mission is to be the preferred source of professional liability protection by providing unparalleled claims defense

highly responsive customer service and innovative risk management while maintaining our commitment to long-term financial

strength We are industry leading specialty insurance company with extensive expertise in medical professional liability

errors and omission coverage for attorneys and beginning in 2013 with our acquisition of Medmarc products liability for the

medical device and sciences industry Our customer focus combined with our financial strength strong reputation and proven

ability to manage claims has played role in our ability to expand our operations while maintaining profitability We have

historically utilized acquisitions of companies and books of business as means of expanding into new geographic areas and

product lines although we cannot predict the timing of those transactions with any certainty We emphasize disciplined

underwriting and prudent pricing in order to achieve profitability as opposed to emphasizing premium growth and achieving

market share gain at any cost In addition to prudent risk selection and pricing we seek to control our underwriting results

through effective claims management and have fostered strong culture of defending non-meritorious claims We differentiate

ProAssurance from many other national writers by tailoring our claims handling to the legal climate of each state

Through our market-based underwriting and claims office structure we develop deep understanding of market

conditions which enables us to respond to changes in the liability climate and adapt our underwriting and claims strategies as

needed Our market-based focus allows us to maintain active relationships with our customers understand the importance of

the professional identity and reputation of our insureds and thus be more responsive to their needs We use advisory boards and

operational committees to help us better understand the challenges facing our insureds and ways in which we can assist them

We believe the extensive experience of medical and legal professionals throughout our organization especially that of our

senior management team enhances our understanding of the medical/legal environment We emphasize our pledge that our

insureds will be treated fairly in all of our conduct with them and that all of our business actions will be informed by the core

values that guide our organization integrity respect doctor involvement in healthcare insurance activities collaboration

communication and enthusiasm We believe our strategy allows us to compete on basis other than price alone

We have sustained our financial stability during difficult market conditions through responsible pricing and loss reserving

practices and through conservative investment practices We are committed to maintaining prudent operating and financial

leverage and to conservatively investing our assets We recognize the importance that our customers and producers place on the

financial strength of our principal insurance subsidiaries and we manage our business to protect our financial security

We consider number of performance measures including the following

The net loss ratio is calculated as net losses incurred divided by net premLums earned and is component of

underwriting profitability

The underwriting expense ratio is calculated as underwriting policy acquisition and operating expenses incurred

divided by net premiums earned and is component of underwriting profitability
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The combined ratio is the sum of the underwriting expense ratio and the net loss ratio and measures underwriting

profitability

The investment income ratio is calculated as net investment income divided by net premiums earned and measures

the contribution investment earnings provides to our overall profitability

The operating ratio is the combined ratio less the investment income ratio This ratio provides the combined effect

of investment income and underwriting profitability

The tax ratio is calculated as total income tax expense divided by income loss before income taxes and measures

our effective tax rate

Return on equity is calculated as net income for the period divided by the average of beginning and ending

shareholders equity This ratio measures our overall after-tax profitability and shows how efficiently invested

capital is being used

Growth in book value Book value is calculated as total shareholders equity at the balance sheet date divided by the

total number of common shares outstanding This ratio measures the net worth of the company to shareholders on

per-share basis Growth in book value per share is an indicator of overall profitability

We particularly focus on our combined ratio and investment returns both of which directly affect our return on equity

ROE and growth of our book value Historically we targeted long-term average ROE of 12% to 14% Given the persistent

low interest rate environment which prevails in the United States and the soft pricing environment for our products the

realization of this long-term ROE target in the next few
years will likely prove difficult

Our emphasis on rate adequacy selective underwriting effective claims management and prudent investments is key
factor in our achievement of our ROE target We closely monitor premium revenues losses and loss adjustment costs and

underwriting and policy acquisition expenses Our overall investment strategy is to focus on maximizing current income from

our investment portfolio while maintaining safety liquidity duration and portfolio diversification While we engage in

activities that generate other income such activities principally insurance agency services do not constitute significant use of

our resources or significant source of revenues or profits

Growth Opportunities and Outlook

We expect our long-term growth to come through controlled expansion of our existing operations and through the

acquisition of other specialty insurance companies or books of business Growth through acquisition is often opportunistic and

cannot be predicted

We operate in very competitive markets and in addition to competition from other insurance companies we are seeing

trend toward the formation of larger medical practice groups and the employment of physicians by hospitals Frequently given

the size of these organizations they choose to manage their medical professional liability exposure outside of the traditional

insurance marketplace using self-insured mechanisms and other risk sharing arrangements In response to these trends we offer

products designed to provide greater risk sharing options to hospitals and large physician groups

We believe our emphasis on fair treatment of our insureds and other important stakeholders through our commitment to

Treated Fairly has enhanced our market position and differentiated us from other insurers We will continue to use Treated

Fairlyin all of our activities and we believe that as we reach more customers with this message we will continue to improve
retention and add new insureds

In 2013 we expanded our lines of business in new directions by acquiring Medmarc an underwriter of products liability

insurance for medical technology and life sciences companies who also underwrites book of legal professional liability

insurance We have also been consistent acquirer of other physician insurers most recently IND in 2012 APS in 2010 and

PICA in 2009 Other 2009 acquisitions included an insurer focused on the legal professional liability market and an agency

largely focused on the professional liability needs of allied healthcare providers We continue to see new opportunities from

each of the acquisitions and believe each will provide organic growth through expansion in their existing markets and

relationships

Accounting Changes

We did not adopt any accounting changes during 2012 that had material effect on our results of operations nor are we
aware of any accounting changes not yet adopted as of December 31 2012 that would have material effect on our results of

operations or financial position Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements provides additional detail regarding

accounting changes
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Liquidity and Capital Resources and Financial Condition

Overview

ProAssurance Corporation is holding company and is legal entity separate and distinct from its subsidiaries Because

the holding company has no other business operations dividends from its operating subsidiaries represent significant source

of funds for its obligations including debt service and shareholder dividends At December 31 2012 we held cash and liquid

investments of approximately $357.0 million outside our insurance subsidiaries that were available for use without regulatory

approval $196.2 million of which was pledged as collateral for advances under our credit facility Our insurance subsidiaries

in aggregate are permitted to pay dividends of approximately $309 million over the course of 2013 without the prior approval

of state insurance regulators However the payment of any dividend requires prior notice to the insurance regulator in the state

of domicile and the regulator may prevent the dividend if in its judgment payment of the dividend would have an adverse

effect on the surplus of the insurance subsidiary During 2012 our insurance subsidiaries paid dividends of approximately

$278.5 million including extraordinary dividends of $25.0 million

Operating Activities and Related Cash Flows

The principal components of our operating cash flows are the excess of premiums collected and net investment income

over losses paid and operating costs including income taxes Timing delays exist between the collection of premiums and the

payment of losses associated with the premiums Premiums are generally collected within the twelve-month period after the

policy is written while our claim payments are generally paid over more extended period of time Likewise timing delays

exist between the payment of claims and the collection of any associated reinsurance recoveries Our operating activities

provided positive cash flows of approximately $91.3 million $159.4 million and $139.2 million for the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Operating cash flows for 2012 and 2011 compare as follows

Operating

In millions Cash Flow

provided by operating activities for the year ended December 312011

Increase decrease in operating cash flows

Decrease in premium receipts 12
Increase in payments to reinsurers

Increase in losses paid net of reinsurance recoveries 35
Increase in deposit contracts

Decrease in cash received from investments

Decrease in cash paid for other expenses 13

Increase in Federal and state income tax payments 18
Other amounts not individually significant net

Cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31 2012 91

The reduction in premium receipts reflected lower premium volume in 2012 exclusive of volume decline related to

two-year term policies and volume increase related to tail policies The premium from two-year term policies is

included in gross written premium in the period in which the policy is written but has little effect on timing of premium

receipts since half of the written amount is billed in the second term Tail policies are typically collected in the period

written

Reinsurance contracts are generally for premiums written in specific annual period but absent commutation

agreement remain in effect until all claims under the contract have been resolved Some contracts require annual

settlements while others require settlement only after number of
years

have elapsed thus the amounts paid can vary

widely from period to period

The timing of our net loss payments varies from period to period because the process for resolving claims is complex

and occurs at an uneven pace depending upon the circumstances of the individual claim The increase in loss payments

for 2012 primarily reflected greater number of claims resolved with large indemnity payments portion of which was

recovered under existing reinsurance agreements The additional loss payments were not isolated to any one state or to

any specific risk groups Loss payments made during 2012 were included in the data considered by our actuaries and by

our Management in determining their best estimate of losses incurred during 2012
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We are party to certain contracts that involve claims handling but do not transfer insurance risk As required by GAAP
receipts and disbursements for these contracts are not considered as receipts of premium or payments of losses but

rather are considered as deposits received or returned These contracts do not constitute significant business activity

for us

The decrease in cash received for investments primarily reflected the decrease in net investment income as well as

timing differences of interest receipts between periods

The decrease in cash paid for other expenses was principally attributable to non-recurring payments ofAPS integration

costs primarily compensation-related during 2011

The net increase in tax payments during 2012 was attributable to

$7.4 million increase in the final payments for the prior fiscal year partially offset by $4.8 million decrease in

estimated tax payments for the current year

There were no Federal tax refunds in 2012 In 2011 refunds approximated $17.3 million

GAAP requires that excess tax benefits recognized when shares are issued under stock compensation plans reduce

operating cash flows and increase financing cash flows in the period the shares are issued Such excess tax

benefits were $5.3 million greater in 2012 as compared to 2011

The above increases to tax related outflows were offset by

Payments of $5.9 million made in 2011 for the 2008 and 2007 tax years as result of federal tax return

audits conducted by the Internal Revenue Service The payments reduced tax liabilities recognized prior

to January 2011 and did not increase or decrease 2011 tax expense

reduction in state and other tax payments of $1.8 million

Operating cash flows for 2011 and 2010 compare as follows

Operating

In mi/lions Cash Flow

Cash provided by operating activities year ended December 31 2010 139

Increase decrease in operating cash flows during 2011

Decrease in premium receipts exclusive of APS 22
Increase in payments to reinsurers exclusive of APS

Decrease in losses paid net of reinsurance recoveries exclusive ofAPS 27

Increase in Federal and state income tax payments

Cash flows attributable to operations acquired from APS exclusive of tax payments or refUnds 25

Other amounts not individually significant net

Cash provided by operating activities year ended December 312011 159

The decline in premium receipts is primarily attributable to reduced premium volume Exclusive of two-year term

policies and the business acquired from APS gross written premiums were lower in 2011

Reinsurance contracts are generally for premiums written in specific annual period but absent commutation

agreement remain in effect until all claims under the contract have been resolved Some contracts require annual

settlements while others require settlement only after number of years have elapsed thus the amounts paid can vary

widely from period to period

The timing of our net loss payments varies from period to period because the
process

for resolving claims is complex

and occurs at an uneven pace depending upon the circumstances of the individual claim Net loss payments are also

subject to reinsurance recoveries under existing reinsurance agreements

The increase in tax payments primarily reflects

An increase in estimated tax payments of $16.1 million during 2011 as compared to 2010

Payments of $5.9 million made in 2011 for the 2008 and 2007 tax years as result of Federal tax return audits

conducted by the Internal Revenue Service as previously discussed

The above increases to tax payments were partially offset by greater Federal tax refunds in 2011 of $15.9 million

Principally refunds from capital loss carry backs were higher in 2011 than in 2010 and refund associated with

the APS 2010 pre-acquisition period was received in 2011
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Operating cash flows for 2010 and 2009 compare as follows

Operating

In millions Cash Flow

Cash provided by operating activities year ended December 31 2009 75

Increase decrease in operating cash flows during 2010

Decrease in premium receipts 14
Decrease in payments to reinsurers 22

Decrease in losses paid net of reinsurance recoveries 41

Increase due to prior year litigation payment 21

Increase in Federal and state income tax payments

Other amounts not individually significant net

Cash provided by operating activities year ended December 312010 139

The decrease in premium receipts reflects the decline in gross written premium exclusive of the premium decline that

is attributable to policies written on two-year term Additionally approximately $3 million of the decrease in premium

receipts is due to premium credits granted to PICA policyholders as part of the acquisition

Reinsurance contracts are generally for premiums written in specific annual period but absent commutation

agreement remain in effect until all claims under the contract have been resolved Some contracts require annual

settlements while others require settlement only after number of years have elapsed thus the amounts paid can vary

widely from period to period

The decrease in losses reflects lower paid losses at our subsidiaries other than PICA of approximately $69 million offset

by an increase in PICA losses paid of $18 million The PICA increase is principally due to an additional three months of

PICA activity in 2010 The timing of our loss payments varies from period to period because the process for resolving

claims is complex and occurs at an uneven pace depending upon the circumstances of the individual claim Net loss

payments are also subject to reinsurance recoveries under existing reinsurance agreements

In 2009 we paid judgment in favor of Columbia Hospital for Women Medical Center Inc that was entered against

our subsidiary ProAssurance National Capital Insurance Company PRA National prior to our acquisition of PRA
National We established liability related to the judgment and accrued post trial interest at the time PRA National was

acquired in 2005

The increase in tax payments primarily reflects

An increase in estimated tax payments for the current year of $17.0 million which includes payments for pre

acquisition taxes of $3 .4 million related to the acquisition ofAPS

decrease in the final payments for the prior fiscal year of $13.0 million

$1.6 million increase in the excess tax benefit expected from the issuance of shares under stock compensation

arrangements

An increase in state and other tax payments of $2.3 million

These increases to tax payments were offset by an increase in Federal tax refunds received in 2010 of $4.2

million

Losses

The following table known as the Analysis of Reserve Development presents information over the preceding ten years

regarding the payment of our losses as well as changes to the development of our estimates of losses during that time period

As noted in the table ProAssurance has completed various acquisitions over the ten year period which have affected original

and re-estimated gross and net reserve balances as well as loss payments

The table includes losses on both direct and an assumed basis and is net of anticipated reinsurance recoverables The

gross liability for losses before reinsurance as shown on the balance sheet and the reconciliation of that gross liability to

amounts net of reinsurance are reflected below the table We do not discount our reserve for losses to present value

Information presented in the table is cumulative and accordingly each amount includes the effects of all changes in amounts

for prior years The table presents the development of our balance sheet reserve for losses it does not present accident
year or

policy year development data Conditions and trends that have affected the development of liabilities in the past may not

necessarily occur in the future Accordingly it is not appropriate to extrapolate future redundancies or deficiencies based on this

table
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The following may be helpful in understanding the Analysis of Reserve Development

The line entitled Reserve for losses undiscounted and net of reinsurance recoverables reflects our reserve for

losses and loss adjustment expense less the receivables from reinsurers each as reported in our consolidated

financial statements at the end of each year the Balance Sheet Reserves

The section entitled Cumulative net paid as of reflects the cumulative amounts paid as of the end of each

succeeding year with respect to the previously recorded Balance Sheet Reserves

The section entitled Re-estimated net liability as of reflects the re-estimated amount of the liability previously

recorded as Balance Sheet Reserves that includes the cumulative amounts paid and an estimate of additional liability

based upon claims experience as of the end of each succeeding year the Net Re-estimated Liability

The line entitled Net cumulative redundancy deficiency reflects the difference between the previously recorded

Balance Sheet Reserve for each applicable year and the Net Re-estimated Liability relating thereto as of the end of

the most recent fiscal year
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2002 2003

Analysis of Reserve Development

In thousands

December 31

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2012

1896143 2236385 2232596 2111112 2359511 Z134664 2000114 1863349

2011

242808

503271

691349

825139

901644

937984

959870

331295

600500

181347

897814

955728

995921

312348

550042

696113

777114

833671

278655

468277

584610

666105

291654

476682

614369

215957

1925581

1615603

1362538

1098941

1098891

1099292

1109692

1108539

1133343

1121440

1079640

1048853

1030946

1007235

1298458

1289744

1282920

1259802

1250110

1230105

1156614

1111795

1079383

1041880

1544981

1522000

1479773

1418802

1340061

1234223

1158590

1092186

1040035

Iteaeretor losses tmdiseounted and net

oftSsuranee recoverables
1098941 1298458 1544981

Cumulative net paid as of
264597 300703

OneTear Later 224318 200314 199611

491657
Two Years Later 393378 378036 384050

Three Years Later 528774 526867 51US$

Four Years Later 635724 680470 728582

Five TeassLater 749300 194810 805270

Six Years Later 824761 852985 861512

Seven Years Later 863781 94355 888065

Eight Years Later 894599 915964 901867

flute Years Later 909811 907805

Ten Years Later 920119

ltrsestim$ed net liability as oft

2232596 2111112 2136664 2000114
EndofYear

1896743 2236385

1810199 1728016
One yjug 1860451 2131400 2041344 1903812

1665832 1543650
Two Years Later

1764076 1955903

Three Years Later
1615125 1741459 1596508 1383189

1548605 1357126 1154552
Four Years Later

1450275

Five Years Later
1330039 1366793 1185051

1249234
SixYearsLater

1225114

Seven Years Later
1148102

Eight Years Later

Nine Years Later

Ten Years Later

593014 212038
Net cumulative rethmdancy deficiency 91703 256578 504946 748641 987151 1047545 956560

2422230 2414100 2247772

Original gross liability end of year 1494875 1634749 1818635 2224436 2607148 2559707 2379468

268356 262659 277436 247658
Less reinsurance recoverables 395934 336291 273654 327693 370763 327111

2111112 2159571 2136664 2000114

Original net liability end of year 1098941 1298458 1544981 1896743 2236385

orossre-estimatedliabllity-latest 1309467 1343755 1331511 1486186 1631266 1455752 $1339643 1533593

185091 171055

1729696 1926300

186046 198224
Re-estimated reinsuranee reeoverables 302229 301875 291476 338084 382032 270701

1362538 1543650 1728076
Netreestimated liability

latest 1007238 1041880 $1040035 3148102 1249234 1185051 1154552

888637 684404 321472
Gross cumulative redundancy deficiency 185408 290994 487124 738250 97582 1103955

Reserves for 2005 and thereafter include gross and net reserves acquired in 2005 business combinations of $183.2 million and $139.7 million respectively

million and $171.2 million respectively
Reserves for 2006 and thereafter include gross and net reserves acquired in 2006 business combinations of

and $163.9 million respectively
Reserves for 2009 and thereafter include gross and net reserves acquired in 2009 business combinations of $169.4

and $82.2 million respectively
Reserves for 2010 and thereafter include gross and net reserves acquired in 2010 business combinations of $88.1

and $22.5 million respectively
Reserves for 2012 include gross and net reserves acquired in 2012 business combinations of $25.3 million
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In each year reflected in the table we have estimated our reserve for losses utilizing the management and actuarial

processes discussed in Critical Accounting Estimates Factors that have contributed to the variation in loss development are

primarily related to the extended period of time required to resolve professional liability claims and include the following

The MPL legal environment deteriorated in the late 1990s and severity began to increase at greater pace than

anticipated in our rates and reserve estimates We addressed the adverse severity trends through increased rates stricter

underwriting and modifications to claims handling procedures The expectation of increased claim severity was also

considered in establishing our initial reserves for subsequent years

These adverse severity trends later moderated with that moderation becoming more pronounced beginning in 2009

We have been cautious in giving full recognition to indications that the pace of severity increase has slowed but have

given measured recognition of the improving trends in our reserve estimates as discussed more fully under Critical

Accounting EstimatesReserve for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses reserve for losses or reserve The

favorable development has been most pronounced for years 2004 to 2008 since the initial reserves for these accident

years were established prior to substantial indication that severity trends were moderating We give stronger

recognition to lower severity trend as time elapses and the percentage of closed claims increases

general decline in claim frequency has also been contributor to favorable loss development significant portion

of our policies through 2003 were issued on an occurrence basis and smaller portion of our ongoing business results

from the issuance of extended reporting endorsements which has occurrence-like exposure As claim frequency

declined the number of reported claims related to these coverages was less than originally expected

Activity in our net reserve for losses during 2012 2011 and 2010 is summarized below

Year Ended December31

i/jo usandv 2012 201 2010

Balance beginning of year 2247772 2414100 2422230

Less receivable from reinsurers 247658 277436 262659

Net balance beginning of year 2000114 2136664 2159571

Reserves acquired from acquisitions 22464 82225

Incurred related to

Current year 451951 488152 455105

Prior years 272038 325865 233990

Total incurred 179913 162287 221115

Paid related to

Current
year 38439 34240 34593

Prior years 300703 264597 291654

Total paid 339142 298837 326247

Net balance end of year 1863349 2000114 2136664

Plus receivable from reinsurers 191645 247658 277436

Balance end of year 2054994 2247772 2414100

At December 31 2012 our gross reserve for losses included case reserves of approximately $1.1 billion and IBNR

reserves of approximately $0.9 billion Our consolidated gross reserve for losses on GAAP basis exceeds the combined gross

reserves of our insurance subsidiaries on statutory basis by approximately $0.1 billion which is principally due to the portion

of the GAAP reserve for losses that is reflected for statutory accounting purposes as unearned premiums These unearned

premiums are applicable to extended reporting endorsements tail coverage issued without premium charge upon death

disability or retirement of an insured who meets certain qualifications

Reinsurance

We use reinsurance to provide capacity to write larger limits of liability to provide protection against losses in excess of

policy limits and to stabilize underwriting results in
years

in which higher losses occur The purchase of reinsurance does not

relieve us from the ultimate risk on our policies but it does provide reimbursement from the reinsurer for certain losses paid by

us

We generally reinsure professional liability risks under annual treaties pursuant to which the reinsurer
agrees to assume

all or portion of all risks that we insure above our individual risk retention of $1 million
per claim up to the maximum

individual limit offered Historically the professional liability per claim retention level has varied between 90% and 100% of

the first $1 million and between 0% and 5% of claims exceeding those levels depending on the
coverage year

and the state in
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which business was written Large professional liability risks that are above the limits of our basic reinsurance treaties are

reinsured on facultative basis whereby the reinsurer agrees to insure particular risk up to designated limit

Our primary reinsurance agreements are negotiated and renewed annually at October There was no significant change

in the cost or structure of the agreements renewed on October 2012 other than we increased the upper limit of our coverage

from $16 million to $26 million The pricing structure of the additional
coverage

is consistent with prior pricing for excess

coverage

Our risk retention level is dependent upon numerous factors including our risk tolerance and the capital we have to

support it the price and availability of reinsurance volume of business level of experience with particular set of claims and

our analysis of the potential underwriting results We purchase reinsurance from number of companies to mitigate

concentrations of credit risk We utilize reinsurance brokers to assist us in the placement of our reinsurance coverage and in the

analysis of the credit quality of our reinsurers We base our reinsurance buying decisions on an evaluation of the then-current

financial strength rating and stability of prospective reinsurers However the financirLl strength of our reinsurers and their

corresponding ability to pay us may change in the future due to forces or events we cannot control or anticipate

The following table identifies those reinsurers for which our recoverables for both paid and unpaid claims net of

amounts due to the reinsurer and our prepaid balances are aggregately $10 million or more as of December 31 2012

Domiciliary A.M Best Net Amounts Due

Reinsurer Country Company Rating From Reinsurer

In thousands

Hannover Rueckversicherung AG Germany $31224

Aspen Insurance UK Ltd United Kingdom $21481

Transatlantic Reinsurance Company United States $16727

General Reinsurance Corporation United States A-I- $12123

Taxes

In December 2012 we received Notice of Proposed Adjustment NOPA from the IRS which disallows substantial

portion of the loss and loss adjustment expense deductions taken for the 2009 and 200 fiscal years and would thereby increase

our current tax liability by approximately $130 million We believe that our loss and loss adjustment expense deduction was

computed in manner consistent with tax law our past practices and the practices of other liability insurers and we have

begun the process of contesting the IRS position The proposed adjustment represents temporary timing difference and

impacts the timing of deductions rather than their allowance and would shift tax from deferred to current tax expense
but

would not increase total tax expense Additional tax payments that might be made as result of the NOPA would come out of

our cash and investments and could impact future investment earnings but except for interest on past-due taxes if any will not

change recorded tax expense We have considered this matter in establishing our liability for uncertain tax matters We do not

know when final resolution will be reached with the IRS or the extent if any to which we might be required to accelerate our

tax payments or the amount of interest if any we might be required to pay In January 2013 we made $20 million protective

tax payment to the IRS in order to reduce interest assessments should the IRS position be fully or partially sustained

Litigation

We are involved in various legal actions related to insurance policies and claims handling including but not limited to

claims asserted against us by policyholders These types of legal actions arise in the ordinary course of business and in

accordance with GAAP for insurance entities are generally considered as part of our loss reserving process which is

described in detail under Critical Accounting Estimates Reserve for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses reserve for

losses or reserve We also have other direct actions against the company which we evaluate and account for as part of our

other liabilities For these corporate legal actions we evaluate each case separately arid establish what we believe is an

appropriate reserve based on GAAP guidance related to contingent liabilities

41



Table of Contents

In vesting Activities and Related ash Flows

Investment Exposures

The following table provides summarized information regarding our investments as of December 31 2012

Included in Carrying Value

Carrying Unrealized Unrealized Average Total

111 thOUSWIdV Value Gains Losses Rating Investments

Fixed Maturities

Government

U.S Treasury 205857 14266 51 AA 5%
U.S Government-sponsored enterprise 56947 4837 AA

Total government 262804 19103 51 AA 7%

State and Municipal Bonds

Pie-refunded 154822 9070 AA 4%

Genera obligation 374429 27007 AA 10 0/0

Special revenue 690728 49252 86 AA 18%

otal state and municipal bonds 1219979 85.329 94 AA 31

Corporate Debt

Financial institutions 425286 25290 108 II

communications 100.834 6272 BBB 3%

Utilities/Energy 279772 21.656 335 BBB 7%

Industrial 653478 42529 1094 BBB 17%

Other 11.154 440 1%
Total corporate debt 1470524 96187 1543 A- 37%

Securities backed by

Agency mortgages 275670 16389 46 AA 7%

Non-agency mortgages 6.791 269 24 1%
Subprime home equity loans 7304 75 580 BBB 1%
Alt-Amortgages 7389 412 140 B- 1%
Agency commercial mortgages 59464 2255 25 AA 2%
Other commercial mortgages 74106 5049 AAA 2%
Credit card loans 17967 562 AAA 1%
Automobile loans 33622 286 20 AAA

Other asset loans 12379 280 AA 1%
Total asset-backed securities 494692 25577 841 AA 13

Total fixed maturities 3447999 226196 2529 88%

Equities

Financial 70900 2%

Utilities/Energy 31383

Consumer oriented 51100

Technology 11495 l0/o

Industrial 18200 1%
All Other 19540 1%

Total equities 202618 5%
Short-Term 71.737 2%
Business-owned life insurance BOLl 52414

Investment in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries

Investment in tax credit partnerships 87310 2%

Investment in LPs 33739

Total investment in unconsolidated

subsidiaries 121049 3%

Other investments

FHLB capital stock 4278 1%
Investments in LP/LLCs 25092

Other 1715 1%
Total other investments 31085

Total Investments 3926902 226196 2529 100%

weighted average rating is calculated using available ratings from Standard Poors Moods and Fitch The table presents the Standard Poors

rating that is equivalent to the computed erage

ftc rating presented is the Standard Poors rating rather than the average The Moodys rating is Aaa and the Fitch rating is AAA
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detailed listing of our investment holdings as of December 31 2012 is presented in an Investor Supplement we make

available in the Investor Relations section of our website www.proassurance.com or directly at www.proassurance.com/

investorrelations/supplemental.aspx

We manage our investments to ensure that we will have sufficient liquidity to meet our obligations taking into

consideration the timing of cash flows from our investments including interest payments dividends and principal payments as

well as the expected cash flows to be generated by our operations In addition to the interest and dividends we will receive we

anticipate that between $40 million and $70 million of our investments will mature or be paid down each quarter of the next

year and become available if needed to meet our cash flow requirements The primaly outflow of cash at our insurance

subsidiaries is related to paid losses and operating costs including income taxes The payment of individual claims cannot be

predicted with certainty therefore we rely upon the history of paid claims in estimating the timing of future claims payments

To the extent that we may have an unanticipated shortfall in cash we may either liquidate securities or borrow funds under

existing borrowing arrangements through our credit facility and the FHLB system In December 2012 we elected to partially

fund our acquisition of Medmarc by borrowing $125 million from our existing credit facility on fully secured basis as this

allowed us to continue to hold rather than liquidate certain higher yielding securities At December 31 2012 $25 million of the

credit facility remains available for use Given the relatively short duration of our investments we do not foresee shortfall

that would require us to meet operating cash needs through additional borrowings Additional information regarding the credit

facility is detailed in Note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Our investment portfolio continues to be primarily composed of high quality fixed income securities with approximately

93% of our fixed maturities being investment grade securities as determined by national rating agencies The weighted average

effective duration of our fixed maturity securities at December 31 2012 was 3.8 years the weighted average effective duration

of our fixed maturity securities combined with our short-term securities was 3.7 years

The carrying value of our tax credit partnerships at December31 2012 2011 and 2010 was approximately $87.3 million

$86.8 million and $60.2 million respectively The carrying value reflected our total commitments to the partnerships less

amortization since our initial investment These investments are comprised of separate limited partner interests designed to

generate investment returns by providing tax benefits to investors in the form of project operating losses and tax credits The

related properties are principally low income housing properties We fund these investments based on funding schedules

maintained by the partnerships During 2012 2011 and 2010 we funded approximately $35.7 million $29.2 million and $13.6

million respectively Approximately $20.5 million $49.3 million and $46.8 million of our total commitments had not yet been

funded as of December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

During 2012 2011 and 2010 we increased our investments in LPs/LLCs that are investment fund interests rather than tax

credit partnership interests by approximately $18.5 million $4.7 million and $15.4 million respectively As of December 31

2012 we had unfunded commitments to these LPs/LLCs of $81.9 million The remaining commitments will be paid over

years as requested by the fund managers

European Debt Exposure

We have no direct European sovereign debt exposure We have indirect exposure through our investments in debt

securities and through our reinsurance receivables Issuers of our debt or equity securities and our reinsurers may hold

European sovereign debt or have counterparty exposure to European banks or European corporations or may have reliance on

Eurocurrency denominated business Should Europe suffer severe recession or the Euro-zone or Eurocurrency fail issuers

may suffer credit or profitability losses or may experience credit downgrade by rating agencies
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Our debt securities at December 31 2012 included $121.9 million 3% of our total investments where the issuer is

domiciled in Europe or the underlying revenue stream supporting the security is European Of our European issuers we believe

those in the financial sector are most likely to suffer loss in the event of European economic crisis summary of these debt

securities by country follows country designation is based on the underlying revenue stream of the security

European Debt Exposure by Country and Industry Type

Total Financial Industrial Energy

In millions Exposure Institutions Utilities Communication

United Kingdom 51.8 19.3 22.6 9.9

Netherlands 23.3 5.1 6.3 11.9

France 18.0 3.2 0.9 13.9

Switzerland 7.9 7.9

Luxembourg 5.7 2.1 3.6

Germany 3.0 1.0 2.0

Ireland 2.9 0.8 2.1

Sweden 2.6 2.6

Norway 2.6 1.3 1.3

Spain 2.2 2.2

Denmark 1.9 1.9

121.9 43.1 33.2 45.6

Our investments outside of Europe and particularly our financial sector investments could also be negatively affected by

significant European economic crisis At December 31 2012 we held non-European fmancial sector debt securities of

approximately $382.2 million

Our reinsurers typically operate globally and have large investment portfolios which may be linked directly or indirectly

to the European economy As of December 31 2012 two of our largest reinsurers were domiciled in Europe our net

receivables with these reinsurers totaled approximately $53 million Net amounts due from reinsurers approximated $164.0

million at December 31 2012

We do not currently write insurance policies in Europe and do not have any notes or accounts receivable from European

issuers exclusive of our reinsurance receivables

Acquisitions

Effective January 2013 we acquired Medmarc through sponsored demutualization Medmarc is an underwriter of

both products liability insurance for medical technology and life sciences companies and legal professional liability insurance

We also acquired Nevada reciprocal exchange IND on November 30 2012 through conversion from reciprocal to stock

insurance company The total cost of these transactions approximated $183.6 million including the funding of approximately

$7.5 million in future policy credits Funds for the transaction completed January 2013 were deposited with conversion

trustee on December 27 2012 the deposit was included in Other Assets on our December 31 2012 Consolidated Balance

Sheet Net premiums earned for the acquired entities for the year ended December 31 2012 that was not included in

ProAssusances 2012 results totaled approximately $50.5 million of which $9.4 million related to medical professional liability

coverages $32.0 million related to medical and life sciences corporate liability coverages and $9.1 million related to legal

professional liability coverages See Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information

regarding these acquisitions

On November 30 2010 we acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of American Physicians Service Group Inc MPL
provider principally insuring physicians in the state of Texas in transaction valued at $237 million including cash paid of

$233 million and liabilities assumed of $4 million
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Financing Activities and Related Cash Flows

Treasury Shares

Treasury share activity for 2012 2011 and 2010 was as follows

inthousanth 2012 2011 2010

Treasury shares at the beginning of the period 7996 7332 3623

Shares reissued in conjunction with stock split 7729

Shares reacquired at cost of $21 million and $106 million respectively 682 3709

Shares reissued to the ProAssurance 201 Employee Stock Ownership

Plan fair value of $1 million and $0.7 million respectively 23 18

Treasury shares at the end of the period 244 7996 7332

At December 31 2012 approximately $135.1 million of Board authorizations for the repayment of debt or repurchase of

common shares remain available for use

Shareholder Dividends

In December 2012 the Board of Directors of ProAssurance declared and paid special dividend totaling $154.1 million

The Board also declared regular quarterly cash dividends during 2012 totaling $38.4 million all of which were paid in 2012

During 2011 the Board declared two regular quarterly cash dividends totaling $15.3 million The fourth quarter dividend of

$7.7 million was paid in January 2012 The liability for unpaid dividends at December 31 2011 was included in Other

Liabilities Any decision to pay future cash dividends is subject to the Boards final determination after comprehensive review

of fmancial performance future expectations and other factors deemed relevant by the Board

Debt

During 2011 we entered into revolving credit agreement that allows us to borrow up to $150 million for general

corporate purposes including but not limited to short-term working capital share epurchases as authorized by the Board and

support for other activities we enter into in the normal course of business In September 2012 we amended the agreement and

extended its expiration date to April 15 2016 During December 2012 we elected to partially fund our upcoming acquisition of

Medmarc by borrowing $125 million under the agreement on fully secured basis which allowed us to continue to hold rather

than liquidate certain higher yielding securities The borrowing is first repayable in March 2013 but repayment is not required

until expiration of the credit agreement

During 2012 we used $57.7 million of available funds to repay long-term debt and terminate related interest rate swap

We recognized loss on the debt repayment of $2.2 million

We are also member of the FHLB Through membership we have access to secured cash advances which can be used

for liquidity purposes or other operational needs To date we have not established FHLB line of credit or materially utilized

our membership

ProAssurance is currently in compliance with all covenants associated with the revolving credit agreement Additional

information regarding our debt is provided in Note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements/Guarantees

We have no significant off-balance sheet arrangements or guarantees
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Contractual Obligations

schedule of our non-cancellable contractual obligations at December 31 2012 follows

Payments due by period

Less than More than

In thou condo Total year 1-3 years 3-5 years years

Loss and loss adjustment expenses 2054994 523082 647611 415154 469H

Revohing credit agreement obligations

including interest 128492 1063 2125 125304

Operating lease obligations 16321 2710 4557 3665 53
LPLLC commitments 102469 59207 42478 784

Total 2302276 586062 696771 544907 47453

We believe that our operating cash flow and funds maturing from our investment portfolio are adequate to meet our

contractual obligations

The above table presumes that the current borrowing under our revolving credit agreement remains outstanding until

expiration of the agreement on April 15 2016 and that no additional amounts will be borrowed under the facility Additional

borrowings could occur or we could choose to repay the current borrowing at some earlier time For more information

regarding the credit facility see Note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The anticipated payout of loss and loss adjustment expenses
is based upon our historical payout patterns Both the timing

and amount of these payments may vary from the payments indicated Our operating lease obligations are primarily for the

rental of office space and office equipment
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Overview of ResultsYears Ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Net income and Operating income non-GAAP financial measure see reconciliation below were as follows

Year Ended

December 31

fin nllwn.c xccpt pr harc Iatu 2012 2011

Net income 275.5 287.1

Operating income 257.2 278.5

Net income per diluted share 4.46 4.65

Operating income
per

diluted share 4.16 4.52

Results from the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 compare as follows

Revenues

Net premiums earned decreased during 2012 by approximately $14.8 million or 2.6% The decrease principally reflects

the effects of competitive market place but also reflected net decrease of approximately $1.9 million related to ceded

premium owed to reinsurers for prior year coverages

Our net investment result which includes both net investment income and earnings from unconsolidated subsidiaries

decreased $2.6 million or 2.0% Net investment income decreased during 2012 primarily due to lower yields on our fixed

income portfolio and lower
average

fixed income investment balances Approximately $0.8 million of the decrease is due to

increased amortization of tax credit investments in 2012

Net realized investment gains in 2012 were approximately $22.9 million higher than in 2011 The improvement was

principally attributable to our equity trading portfolio but also reflected additional gains from sales of fixed maturity securities

and lower impairment losses in 2012

Other income decreased by $6.5 million in 2012 The decrease is primarily attributable to $4.9 million of other income in

2011 that resulted from the confidential settlement of litigation with service provider

Expenses

Current accident year net losses decreased by $36.2 million or 7.4% in 2012 as compared to 2011 The decline was

principally attributable to reduction in the number of insured risks but also reflected lower expected losses for our death

disability and retirement coverages and the effect of commutation recorded in 2011 We reduced net losses by $272.0 million

and $325.9 million in 2012 and 2011 respectively as result of our review of our estimate of net losses incurred for prior

accident years

Underwriting policy acquisition and operating expenses
decreased by $0.8 million or 0.6% in 2012 as compared to 2011

which reflected lower costs associated with the operations we acquired from APS offset by additional expense due to recently

closed merger transactions higher compensation costs and the effect of adopting new FASB guidance regarding policy

acquisition costs

We recognized losses of $2.2 million in 2012 related to the repayment of the 2019 Note Payable which was carried at fair

value

Ratios

Our current accident year net loss ratio decreased 4.2 percentage points in 2012 due to changes in the mix of insured

risks Our calendar year net loss ratio was 32.7% for 2012 as compared to 28.7% for 2011 with the increase reflecting the

emergence of smaller amount of favorable development in 2012

Our underwriting expense ratio increased 0.6 percentage points in 2012 prmciLpally reflecting the effect of lower net

premiums earned in 2012

Our operating ratio increased by 4.8 percentage points in 2012 reflecting higher net loss and
expense

ratios and lower

investment ratio in 2012

Return on equitywas 12.4% in 2012 and 14.3% in 2011
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Book Value per Share

Our book value per share at December 31 2012 was $36.85 compared to $35.42 at December 31 2011 The increase

primarily reflected the effect of our 2012 comprehensive income partially offset by dividends declared during 2012 which

reduced our book value by $3.13 per share Due to the size of our Shareholders Equity approximately $2.3 billion at

December 31 2012 the growth rate of our book value per share may slow The past growth rates of our book value per share

do not necessarily predict similar future results

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Operating income is non-GAAP financial measure that is widely used to evaluate the performance of insurance entities

Operating income excludes the after-tax effects of net realized investment gains or losses guaranty fund assessments debt

retirement gain or loss and the effect of confidential settlements that do not reflect normal operating results We believe

operating income presents useful view of the performance of our insurance operations but should be considered in

conjunction with net income computed in accordance with GAAP

The following table is reconciliation of Net income to Operating income

Year Ended December31

Un thousands xetpr per chare data 2012 20
Net income 275470 287096

Items excluded in the calculation of operating income

Gain loss on extinguishment of debt 2163

Net realized investment gains losses 28863 5994

Guaranty fund assessments recoupments 345 66
Effect of confidential settlements net 1694 7143

Pre-tax effect of exclusions 28049 13203

Tax effect at 35/o 9817 4621

Operating income 257238 278514

Per diluted common share

Net income 4.46 4.65

Effect of exclusions 0.30 0.13

Operating income per diluted common share 4.16 4.52
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Results of OperationsYear Ended December 31 2012 Compared to Year Ended December 31 2011

Selected consolidated financial data for each period is summarized in the table below

in ihouiinIi i/i IzJri ilutai

Revenues

Net premiums earned

Net investment income

Equity in earnings loss of unconsolidated subsidiaries

Net investment result

Net realized investment gains losses

Other income

Total re enucs

Expenses

Losses and loss adjustment expenses

Reinsurance recoveries

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses

Underwriting policy acquisition and operating expenses

lnterest expense

Loss on extinguishment of debt

Total expenses

Year Ended December31

2012 2011 Change

550664 565415 14751

136094 140956 4862

6873 9147 2274

129221 131809 2588

28863 5994 22869

7106 13566 6460

715854 716784 930

161726 151270 10456

18187 11017 7170

179913 162287 17626

135631 136421 790

2181 3478 1297

2163 2163

319888 302186 17702

Income before income taxes

Income taxes

395966 414598 18632

120496 127502 7006

Net income 275470 287096 11625

Earnings per share

Basic

Diluted

4.49 4.70 0.21

446 465 019

Net loss ratio

Underwriting expense ratio

Combined ratio

Operating ratio

Tax ratio

Return on equity

32.7% 28.7% 4.0

24.4% 23.8% 0.6

57.1% 52.5% 4.6

32.4% 27.6% 4.8

30.4% 30.8% 04
12.4% 14.3% 1.9

In all tables that follow the abbreviation nm indicates that the percentage change is not meaningful
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Premiums Written

Changes in our premium volume are driven by four primary factors our retention of existing business the

premium charged for business that is renewed which is affected by rates charged and by the amount and type of coverage an

insured chooses to purchase the timing of premium written through multi-period policies and the amount of new

business we generate The professional liability market remains competitive with some competitors choosing to compete

primarily on price

Gross ceded and net premiums written were as follows

Year Ended December31

in rhn.sandci 2012 201 hange

Gross premiums written $536431 565895 29.464 5.2%

Ceded premiums written 8133 7388 745 10 1%

Net premiums written $528298 558507 30209 5.4%

Gross Premiums Written

Gross premiums written by component were as follows

Year Ended December31

2011 ChangeIn fIcni.cifldS 2012

Gross premiums written

Physician traditional term policies 403429 428928 25.499 5.9%

Physician two-year term policies 13081 22253 9172 41.2%

Total Physician 416510 451181 34671 7.7%

Non-physician healthcare providers 42864 45641 2.777 6.1%

Hospital and facility 28259 28088 171 0.6%

Other 18778 17.961 817 4.5%

Non-continuing 626 2078 1.452 69.9%

Tail coverage premiums all policy types 29394 20946 8.448 40.3%

Total 536431 565895 29.464 5.2%

We offer two- year term policies to our physician insureds in one selected jurisdiction The premium

associated with both years is included in written premium in the period the policy is written comparison

of gross written premium between successive years reflect volume differences that have no effect on

earned premium comparison to 2010 is more meaningful gross
written premium for two-year term

policies in 2010 was $10.9 million

As compared to 2011 physician premiums declined in 2012 The expected timing differences associated with two-year

policies accounted for more than 25% of the total physician premium decrease

Our retention rate for our standard physician business was 90% for 2012 as compared to 89% for 2011 We calculate our

retention rate as retained premium divided by all premium subject to renewal Retention rates are affected by number of

factors We may lose insureds to competitors or to alternative insurance mechanisms such as risk retention groups or self-

insurance entities often when physicians join hospitals or large group practices or due to pricing or other issues We may
choose not to renew an insured as result of our underwriting evaluation Insureds may also terminate coverage because they

have left the practice of medicine for various reasons principally for retirement but also for personal reasons or due to

disability or death

Charged rates for our renewed physician business averaged 1% higher than the expiring premiums during 2012 Our

charged rates include the effects of filed rates surcharges and discounts Despite competitive pressures we continue to base our

rates on expected losses as indicated by our historical loss data and available industry loss data We are committed to rate

structure that will allow us to fulfill our obligations to our insureds while generating competitive returns for our shareholders

New physician business written in 2012 was approximately $9 million

Our non-physician healthcare providers are primarily dentists chiropractors and allied health professionals The 2012

decline in premium volume for these coverages was primarily attributable to allied health professionals

Our hospital and facility premiums remained relatively flat in 2012

50



Table of Contents

Our other premiums are primarily legal professional liability premiums which increased in 2012 due to greater

number of insureds

Our non-continuing premiums consist of premiums derived from optometry ccverages
discontinued in early 2012 and

certain miscellaneous liability coverages
which were discontinued in 2010 but that continued to produce small amounts of

written premium in 2011 and 2012

We offer extended reporting endorsement or tail coverage to insureds that are discontinuing their claims-made
coverage

with us and we also periodically offer tail coverage through custom policies The amount of tail coverage premium written

can vary widely from period to period large portion of the increase in tail premium in 2012 was attributable to single

custom policy issued to hospital that terminated its self insurance arrangement

Ceded Premiums Written

Ceded premiums written compared as follows

Year Ended December31

in thoUsandS 2012 2011 C/ange

Primary reinsurance agreement current accident year 23213 25479 2.266 8.9%

Reduction in premiums owed under reinsurance agreements 34328 30.584 3744 12.2%

Ascension Health Certitude program 7308 5027 2.281 45.4%

Commutation 5.634 5.634 nrn

Other premiums ceded 11940 13100 1160 8.9%

Total ceded premiums written 8133 7.388 745 10 1%

Ceded premiums represent the amounts owed to our reinsurers for their assumption of portion of our losses The

ultimate amount owed under certain of our reinsurance agreements is variable and is determined by the loss experience of the

business ceded subject to minimums and maximums Losses incurred for our higher limit coverages are almost fully reinsured

and were estimated to be lower for the 2012 accident year than for the 2011 accident year As result our estimate of ceded

premium owed under our primary reinsurance agreements for the current accident year was lower in 2012

Many years may elapse before all losses recoverable under reinsurance agreement are known In the intervening

periods amounts owed are estimated Premiums ceded for the current period includes both our estimate of premiums owed

under reinsurance agreements of the current period and changes to our previous estimate of premiums owed under reinsurance

agreements of prior periods In both 2012 and 2011 we reduced our estimates of prior accident year gross losses within our

reinsured layers of coverage as well as the related reinsurance recoveries and premiums ceded

We share the risk of loss for policies written or renewed under the Ascension Health Ascension Certitude program with

an Ascension affiliate under quota share agreement Growth in the program increased ceded premium in 2012 as compared to

2011

During 2011 we commuted terminated certain of our reinsurance agreements with Colisee Re formerly AXA
Reassurance S.A in return for approximately $4.3 million in cash The commutation reduced Ceded Premium on both

written and an earned basis by $5.6 million and reduced Reinsurance Recoveries by approximately $4.0 million

We reinsure most of our MPL coverages under single reinsurance agreement that is renewed annually referred to as our

primary reinsurance agreement Professional liability offered to dentists allied health professionals certain smaller facilities as

well as higher limit MPL coverages were reinsured under separately negotiated contracts until October 2012 but thereafter

are covered by our primary reinsurance agreement Amounts due to reinsurers under these separate contracts are included along

with legal professional liability in the preceding table as Other premiums ceded
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Ceded Premiums Ratio

The principal components of the change in our ceded premiums ratio ceded premiums written as percentage of gross

premiums written are shown in the following table

Year Ended December31

2012 2011 Change

Ceded premiums ratio excluding other listed factors 6.7% 7.5% 0.8

Effect on ceded premiums ratio from

Reduction in premiums owed under reinsurance agreements 6.6% 6.1% 0.5

Ascension Certitude program 1.4% 1.0% 0.4

Commutation 1.1% 1.1

Ceded premiums ratio as reported 1.5% 1.3% 0.2

Net Premiums Earned

Net premiums earned were as follows

Year Ended December31

in ihiu.ianio 2012 2011 hang

Premiums earned 558316 571045 12729 2.2%

Premiums ceded 7652 5630 2022 35.9%

Net premiums earned 550664 565415 14.751 2.6%

Net premiums earned consist of gross premiums earned less the portion of earned premiums that we cede to our

reinsurers for their assumption of portion of our losses Because premiums are generally earned
pro rata over the entire policy

period fluctuations in premiums earned tend to lag those of premiums written Generally our policies carry term of one year

but as discussed above we renew certain policies with two-year term Tail
coverage premiums are generally 100% earned in

the period written because the policies insure only incidents that occurred in prior periods and are not cancellable Additionally

ceded premium changes due to commutations or changes to estimates of premiums owed under reinsurance agreements are

fully earned in the period of change

Premiums earned were lower in 2012 as compared to 2011 principally due to the pro-rata effect of lower non-tail

physician premiums written during the preceding twelve months partially offset by higher tail premiums written and earned in

2012

Components of the change in premiums ceded earned during 2012 are detailed in the following table

Ceded Premiums Earned

Increase Decrease
2012 versus 2011

Year Ended

in /nn.s.ani.i December

Primary reinsurance agreement current accident year 2576

Reduction in premiums owed under reinsurance agreements 3744

Ascension Health Certitude program 3063

Cornmutation 5.634

All other factors 355

Net increase decrease 2022

See discussions under Ceded Premiums Written for further information
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Net Investment Income Equity in Earninas Loss of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries Net Realized Investment Gains

Losses

Net Investment Income

Net investment income is primarily derived from the income earned by our fixed maturity securities and also includes

income from our short-term and cash equivalent investments dividend income from equity securities earnings from other

investments and increases in the cash surrender value of business owned life insurance contracts Investment fees and expenses

are deducted from investment income

Net investment income by investment category was as follows

Year Ended December31

2012 2011 Change1$ in iIlOU.aPldS

Fixed maturities $133088 140.897 7809

Equities 6947 1.808 /39

Short-tern investments 132 100 32

Other invested assets 528 2.712 2184
Business owned life insurance 2008 2.017

Investment fees and expenses 6609 65 78 3/
Net investment income $136094 140.956 4862

Fixed Maturities

As compared to 2011 earnings from fixed maturity investments declined in 2012 our average investment in fixed

maturities decreased by approximately 3% in 2012 In 2012 portion of the proceeds from sales and maturities of our fixed

maturities were not reinvested but instead were utilized for other corporate purposes which included payment of shareholder

dividends repayment of debt and partial funding of acquisitions Yields for our fixed maturity portfolio were generally lower in

2012 As securities matured were paid down or sold in order to maintain the asset quality and duration of our portfolio most

funds reinvested were at lower rates although we did add certain higher yielding fixed maturities to our portfolio in 2012 as

means of improving overall yields Yields for 2012 also reflected lower income from Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities of

$1.0 million Average yields for our fixed maturity securities during the years ended Iecember 31 2012 and 2011 were as

follows

Average income yield 9%

Average tax equivalent income yield 4.5%

Equities and Other Invested Assets

Income from our equity portfolio increased in 2012 as compared to 2011 and primarily reflects higher average investment

balances in 2012 portion of the increased investment is attributable to an interest ill private investment LLC classified as

part of Other investments during 2011 that was converted into publicly traded equity securities during 2012 The 2012 income

decline for Other invested assets was principally attributable to this conversion

5.5%

100%

32.0%

80.5%

0.4%

0.5%

3.4%

Year Ended December31

2012 2011

4.0%

4.6%
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Equity in Earnings Loss of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries

Equity in earnings loss of unconsolidated subsidiaries is derived from our investment interests accounted for under the

equity method Results were as follows

Year Ended December31

In thousands 2012 2011 change

Investment LPs 27$ 1077 1355

Business LLC interest 728 2479 1751

Tax credit partnerships 6423 5591 832

Equity in earnings loss of unconsolidated subsidiaries 6873 9147 2274

We hold interests in certain LPs that generate earnings from trading portfolios The performance of the LPs is affected by

the volatility of equity and credit markets

Our business LLC interest is non-controlling interest in an entity that began active business in 2011 We recognize

quarterly our allocable portion of the operating results reported by the LLC The entity was slower to produce positive

operating returns than initially anticipated and losses recognized in 2012 have reduced the carrying amount of our interest to

zero

Our tax credit investments are designed to generate investment returns by providing tax benefits to fund investors in the

form of project operating losses and tax credits Our tax credit partnerships reduced our tax expenses by approximately $10.0

million during the year ended December 31 2012 while we recognized $6.4 million of pre-tax amortization $4.2 million after

tax on these investments as noted in the table above

Non-GAAP Financial Measure Tax Equivalent Investment Result

We believe that to fully understand our investment returns it is important to consider the current tax benefits associated

with certain investments therefore we impute pro forma tax-equivalent investment result by adjusting the current tax benefit

into the amount of investment income taxable investment would need to produce to fairly compare to an investment with

preferential tax treatment We believe this better reflects the economics of our decision to invest in certain asset classes that are

either taxed at lower rates andlor result in reductions to our current federal income tax expense

Year Ended December31

In thousands 2012 2011

Net mvesunern income as reported for GAAP 136094 140956

Taxable equivalent adjustments calculated using the 35% federal statutory tax rate

State and municipal bonds 184S2 19949

BOLL 1081 1.086

Dividends received 1456 579

Pro forma tax-equivalent net investment income 157113 162570

Taxable equivalent adjustment calculated using the 35% federal statutory tax rate

Tax credit partnerships 15392 8698

Pro forma tax-equivalent equity in earnings loss of unconsolidated subsidiaries 8519 449

Pro fonna tax-equivalent investment results 165632 162121
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Net Realized Investment Gains Losses

The following table provides detailed information regarding our net realized investment gains losses

Year Ended December31

in t/lmLsafldv 2012 2011

Other-than-temporary impairment losses total

Residential mortgage-backed securities 557 782

Corporate debt 878 505
Other investments 131 3827

High yield asset-backed securities 75
Portion recognized in reclassified from Other Comprehensive Income

Residential mortgage-backed securities 201 823
Net impairment losses recognized in earnings 1767 6012
Gross realized gains available-for-sale securities 18645 14625

Gross realized losses available-for-sale securities 2076 1754
Net realized gains losses trading securities 1485 2212

Change in unrealized holding gains losses trading securities 12673 3188
Decrease increase in the fair value of liabilities carried at fair value 1245 ill

Other 1148

Net realized investment gains losses 28863 5994

All impairments of debt securities recognized during 2012 were credit-related

We recognized impairments of $0.1 million and $3.8 million during the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011

respectively related to an interest in an LLC classified as part of Other investments which we accounted for using the cost

method The LLC announced in 2011 that it planned to convert to publicly traded investment fund and we impaired the

investment to the NAV reported by the fund The conversion occurred during the second quarter of 2012

We substantially increased the size of our equity trading portfolio over the previous year Unrealized trading portfolio

gains reflect higher average balances in our portfolio and an overall improvement in stock market yields

Gains losses from changes in the fair value of liabilities were entirely attributable to our 2019 Note Payable and related

interest rate swap both of which we repaid in July 2012 For more information see Note and Note 10 of the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements

Other Income

Other Income is comprised primarily of commission and fee income from our agency operations other fee revenues

rental income and other miscellaneous revenues The revenue is not principal source of income and often varies among

periods The decrease in 2012 as compared to 2011 primarily reflected other income of $4.9 million recognized in 2011 related

to confidential settlement of litigation with service provider and gain of approxmately $0.8 million recognized on the sale

ofa building in 2011

Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The determination of calendar year losses involves the actuarial evaluation of incurred losses for the current accident year

and the actuarial re-evaluation of incurred losses for prior accident years including an evaluation of the reserve amounts

required for losses in excess of policy limits

Accident year refers to the accounting period in which the insured event becomes liability of the insurer For claims-

made policies which represent over 90% of the Companys business the insured event generally becomes liability when the

event is first reported to the insurer For occurrence policies the insured event becomes liability when the event takes place

We believe that measuring losses on an accident year basis is the best measure of the underlying profitability of the premiums

earned in that period since it associates policy premiums earned with the estimate of the losses incurred related to those policy

premiums

55



Table of Contents

The following table summarizes calendar year net losses and net loss ratios for the years ended December 31 2012 and

2011 by separating losses between the current accident year and all prior accident years

Net Losses Net Loss Ratios

Year Ended December31 Year Ended December31

in iflhlliOflil 2012 201 Change 2012 201 Change

Current accident year 452.0 488.2 36.2 82.1 86.3% 4.2

Prior accident years 272.0 325.9 53.9 49.4% 57.6%

Calendar year 180.0 162.3 17.7 32.7 28.7% 4.0

Net losses as specified diided by net premiums earned

Our current accident year net loss ratios for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 compare as follows

Year Ended December31

2012 20 Change

Current accident year net loss ratio excluding other

listed factors 86.1% 85.9% 0.2

Effect attributable to

change in our estimate of the reserve for death

disability and retirement 0.3% 3.7% 4.0

Reduction in premiums owed under reinsurance

agreements 5.6% 4.9% 0.7

Commutation 0.1% 0.1

Tail coverages .9% 1.7% 0.2

Current accident
year net loss ratio as reported 82.1% 86.3% 4.2

The 2012 decrease in our current accident year net loss ratio reflects the following

In 2012 we decreased our loss reserves related to death disability and retirement DDR coverage
endorsements

provided to our insureds while in 2011 we increased loss reserves for this coverage The reserve for DDR is actuarially

estimated and is affected by changes in the number of insureds expected to benefit from the coverage endorsement

Net earned premium in both 2012 and 2011 was increased by reductions to amounts owed under reinsurance

agreements see Net Premiums Earned The reductions had greater effect on the net loss ratio in 2012

commutation recorded in 2011 increased the 2011 net loss ratio no commutation was recorded in 2012

More of our net earned premium was from tail coverages in 2012 This increases our average net loss ratio because we

expect higher losses for tail coverages than for our other professional liability coverages

We recognized favorable loss development related to prior accident years of $272.0 million for the year ended

December 31 2012 and $325.9 million for the year ended December 31 2011 detailed discussion of factors influencing our

recognition of loss development recognized is included in the Critical Accounting Estimates section of Item under the

caption Reserve for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses Information provided includes the amount of development

recognized by accident year and the factors considered and judgments made to determine the amount of development

recognized

Assumptions used in establishing our reserve are regularly reviewed and updated by management as new data becomes

available Any adjustments necessary are reflected in the current operations Due to the size of our reserve even small

percentage adjustment to the assumptions can have material effect on our results of operations for the period in which the

change is made as was the case in both 2012 and 2011

Recoveries

We recognized favorable prior accident year loss development of approximately $49.4 million in 2012 and $39.9 million

in 2011 related to our reinsured coverage layers generally losses exceeding $1 million and recognized offsetting reductions to

loss recoveries of $49.4 million in 2012 and $39.9 million in 2011 Because the reductions exceed other recoveries during each

year recoveries increased rather than decreased net losses for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011

We similarly reduced our estimates of the premium due to reinsurers by $34.3 million and $30.6 million in 2012 and

2011 respectively because the premium due to reinsurers is based in part on amounts recovered
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Underwriting Policy Acguisition and Operatin2 Expenses

The table below provides comparison of 2012 and 2011 underwriting policy acquisition and operating expenses

Year Ended December31

$inthousands 2012 2011 Change

Insurance operation expenses 134393 134342 51 nm

Agency expenses 1238 2079 841 40.5%

135631 136421 790 06%

Insurance Operation Expenses

Insurance operation expenses in 2012 as compared to 2011 primarily reflected the net effect of the following

We incurred expenses related to the mergers of IND and Medmarc of approximately $1.5 million in 2012 We

anticipate additional expenses directly related to our merger with Medmarc of approximately $0.8 million most of

which will be incurred in the first quarter of 2013

As discussed in Notes and of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements we adopted on prospective

basis new FASB guidance related to the deferral of policy acquisition costs The new guidance affects the timing

but not the amount of acquisition costs ultimately expensed as the decrease in the expense deferral reduces

amortization of policy acquisition costs by the same amount recognized over the term of the associated successful

policies Our 2012 expenses reflect net increase of approximately $1.9 million in 2012 due to adoption of the new

guidance as we expensed approximately $4.2 million of policy acquisition costs that under prior guidance would

have been deferred to later periods but also recognized amortization expense that was approximately $2.3 million

lower than would have been recognized under previous guidance

Exclusive of the effect of the new FASB guidance amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs was $0.3

million lower in 2012 than in 2011 While amortization was lower in 2012 consistent with the decline in net

premiums earned amortization in 2011 was reduced by approximately $1 .5 million related to the acquisition of APS
in November 2010 Due to the application of GAAP purchase accounting rules no asset for deferred policy

acquisition costs was recognized as part of the purchase price allocation of APS consequently amortization of

deferred policy acquisition costs in 2011 was reduced

On sporadic basis our expenses are reduced by recoveries related to the settlement of litigation Recoveries in

2012 were approximately $0.5 million lower and thus expenses on net basis were higher than in 2011

Costs associated with the operations acquired from APS primarily compensation costs were approximately $3.7

million lower in 2012 as compared to 2011

Higher stock compensation and bonus costs in 2012 as compared to 2011 as well as additional costs incurred related

to the enhancement of our customer service capabilities increased our 2012 expenses by approximately $5.0 million

We relocated number of positions in order to create centralized customer service centers Relocation benefits were

provided to affected employees as well as termination benefits for employees unable to relocate Expenses of $1.6

million related to deferred compensation agreement with former senicr executive increased our expenses in

2011 there were no comparable expenses in 2012

Various other operating costs were collectively lower by approximately $3.2 million in 2012
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Underwriting Expense Ratio the Expense Ratio

Underwriting Expense Ratio

Year Ended December31

2012 2011 Change

Underwriting expense ratio excluding listed factors 25.9% 25.4% 0.5

Reduction in premiums owed under reinsurance agreements 1.5% 1.4% 0.1

Commutation 0.2% 0.2

Underwriting expense ratio as reported 24.4% 23.8% 0.6

Our expense
ratio computations exclude agency expenses as discussed below

The increase in our consolidated underwriting expense ratio for 2012 was primarily attributable to the decline in
gross

premiums earned Our ratio in both 2012 and 2011 was reduced due to increases in net earned premium resulting from the re

estimation of ceded premiums for prior accident
year coverages however the effect in both periods was comparable

commutation recorded in 2011 decreased our 2011 expense ratio no commutation was recorded in 2012

Agency Expenses

We maintain limited agency operations that both generate premium revenues for our insurance subsidiaries and earn

external commission and service fee revenues Agency operations that are associated with the generation of premium revenues

by our insurance subsidiaries are included in insurance operation expenses in the above table Expenses of agency operations

that are directly associated with external commission and service fee revenues are included in agency expenses in the above

table Agency expenses for 2011 included non-recurring expenses associated with the dissolution of certain agency operations

Interest Expense

Interest expense declined during 2012 as compared to 2011 primarily because we repaid debt during 2012 as discussed

in Liquidity and Capital Resources and Financial Condition Interest expense by debt obligation is provided in the following

table

Year Ended December31

ün thousands 2012 201 Change

rust reterred Securities due 2034 635 970 335

Surplus Notes due May 2034 342 509 167

2019 Note Payable 57 1157 586
Credit facility fees and amortization 630 442 188

Other 400 397

2181 3478 1297

Taxes

Factors affecting our effective tax rate include the following

Year Ended December31

2012 2011

Statutory rate 35.0% 35.0%

Tax-exempt income 3.4% 3.2%

Tax credits 2.5% 1.4%

Other 1.3% 0.4%

Effective tax rate 30.4% 30.8%

Our effective tax rate decreased in 2012 as compared to 2011 primarily due to an increase in the expected tax benefit

from tax credits transferred to us by our tax credit partnership investments We recognized tax benefits of approximately 10.0

million during 2012 related to the credits compared to tax benefits of S5.7 million during 2011
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Net income and Operating income non-GAAP financial measure see reconciliation below are as follows

Year Ended December31

In millions excepfper share data 2011 2010

Net mcome 287 231

Operating income 278.5 219.5

Net znome per diluted share 65 60

Operating income per diluted share 4.52 3.41

Results from the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 compare as follows

Revenues

Net premiums earned increased during 2011 by approximately $46.3 million or 8.9% including an increase of

approximately $53.0 million attributable to the business acquired from APS Our results also reflect the effects of competitive

market place and rate reductions that reflect improved loss trends

Our 2011 net investment result which includes both net investment income and earnings from unconsolidated

subsidiaries decreased by $15.8 million or 10.7% Net investment income decreased $5.4 million and earnings from

unconsolidated subsidiaries decreased $10.4 million

Net realized investment gains decreased $11.3 million in 2011 The decrease is primarily due to lower gains on securities

sales mitigated by lower impairment losses

Other income increased by $5.6 million during 2011 The increase is primarily due to confidential settlement received

during the third quarter of 2011 related to litigation with service provider

Expenses

Current accident year net losses increased by $33.1 million or 7.3% during 2011 including an increase of approximately

$44.5 million attributable to the business acquired from APS We reduced net losses by $325.9 million in 2011 and by $234.0

million in 2010 as result of our review of our estimate of net losses incurred for prior accident
years

Underwriting policy acquisition and operating expenses increased in 2011 as compared to 2010 by $1.4 million or 1.1%

The acquisition of APS added expenses of $8.0 million in 2011 Exclusive ofAPS expenses decreased $6.6 million primarily

due to lower amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs and 2010 expense increase from the termination of captive

insurance agreement that did not recur in 2011

Ratios

Our net loss ratio decreased in 2011 by 13.9 percentage points as we experienced an increase in prior year favorable

development in 2011 as compared to 2010 Approximately 12.5 percentage points of the decline relates to the increase in prior

year favorable development

Our 2011 underwriting expense ratio decreased 1.6 percentage points reflecting lower ratio associated with the

business acquired from APS and an increase in net premiums earned that is related to favorable development of prior year loss

reserves

Our operating ratio declined in 2011 by 12.2 percentage points reflecting improved net loss and expense ratios partially

offset by lower net investment income

Returnonequityis 14.3% for2Oll and 13.0% for2OlO

Book Value per Share

Our book value
per

share at December 31 2011 is $35.42 compared to $30.17 at December 31 2010 The increase

primarily reflects the effect of our 2011 income and an increase in accumulated other comprehensive income resulting from an

increase in the net unrealized gain on our investments Dividends declared during the period reduced book value
per share by

$0.25 Due to the size of our Shareholders Equity approximately $2.2 billion at December 31 2011 the growth rate of our

book value per share may slow The past growth rates of our book value per share do not necessarily predict similar future

results
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Operating income is non-GAAP financial measure that is widely used to evaluate the performance of insurance entities

Operating income excludes the after-tax effects of realized investment gains or losses guaranty find assessments and in 2011

the effects of certain confidential settlements that do not reflect normal operating results We believe operating income presents

usefil view of the performance of our insurance operations but should be considered in conjunction with net income

computed in accordance with GAAP

The following table is reconciliation of Net income to Operating income

Year Ended December31

In thousands except per share data 2011 2010

Items excluded in the calculation of operating income

Net realized investment gains losses 5994 17342

Guaranty find assessments recoupments 66 1336

Effect of confidential settlements net 7143

Pre-tax effect of exclusions 13203 18678

Tax effect at 35% 4621 6537

Operating income 278514 219457

Per diluted common share

Net income 4.65 3.60

Effect of exclusions 0.13 019

Operating income per diluted common share 4.52 3.41
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Results of OperationsYear Ended December 31 2011 Compared to Year Ended December 31 2010

Selected consolidated financial data for each period is summarized in the table below

Year Ended December31

in thousands except share data 2011 2010 Change

Revenues

Net premiums earned 565415 519107 46308

Net investment income 140956 146380 5424

Equity in earnings loss of unconsolidated subsidiaries 9147 1245 10392

Net realized investment gains losses 5994 17342 11348

Other income 13566 7991 5575

Total revenues 716784 692O65 24719

Expenses

Losses and loss adjustment expenses 151270 252615 101345

Reinsurance recoveries 11017 31500 42517

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 162287 221115 58828

Underwriting policy acquisition and operating expenses 136421 134980 1441

Interest expense 3478 3293 185

Total expenses 302186 359388 57202

Income before income taxes 414598 332677 81921

Income taxes 127502 101079 26423

Net income 287096 231598 55498

Earnings per share

Basic .064.70 3.64

Diluted 4.65 3.60

In all the tables that follow the abbreviation nm indicates that the percentage change is not meaningful

As required by GAAP our results include acquired entities only for the portion of the reporting period that is after the

acquisition date Our 2011 operating results include twelve months of activity related to our APS acquisition while our 2010

operating results include only one month of APS-related activity

Net loss ratio 28.7% 42.6% 13.9

Return on equity

Underwriting expense ratio 23.8% 25.4% 1.6

Combined ratio 52.5% 68.0%

Operating ratio 27.6% 39.8% 12.2

Tax ratio 30.8% 0.4%

14.3% 3.0% 1.3
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Premiums Written

Changes in our premium volume are driven by four primary factors the amount of new business we generate

including business that comes to PRA as result of acquisitions the timing of premium written for business generated by

multi-period policies our retention of existing business and the premium charged for business that is renewed which is

affected both by rates charged and by the amount and type of coverage an insured chooses to purchase The professional

liability market remains competitive with some competitors choosing to compete primarily on price

Gross ceded and net premiums written for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 including premiums

attributable to APS are as follows

in thousands 2011 2010 Change

Gross premiums written 565895 533205 32690 6.1%

Ceded premiums written 7388 27798 20.410 73.4%

Net premiums written 558507 505407 53100 10.5%

The acquisition of APS contributed gross ceded and net premiums written during the years ended December 31 2011

and 2010 as follows

in /wusandv 2011 2010 Change

Gross premiums written 54761 5047 49714

Ceded premiums written 104 54 50
Net premiums written 54657 4993 49664

Gross Premiums Written

Gross written premiums by component including premiums attributable to APS for the years ended December 31 2011

and 2010 are as follows

in thu usandsi 2011 2010 Change

Gross premiums written

Physician 451181 418173 33008 7.9%

Non-physician healthcare providers 47605 43093 4512 70.5%

Hospital and facility 28088 28524 436 1.5%

Other 17731 14349 3382 23.6%

Non-continuing 344 5836 5.492 94.1%

Tail coverage premium all policy types 20946 23230 2284 9.8%

Total 565895 533205 32690 6.1%

The acquisition of APS contributed gross written premiums during the
years

ended December 31 2011 and 2010 as

follows

in thousands 2011 2010 Change

Gross premiums written

Physician 51387 4821 46566

Non-physician healthcare providers 1892 20 1872

Tail
coverage premium all policy types 1482 206 1276

Total APS contribution 54761 5047 49 714

Physician Premiums

Our 2011 results reflect new physician business of $68 million including $48 million that is attributable to the

acquisition ofAPS New physician business for 2010 approximated $21 million including $5 million attributable to the

acquisition of APS

Two-year term policies also contributed to the increase in
gross

written premium Gross written premium associated with

two-year term policies is $22.3 million for 2011 as compared to $10.9 million for 2010 We offer two-year term policies as
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opposed to one-year tenn to our physician insureds in one selected jurisdiction The premium associated with both years
is

included in written premium in the period the policy is written

Our retention rate for physician business including business acquired from APS is 89% for 2011 as compared to 90%

for 2010 We calculate our retention rate as retained premium divided by all premium subject to renewal Retention rates are

affected by number of factors We may lose insureds to competitors or to self-insurance mechanisms often when physicians

join hospital-based practice groups or due to pricing or other issues We may choose not to renew an insured as result of our

underwriting evaluation Insureds may also terminate coverage because they have left the practice of medicine for various

reasons principally for retirement but also due to disability or other personal reasons

Charged rates for our renewed physician business including business acquired from APS averaged 1% lower than the

expiring premiums during 2011 Our charged rates include the effects of filed rates surcharges and discounts Despite

competitive pressures we continue to base our rates on expected losses as indicated by our historical loss data and available

industry loss data We are committed to rate structure that will allow us to fulfill our obligations to our insureds while

generating competitive returns for our shareholders

Non-physician Premiums

Our healthcare providers included in non-physician premiums are primarily dentists chiropractors optometrists and

allied health professionals The 2011 increase is primarily related to allied health coverages

Hospital and facility premiums declined in 2011 The decline reflects the same competitive pressures in this area as we

are seeing in our physician business

Non-physician other premiums are primarily legal professional liability premiums The increase in premium volume in

2011 principally relates to legal professional liability premiums

Non-continuing premiums consist of premiums derived from certain miscellaneous liability coverages which were

discontinued in 2010 but that continued to produce small amounts of written premium in 2011

Tail Coverage Premiums

We offer extended reporting endorsement or tail coverage to insureds that are discontinuing their claims-made coverage

with us The amount of tail coverage premium written and earned can vary widely from period to period

Ceded Premiums Written and Ceded Premiums Ratio

Ceded premiums written for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 compare as follows

in thou.wmds 2011 201 Change

Primary reinsurance agreements 26152 28625 2473 8.6%

Ascension Health program 5027 5027 nm

APS acquisition 1112 54 1058 100%

Commutation see below 5634 5634 nn

Re-estimation of prior accident year reinsurance

premiums including APS 30584 3442 17142 127.5%

Other premiums ceded 11315 .2561 1246 9.9%

Total ceded premiums written 7388 27798 20410 73.4%

We reinsure most of our MPL coverages under single reinsurance agreement that is typically renewed annually in

October There was no significant change in treaty terms between 2011 and 2010 and the 2011 decrease associated with this

reinsurance is largely due to lower premium volume relative to reinsured coverages

In 2011 we entered into new business relationship with Ascension Health Ascension Our agreements with Ascension

provide that substantial portion of the initial policies written under the program will be heavily reinsured by an Ascension

affiliate Gross premiums written associated with these policies in 2011 is approximately $7.5 million

The increase in ceded premiums written that is attributable to the APS acquisition primarily reflects eleven additional

months ofAPS activity in 2011

During 2011 we commuted terminated certain of our reinsurance agreements with Colisee Re formerly AXA
Reassurance S.A in return for approximately $4.3 million in cash The commutation reduced Ceded Premium on both

written and an earned basis by $5.6 million and reduced Reinsurance Recoveries by approximately $4.0 million
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Premiums ceded in both 2011 and 2010 were reduced due to the re-estimation of reinsurance premiums incurred for prior

accident years The amount of reinsurance premiums incurred for prior accident years is largely determined based on the losses

expected to be recovered under our reinsurance agreements subject to certain minimums and maximums specific to the

reinsurance agreement being adjusted In both 2011 and 2010 we reduced our estimates of prior accident year gross
losses

within our reinsured layers of coverage as well as the related reinsurance recoveries and premiums ceded The reductions were

more pronounced in 2011 Approximately $1.0 million of the 2011 reduction is attributable to APS pre-acquisition reinsurance

contracts

The variations in ceded premiums written discussed above affect our ceded premiums ratio ceded premiums written as

percentage of
gross premiums written as follows

2011 2010 Change

Leueu premiums ratio excluding other listed factors 7.4% 7.7% 0.3

Ascension Health program 1.0% 1.0

APS Acquisition 0.1% 0.1

Commutation 1.1% 1.1

Re-estimation of prioraccident year reinsurance premiums

including ALS 6.1% 2.5% 3.6

Ceded premiums ratio as reported 1.3% 5.2% 3.9

The ceded premiums written ratio associated with the business acquired from APS is lower than the ratio for our other

business In recent years largely due to the advantageous legal climate within the state of Texas only small percentage of

APS paid losses have met reinsurance
coverage limits consequently ALS was able to obtain reinsurance coverage for 2011 and

2010 at favorable rates The ALS reinsurance agreements base the amounts due to reinsurers in part on expected losses

Net Premiums Earned

Net premiums earned consist of premiums earned less the portion of earned premiums that we cede to our reinsurers for

their assumption of portion of our losses Because premiums are generally earned pro rata over the entire policy period

fluctuations in premiums earned tend to lag those of premiums written Generally our policies carry term of one year but as

discussed above we renew certain policies with two-year term Tail coverage premiums are generally 100% earned in the

period written because the policies insure only incidents that occurred in prior periods and are not cancellable Additionally

ceded premium changes due to commutations or re-estimation of reinsurance premiums incurred for prior accident
years are

fully earned in the period of change

Net premiums earned including premiums attributable to APS for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 are as

follows

in thousands 201 2010 Change

Premiums earned 571045 548955 22.090 4.0%

Premiums ceded 5630 29848 24218 81.1%

Net premiums earned 565415 519107 46308 8.9%

Net earned premiums attributable to APS for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 are as follows

in thOUSUfldS 2011 2010 Change

Premiums earned 58282 5122 53160

Premiums ceded 104 54 158

Net premiums earned 58178 5176 53002

Of the premiums attributable to the APS acquisition earned during 2011 approximately $20.7 million is attributable to

premiums written prior to acquisition

64



Net Investment Income Efluity in Earnin2s Loss of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries Net Realized Investment Gains

Losses

Net Investment Income

Net investment income is primarily derived from the income earned by our fixed maturity securities and also includes

income from our short-term and cash equivalent investments dividend income from equity securities earnings from other

investments and increases in the cash surrender value of business owned life insurance contracts Investment fees and expenses

are deducted from investment income

Net investment income by investment category is as follows

Year Ended 1ecember 31

In tJiouanc1 2011 2010 Change

Fixed maturities 140897 146036 5139 4%
Equities 1808 797 1011 127/s

Short-term investments 100 417 317 76%
Other invested assets 2712 3145 433 14%
Business owned life insurance 2017 1617 400 25%

Investment expenses 6578 5632 946 17%

Net investment income 140956 146380 5424 4%

Fixed Maturities

The decrease in income during 2011 primarily reflects lower yields on our portfolio partially offset by higher average

investment balances During the first six months of 2011 our Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities TIPS portfolio

outperformed our other fixed maturities and our 2011 results include higher earnings from our TIPS of approximately $1.5

million Our TIPS portfolio may not continue to outperform in 2012

The overall yield on our portfolio declined in 2011 as we were not able to reinvest proceeds from maturities pay-downs

and sales at rates comparable to expiring rates while maintaining our asset quality and the duration of our portfolio

Additionally the yields on fixed maturity securities acquired in the APS transaction after adjustment as required by GAAP

purchase accounting rules approximated market yields on the acquisition date of November 30 2010 and lowered our average

consolidated tax equivalent yield by approximately basis points Average yields for our available-for-sale fixed maturity

securities during 2011 and 2010 are as follows

Year Ended December31

2011 2010

Average income yield 4.0% 4.3%

Average tax equivalent income yield 4.6% 5.0%

The level of our investment in fixed maturity securities varies depending upon number of factors including among

others our operating cash needs anticipated shifts in credit markets the attractiveness of other investment alternatives and

cash needed for acquisitions or other capital purposes In 2011 as compared to 2010 our average investment in fixed maturities

increased by approximately 4%
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Equily in Earnings Loss of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries

Equity in earnings loss of unconsolidated subsidiaries is derived from our investment interests accounted for under the

equity method as follows

Year Ended December31

Ii thousands 2011 2010 Change

Investment LPs

Currently held 1077 1539 2616

Liquidated in 2010 3097 3097
Business LLC interest 2479 1494 985

Tax credit partnerships 5591 1897 3694

Equity in earnings loss of unconsolidated subsidiaries 9147 1245 10392

We hold interests in certain LPs that derive earnings from trading portfolios The performance of the LPs is affected by

the volatility of equity and credit markets One LP shown separately in the table was liquidated in July 2010

Our business LLC interest is non-controlling interest in an entity that began active business in 2011 While we expect

this investment to provide positive return over time operating losses are expected to continue into 2012 due to the start up

nature of this entity The canying amount of our investment is currently $0.7 million

We began investing in tax credit limited partnerships in 2010 Our tax credit investments are designed to generate

investment returns by providing tax benefits to find investors in the form of project operating losses and tax credits Our tax

credit partnerships reduced our tax
expenses by approximately $5.7 million during 2011 while we recognized $5.6 million of

pre-tax amortization $3.6 million after tax on these investments noted in the table above

Non-GAAP Financial Measure Tax Equivalent Investment Result

We believe that to frilly understand our investment returns it is important to consider the current tax benefits associated

with certain investments therefore we impute pro forma tax-equivalent investment result by adjusting the current tax benefit

into the amount of investment income taxable investment would need to produce to fairly compare to an investment with

preferential tax treatment We believe this better reflects the economies of our decision to invest in certain asset classes that are

either taxed at lower rates and/or result in reductions to our current federal income tax expense

Year ended December 31

In thausandsi 2011 2010

investment income as reported for JAAP

Taxable equivalent adjustments calculated using the 35% federal statutory tax rate

State and municipal bonds 19949 21987

BOLl 1086 871

Dividends received deduction 579 255

Pro forma tax-equivalent net investment income 162570 169493

Equity in earnings loss of unconsolidated subsidiaries as reported for GAAP 9147 1245

Taxable equivalent adjustment calculated using the 35% federal statutory tax rate

Tax credit partnerships 8698 1538

Pro forma tax-equivalent equity in earnings loss of unconsolidated subsidiaries 449 2783

Pro forma tax-equivalent investment results 162121 172276
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Net Realized Investment Gains Losses

The following table provides detailed information regarding our net realized investment gains losses

Year Ended December31

In thousands 2011 2010

Total other-than-temporary impairment losses

Residential mortgage-backed securities 782 1487

Corporate debt 505

Other investments 3827 3373

High yield asset-backed securities 75 9515

Portion recognized in reclassified from Other Comprehensive Income

Residential mortgage-backed securities 823 1474

Net impairment losses recognized in earnings 6012 15849

Net gains losses from sales 12871 30005

Net realized gains losses trading securities 2212 6630

Change in unrealized holding gains losses trading securities 3188 1542

Decrease increase in the fair value of liabilities carried at fair value 111 1902

Net realized investment gains losses 5994 17342

We recognized impairments of $3.8 million in 2011 and $3.4 million in 2010 related to an interest in an LLC which we

account for using the cost method The LLC has notified us of its intention to convert to public fund and we have reduced the

canying value of our interest in the LLC to reflect the most recently reported fund NAy

We recognized credit-related impairments in earnings of $1.6 million in 2011 related to residential mortgage-backed

securities Expected future cash flows were less than our carrying value for these securities therefore we reduced the carrying

value of our interest in these securities and recognized the loss in our 2011 net income

Trading portfolio losses during 2011 reflect the overall decline in stock market yields further impacted by higher average

balances in our portfolio in 2011 as compared to 2010

Fair value adjustments are attributable to our election of fair value treatment for both the 2019 Note Payable and the

related interest rate swap as discussed in Notes and 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Other Income

Other Income is comprised primarily of commission and fee income from our agency operations other fee revenues

rental income and other miscellaneous revenues The revenue is not principal source of income and often varies among

periods During 2011 we recognized other income of $4.9 million related to confidential settlement of litigation with

service provider The remaining increase is primarily attributable to gain of approximately $0.8 million recognized on the sale

of building in 2011

Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The determination of calendar year losses involves the actuarial evaluation of incurred losses for the current accident year

and the actuarial re-evaluation of incurred losses for prior accident years including an evaluation of the reserve amounts

required for losses in excess of policy limits

Accident year refers to the accounting period in which the insured event becomes liability of the insurer For claims-

made policies which represent over 90% of the Companys business the insured event generally becomes liability when the

event is first reported to the insurer For occurrence policies the insured event becomes liability when the event takes place

We believe that measuring losses on an accident year basis is the best measure of the underlying profitability of the premiums

earned in that period since it associates policy premiums earned with the estimate of the losses incurred related to those policy

premiums

The following table summarizes calendar year net losses and net loss ratios for the years ended December 31 2011 and

2010 by separating losses between the current accident
year

and all prior accident years
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Net losses as specified divided by net premiums earned

As compared to 2010 our 2011 current accident year net loss ratio reflects decrease attributable to higher earned

premiums resulting from the re-estimation of amounts due to reinsurers discussed further under the header Premiums the

effect of which was partially offset by ratio increase attributable to coverages provided to qualified insureds for death

disability and retirement DDR
We recognized favorable development related to prior accident

years
of $325.9 million for the

year ended December 31
2011 and $234.0 million for the year ended December 31 2010 Detailed information regarding the development recognized is

included in the Critical Accounting Estimates section of Item under the caption Reserve for Losses and Loss Adjustment

Expenses Information provided includes the amount of development recognized by accident
year

and the factors considered

and judgments made to determine the amount of development recognized

Assumptions used in establishing our reserve are regularly reviewed and updated by management as new data becomes

available Any adjustments necessary are reflected in the current operations Due to the size of our reserve even small

percentage adjustment to the assumptions can have material effect on our results of operations for the period in which the

change is made as was the case in both 2011 and 2010

Recoveries

We recognized favorable prior accident year loss development of approximately $39.9 million in 2011 and $1.1 million in

2010 related to our reinsured
coverage layers generally losses exceeding $1 million and recognized offsetting reductions to

loss recoveries of $39.9 million in 2011 and $1.1 million in 2010 Because the reduction exceeds all other recoveries for the

period recoveries increase rather than decrease net losses for the year ended December 31 2011

We similarly reduced our estimates of the premium due to reinsurers by $30.6 million and $13.4 million in 2011 and

2010 respectively because the premium due to reinsurers is based in part on amounts recovered

Underwritin2 Policy Acfluisition and Operatin2 Expenses

The table below provides comparison of 2011 and 2010 underwriting policy acquisition and operating expenses

in millions

Net Losses Net Loss Ratios

Year Ended December31 Year Ended December31

2011 2010 Change 2011 2010 Change

Current accident year

PRA all other 440.8 452.2 11.4 86.9% 88.0% 1.1

APS Acquisition 47.4 2.9 44.5 814% 56.5% 251

Consolidated 488.2 455.1 33.1 86.3% 87.7% 1.4

Prior accident years

PRA all other 307.3 234.0 73.3 60.6% 45.5% 15.1

APS Acquisition 18.6 18.6 32.0% 32.0

Consolidated 325.9 234.0 91.9 57.6% 45.1% 12.5

Calendar year

PRA all other 133.5 218.2 84.7 26.3% 42.5% 16.2

APS Acquisition 28.8 2.9 25.9 49.6% 56.5% 6.9
Consolidated 162.3 221.1 58.8 28.7% 42.6% 13.9

in thousands

Insurance operation expenses

PRA all other

APS Acquisition

Total insurance operation expenses

Agency expenses

Underwriting Policy Acquisition and Operating Expenses

2011 2010 Change

124604 130281 5677 4.4%

9738 1721 8017 100

134342 132002 2340 1.8%

.2079 2918 89S aO2%
136421 134980 1441 1.1%
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Insurance Operation Expenses

Exclusive of the effect of the APS acquisition insurance operation expenses
decreased by $5.7 million primarily due to

the following

Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs decreased by $2.4 million in 2011 primarily due to lower premium

volume

Various other expense items reduced operating expense by approximately $2.0 million Lower professional fees

principally due to transaction costs incurred in 2010 but not in 2011 and an increase in the amount of administrative

costs allocated to loss adjustment expense contributed to the decrease

Termination of captive insurance agreement managed by ProAssurance iacreased 2010 underwriting expense by

$2.6 million There was no similar transaction in 2011

Lower guaranty fund recoupments in 2011 increased expenses by $1.3 million

Expenses associated with APS include salary and benefit expenses of approximately $1.2 million in 2011 that are related

to workforce reductions APS policy acquisition expenses are approximately $1.5 million lower in 2011 than would be

considered normal due to the application of GAAP purchase accounting rules whereby the assets for deferred policy acquisition

costs were not recognized as part of the purchase price allocation ofAPS Our 201k expense also includes $2.2 million

reduction that resulted from settlement of litigation that is unrelated to our normal Lnsurance activities

Underwriting Expense Ratio

The decrease in our consolidated underwriting expense ratio for 2011 is attributable to the effect of the acquisition of APS

and $16.3 million increase in net earned premium resulting from the re-estimation of ceded premiums for prior accident year

coverages as shown in the following table

Underwriting Expense Ratio

Year Ended December31

2011 2010 hangL

Underwriting expense ratio excluding listed factors 26.1% 26.0% 0.1

Net earned premiums-prior years 1.5% 0.7% 0.8

APS acquisition 0.8% 0.1% 0.9

Underwriting expense ratio as reported
23.8% 25.4% 1.6

Our expense
ratio computations exclude agency-related expenses as discussed below

Agency expenses

We have historically operated several non-insurance subsidiaries principally insurance agencies that have generated

commission and service fee revenues Expenses of our agency operations that are associated with the generation of premium

revenues by our insurance subsidiaries are included in insurance operation expenses in the above table Expenses of our agency

operations that are directly associated with external commission and service fee revenues are included in agency expenses in

the above table In 2011 we discontinued most external agency operations The decline in agency expenses of $0.9 million

reflects the discontinuation of these operations partially offset by costs incurred related to workforce reductions
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Interest Expense

The increase in interest
expense during 2011 reflects commitment fees and amortization of the initial loan costs related to

the credit agreement entered into during the second quarter of 2011 The credit agreement is discussed in Note 10 of the Notes

to Consolidated Financial Statements

Interest expense by debt obligation is provided in the following table

Year Ended December31

In thousunds 2011 2010 Change

Trust Preferred Securities due 2034 970 978

Surplus Notes due May 2034 509 508

Note Payable due February 2019 1157 1178 21
Revolving credit agreement 442 442

Other 400 629 229

3478 3293 185

Taxes

Our effective tax rate for each period is lower than the 35% statutory rate because considerable portion of our net

investment income is tax-exempt Other factors affecting our effective tax rate include the following

Year Ended December31

2011 2010

Statutory rate 35.0% 5.0%

Tax-exempt income 3.2% 4.6%

Tax credits 1.4% 0.3%
Valuation Allowance 0.3%

BOLl Redemption 0.4%

Other 0.4% 0.2%

Effective tax rate 30.8% 30.4%

We continue to invest in tax credit partnerships see Equity in Earnings Loss of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries In 2011

we have recognized an expected tax benefit of approximately $5.7 million related to the credits to be transferred to us

by the partnerships

During 2010 we reversed valuation allowance previously established against deferred tax assets that were capital in

character We determined that it was more likely than not that sufficient sources of taxable capital income would be

available in future periods to allow us to fully utilize the deferred tax assets

partial redemption of our BOLl increased tax expense in 2010 by approximately $1.3 million there were no BOLl

redemptions during 2011

Although our effective tax rate is consistent between 2011 and 2010 current tax expense increased by approximately

$23.1 million in 2011 In 2011 we recorded current liability of $19.5 million including interest of $0.9 million for

unrecognized tax benefits
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ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We believe that we are principally exposed to three types of market risk related to our investment operations These risks

are interest rate risk credit risk and equity price risk

Interest Rate Risk

Our fixed maturities portfolio is exposed to interest rate risk Fluctuations in interest rates have direct impact on the

market valuation of these securities As interest rates rise market values of fixed income portfolios fall and vice versa Certain

of the securities are held in an unrealized loss position we do not intend to sell and believe we will not be required to sell any

of the debt securities held in an unrealized loss position before its anticipated recovery

The following table summarizes estimated changes in the fair value of our available-for-sale fixed maturity securities for

specific hypothetical changes in interest rates by asset class at December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 There are

principally two factors that determine interest rates on given security market interest rates and credit spreads As different

asset classes can be affected in different ways by movements in those two factors we have broken out our portfolio by asset

class in the following table

Interest Rite Shift in Basis Points

December 31 2012

Current 100

Fair Value in millions

U.S Treasury obligations 210 209 206 202 197

U.S Government-sponsored enterprise

obligations
58 58 57 55 53

State and municipal bonds 1269 1258 1220 1170 1122

Corporate debt 1533 1521 1471 1409 1350

Asset-backed securities 498 499 494 481 466

Duration

U.S Treasury obligations 2.92 2.89 2.84

U.S Government-sponsored enterprise

obligations
2.89 2.90 2.98 3.08 3.08

State and municipal bonds 3.91 4.06 4.1 4.26

Corporatedebt 4.26 4.27 4.27 4.22 4.15

Asset-backed securities 1.81 1.82 2.35 3.06 3.66

All fixed maturity securities 3.65 3.70 3.81 3.93 4.01

1ecember 31 2011

Fair Value In millions

U.S.Treasuryobligations 303 301 284 277 270

U.S Government-sponsored enterprise

obligations 70 70 68 65 63

State and municipal bonds 1301 1279 1228 1172 1117

Corporate debt 1429 1413 1368 1314 1263

Asset-backed securities 735 733 718 695 669

All fixed maturity securities 3838 3796 3666 3523 3382

Duration

U.S Treasury obligations 3.42 3.39 3.33 4.00 3.95

U.S Government-sponsored enterprise

obligations 3.25 3.26 3.43 3.62 3.69

State and municipal bonds 4.22 4.44 4.58 4.69 4.76

Corporate debt 4.07 4.05 4.00 3.91 3.83

Asset-backed securities 1.01 1.54 2.87 3.48 3.83

All fixed maturity securities 3.47 3.63 3.91 4.09 4.14

200 100 200
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Computations of prospective effects of hypothetical interest rate changes are based on numerous assumptions including

the maintenance of the existing level and composition of fixed income security assets and should not be relied on as indicative

of future results

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the computation of the fair value of fixed rate

instruments Actual values may differ from the projections presented should market conditions vary from assumptions used in

the calculation of the fair value of individual securities including non-parallel shifts in the term structure of interest rates and

changing individual issuer credit spreads

ProAssurance cash and short-term investment portfolio at December 31 2012 was on cost basis which approximates

its fair value This portfolio lacks significant interest rate sensitivity due to its short duration

Credit Risk

We have exposure to credit risk primarily as holder of fixed income securities We control this exposure by emphasizing

investment grade credit quality in the fixed income securities we purchase

As of December 31 2012 93% of our fixed maturity securities were rated investment grade as determined by Nationally

Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations NRSROs such as A.M Best Fitch Moodys and Standard Poors We believe

that this concentration in investment grade securities reduces our exposure to credit risk on our fixed income investments to an

acceptable level However investment grade securities in spite of their rating can rapidly deteriorate and result in significant

losses Ratings published by the NRSROs are one of the tools used to evaluate the credit worthiness of our securities The

ratings reflect the subjective opinion of the rating agencies as to the credit worthiness of the securities and therefore we may
be subject to additional credit exposure should the rating prove to be unreliable

We held $1.2 billion of municipal bonds at December 31 2012 We require the bonds that we purchase to meet our credit

criteria on stand-alone basis As of December 31 2012 on stand-alone basis our municipal bonds had weighted average

rating of AA

We also have
exposure to credit risk related to our receivables from reinsurers Our receivables from reinsurers with

regard to both paid and unpaid losses approximated $196 million at December 31 2012 and $252 million at December 31
2011 We monitor the credit risk associated with our reinsurers using publicly available financial and rating agency data

Equity Price Risk

At December 31 2012 the fair value of our investment in common stocks was $203 million These securities are subject

to equity price risk which is defined as the potential for loss in fair value due to decline in equity prices The weighted

average beta of this
group of securities was 0.96 Beta measures the price sensitivity of an equity security or group of equity

securities to change in the broader equity market in this case the SP 500 Index If the value of the SP 500 Index increased

by 10% the fair value of these securities would be expected to increase by 9.6% to $222 million Conversely 10% decrease

in the SP 500 Index would imply decrease of 9.6% in the fair value of these securities to $183 million The selected

hypothetical changes of plus or minus 10% do not reflect what could be considered the best or worst case scenarios and are

used for illustrative
purposes only
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The Supplementary Financial Information required by Item 302 of Regulation S-K is included in Note 17 of the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements of ProAssurance and its subsidiaries

ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL

DISCLOSURE

Not Applicable

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls

Under the supervision and with the participation of management including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer the Company has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and

procedures as of the end of the fiscal year ended December 31 2012 Based on that evaluation the Chief Executive Officer and

Chief Financial Officer have concluded that these controls and procedures are effective

Disclosure controls and procedures are defined in Exchange Act Rule 3a- 15e and include the Companys controls and

other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it

files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management including the Chief Executive

Officer and Chief Financial Officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as

such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a-1 5f and Sd- 15f Under the supervision and with the participation of our

management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer we conducted an evaluation of the

effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 based on the framework in Intemal

ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO
Based on that evaluation our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of

December 31 2012 and that there was no change in the Companys internal controls during the fiscal year then ended that has

materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Ernst Young LLP an independent registered public accounting firm has audited the effectiveness of our internal

controls over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 as stated in their report which is included elsewhere herein

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of ProAssurance Corporation

We have audited ProAssurance Corporation and subsidiaries internal control over financial reporting as of December

31 2012 based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria ProAssurance Corporation and subsidiaries management is

responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment ofthe effectiveness of internal

control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal

control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal

control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in

the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions

of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the

company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys

assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Managements assessment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not

include the internal controls of Independent Nevada Doctors Insurance Company which is included in the 2012 consolidated

financial statements of ProAssurance Corporation and subsidiaries and constituted 1.4% and 1.3% of total and net assets

respectively as of December 31 2012 Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of ProAssurance Corporation and

subsidiaries also did not include an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of Independent Nevada Doctors

Insurance Company

In our opinion ProAssurance Corporation and subsidiaries maintained in all material respects effective internal control

over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 based on the COSO criteria

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated statements of changes in

capital income and comprehensive income and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2012 of

ProAssurance Corporation and subsidiaries and our report dated February 19 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Is Ernst Young LLP

Birmingham Alabama

February 19 2013
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PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this Item regarding executive officers is included in Part of the Form 10K in accordance

with Instruction of the Instructions to Paragraph of Item 401 of Regulation S-K

The information required by this Item regarding directors is incorporated by reference pursuant to General Instruction

of Form 10K from ProAssurances definitive proxy statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of its Stockholders to be filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 4A on or about April 15 2013

ITEM 11 EXECUTiVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference pursuant to General Instruction of Form 10K

from ProAssurances definitive proxy statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of its Stockholders to be filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 4A on or about April 15 2013

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference pursuant to General Instruction of Form 10K

from ProAssurances definitive proxy statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of its Stockholders to be filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A on or about April 15 2013

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference pursuant to General Instruction of Form 10K

from ProAssurances definitive proxy statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of its Stockholders to be filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A on or about April 15 2013

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference pursuant to General Instruction of Form 10K

from ProAssurances definitive proxy statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of its Stockholders to be filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 4A on or about April 15 2013
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements The following consolidated financial statements of ProAssurance Corporation and subsidiaries

are included herein in accordance with Item of Part II of this report

Report of Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets December 31 2012 and 2011

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedules The following consolidated financial statement schedules of ProAssurance Corporation

and subsidiaries are included herein in accordance with Item 14d
Schedule Summary of Investments Other than Investments in Related Parties

Schedule II Condensed Financial Information of ProAssurance Corporation Registrant Only

Schedule III Supplementary Insurance Information

Schedule IV Reinsurance

All other schedules to the consolidated fmancial statements required by Article of Regulation SX are not

required under the related instructions or are inapplicable and therefore have been omitted

The exhibits required to be filed by Item 15b are listed herein in the Exhibit Index
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly caused this

report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized on this the 19th day of February 2013

PROASSURANCE CORPORATION

By IS STANCIL STARNES
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persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of ProAssurance Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of ProAssurance Corporation and subsidiaries as of

December 31 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated statements of changes in capital income and comprehensive income

and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2012 Our audits also included the financial

statement schedules listed in the Index at Item 15a These financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of the

Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedules based on our

audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that

our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the consolidated

financial position of ProAssurance Corporation and subsidiaries at December 31 2012 and 2011 and the consolidated results

of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2012 in conformity with

U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the related financial statement schedules when considered

in related to the basic financial statements taken as whole present fairly in all material respects the information set forth

therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States ProAssurance Corporations internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 based on criteria

established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission and our report dated February 19 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Is/ Ernst Young LLP

Birmingham Alabama

February 19 2013
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

In thousands except share data

December 31 December31

2012 2011

Assets

In estments

Fixed maturities available for sale at fair value amortized cost $3224332 and

$3465720 respectively
3.447.999 3665763

Equity securities available for sale at fair value cost $6 at December 31 201 25

Equity securities trading at fair value cost $187891 and $101078 respectively 202618 103133

Short-term investments 71737 19.421

Business owned life insurance 52414 52651

Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries 121049 1.324

Other investments 31085 38224

Total Investments 3926902 4090541

Cash and cash equivalents 118551 130400

Premiums receivable 106312 120220

Receivable from reinsurers on paid losses and loss adjustment expenses 4517 4175

Receivable from reinsurers on unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses 191645 247.658

Prepaid reinsurance premiums 13.404 12568

Deferred policy acquisition costs 23179 26626

Deferred tax asset 30989

Real estate net 41502 40432

Intangible assets 53.225 53703

Goodwill 163055 159625

Other assets 234286 81941

Total Assets 4876578 4998878

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Liabilities

Policy liabilities and accruals

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses 2054994 2247772

Unearned premiums 233861 251155

Reinsurance premiums payable 45591 82039

Total Policy Liabilities 2334446 2580966

Deferred tax liability 14585

Other liabilities 131967 203772

Long-term debt $125000 and S35.507 at amortized cost respectively and $14180 at fair

value at December 31 2011 125000 49687

Total Liabilities 2605998 2834425

Shareholders Equity

Common shares par value S0.0l
per share 100000000 shares authorized 61867034 and

69102988 shares issued respectively
619 346

Additional paid-rn capital 341780 538625

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss net of deferred tax expense benefit of

$78284 and $70022 respectively 145380 130037

Retained earnings 1782857 1699853

2270636 2.368861

Treasury shares at cost 243530 shares and 7995902 shares respectively 56 204408

Total Shareholders Equity 2270580 2164.453

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity 4876578 4998878

See accompanying notes
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital

In thousands

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Paid-in Comprehensive Retained Treasur

Stock Capital Income Loss Earnings Stock Total

Balance at January 12010 342 $526068 59254 $1196428 77497 $1704595

Common shares reacquired 106347 106347

Common shares issued for compensation 2958 2959

Share-based compensation 6.138 6138

Net effect of restricted and performance shares

issued and stock options exercised 2951 2950
Other comprehensive income loss 19.870 19870

Net income 231598 231598

Balance at December 31 2010 344 532213 79.124 $1428026 183844 1855863

Common shares reacquired 21005 21005

Common shares issued for compensation and

effect of shares reissued to stock purchase plan 2433 441 2874

Share-based compensation 7119 7119

Net effect of restricted and performance shares

issued and stock options exercised 3140 3138
Dividends to shareholders 15269 15269

Other comprehensive income loss 50913 50.913

Net income 287096 287096

Balance at December 31 2011 346 538.625 130037 S1699853 $204408 $2164453

Common shares issued for compensation
and effect of shares reissued to stock

purchase plan 3041 553 3594

Share-based compensation 8639 8639

Net effect of restricted and performance
shares issued and stock options exercised 4455 4453
Dividends to shareholders 192466 192466

Two-for-one stock split effected in the form

of stock dividend 271 204070 203799

other comprehensive income loss 15343 15343

Net income 275470 275470

BalanceatDecember3l2012 619 $341780 145380 $1782857 56 $2270580

See accoInJaning /lOtC.S

80



ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income

In thousands except per share data

Revenues

Net premiums earned

Net investment income

Equity in earnings loss of unconsolidated subsidiaries

Net realized investment gains losses

Other-than-temporary impairment OTTI losses

Portion of OTTI losses recognized in reclassified from other

comprehensive income before taxes

Net impairment losses recognized in earnings

Other net realized investment gains losses

Total net realized investment gains losses

Other income

Total revenues

Expenses

Losses and loss adjustment expenses

Reinsurance recoveries

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses

Underwriting policy acquisition and operating expenses

Interest expense

Loss on extinguishment of debt

Total
expenses

Income before income taxes

Proision for income taxes

Current expense benefit

Deferred expense benefit

Total income tax expense benefit

Net income

Year Ended December31

2012 2011 2010

550664 565415 519107

140956 146380

9147 1245

715854 716784 692065

161726 151270 252615

18187 11017 31500

179913 162287 221115

135631 136421 134980

2181 3478 3293

2163

319888 302186 359.388

82752 128553 105479

37744 1051 4400

120496 127502 101079

275470 287096 231598

Comprehensive income 290813 338.009 251468

Earnings per share

Basic 4.49 4.70 3.64

Diluted 4.46 4.65 3.60

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

Basic 61342 61140 63576

Diluted 61833 61.684 64.351

Cash dividends declared per common share 3.13 0.25

136094

6873

1566

201

1767

30630

28863

5189

823

6012

12006

5994

14375

1474

15849

33191

17342

7106 13566 7991

395966 414598 332677

Other comprehensive income afler tax net of reclassification adjustments

seeNote 11 15343 50913 19870

See accompanying notes
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

In thousands

Year Ended December31

2012 2011 2010

Operating Activities

Net income 275470 287096 231598

Adjustments to reconcile income to net cash provided by operating activities

Amortization net of accretion 32832 30740 22071

Depreciation 4741 4949 4600

Loss gain on extinguishment of debt 2163

Increase decrease in cash surrender value of business owned life

insurance 2008 2070 1617

Net realized investment gains losses 28863 5994 17342

Share-based compensation 8639 7119 6138

Deferred income taxes 37744 1051 4400

Policy acquisition costs net amortization net deferral 3448 655 1788
Other 2507 2891 6562
Other changes in assets and liabilities excluding effect of business

combinations

Premiums receivable 16494 730 8216

Receivable from reinsurers on paid losses and loss adjustment expenses 342 407 12196

Receivable from reinsurers on unpaid losses and loss adjustment

expenses 58870 29778 8794

Prepaid reinsurance premiums 482 1545 813

Other assets 11231 613 7253

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses 218100 166328 96232

Unearned premiums 21919 4895 14275

Reinsurance premiums payable 36583 29642 4402
Other liabilities 27116 5911 1718

Net cash provided by operating activities 91250 159364 139191

Investing Activities

Purchases of

Fixed maturities available for sale 646198 782555 840366

Equity securities available for sale 9675

Equity securities trading 120555 117208 14312

Other investments 9977 4671 5383

Funding of tax credit limited partnerships 35745 29.213 13623

Investments in distributions from unconsolidated subsidiaries net 9621 24600

Proceeds from sales or maturities of

Fixed maturities available for sale 926221 789709 961334

Equity securities available for sale 3921 9882

Equity securities trading 54670 50386 36740

Other investments 1180 773 1279

Net sales or maturities purchases of short-term investments 48565 49011 27676

Cash paid for acquisitions net of cash received 28439 215726

Deposit made for future acquisition 153700

Redemption of business owned life insurance 16136

Unsettled security transactions net 4852 2014

Cash received paid for other assets 4410 9771 2923
Net cash provided used by investing activities 26843 49611 22347
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Year Ended December31

2011

Financing Activities

Proceeds from long-term debt

Repayment of long-term debt and rthted swap

Repurchase of common stock

Excess tax benefit from share-based payment arrangements

Dividends to shareholders

Other
________________________________________

Net cash provided used by financing activities

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period _______________________________
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

__________________________________

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Net cash paid during the year for income taxes

Cash paid during the year for interest

Significant non-cash transactions

Other investments transferred at fair value to fixed maturities 9923

Other investment interest converted to equity securities 15742

See accompanying notes

2012 2010

125000

57660 325 303

21005 106347

7022 1711 1847

200118 7617

4186 2968 1832

129942 30204 106635

11849 79549 10209

130400 50851 40642

118551 130400 50851

110278 98141 92046

2342 3182 3270
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2012

Accounting Policies

Organization and Nature of Business

ProAssurance Corporation ProAssurance or PRA Delaware corporation is an insurance holding company for wholly-

owned specialty property and casualty insurance companies that principally provide professional liability insurance for

providers of healthcare services and to lesser extent providers of legal services and other professional services ProAssurance

operates in the United States of America U.S in single reportable segment

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of ProAssurance Corporation and its wholly-

owned subsidiaries Investments in entities where ProAssurance holds greater than minor interest but does not hold

controlling interest are accounted for using the equity method All significant intercompany accounts and transactions are

eliminated in consolidation

Basis of Presentation

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S Generally Accepted Accounting Principles GAAP
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities revenues and

expenses and disclosures related to these amounts at the date of the financial statements Actual results could differ from those

estimates

Stock Split

The Board of Directors of ProAssurance Corporation the Board declared two-for-one stock split effected December

27 2012 in the form of stock dividend All share and per share information provided in this report reflects the effect of the

split for all periods presented

Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies followed by ProAssurance in making estimates that materially affect financial

reporting are summarized in these notes to the consolidated financial statements

Recognition of Revenues

Insurance premiums are recognized as revenues pro rata over the terms of the policies which are generally one year in

duration

At December 31 2012 and 2011 ProAssurance had established allowances for credit losses related to premium and

agency receivables classified as part of Other Assets as follows

Premium Agency

in thousands Receivables Receivables

Allowance for credit losses

Balance at December 31 2010 1030 328

Estimated credit losses 229

Account write offs net of recoveries 269
Balance at December 31 2011 990 332

Estimated credit losses 157

Account write offs net of recoveries 147 46
Balance at December 31 2012 1000 286
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2012

Accounting Policies continued

Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

ProAssurance establishes its reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses reserve for losses based on estimates of the

future amounts necessary to pay claims and expenses associated with the investigation and settlement of claims The reserve for

losses is determined on the basis of individual claims and payments thereon as well as actuarially determined estimates of

future losses based on past loss experience available industry data and projections as to future claims frequency severity

inflationary trends judicial trends legislative changes and settlement patterns

Management establishes the reserve for losses after taking into consideration variety of factors including the

conclusions reached by internal actuaries premium rates claims frequency historical paid and incurred loss development

trends the effect of inflation general economic trends the legal and political environment and the reports received from

consulting actuaries Internal actuaries perform an in-depth review of the reserve for losses at least semi-annually using the loss

and exposure data of ProAssurance subsidiaries Management engages consulting actuaries to review subsidiary loss and

exposure data and provide reports to Management regarding the adequacy of reserves

Estimating casualty insurance reserves and particularly liability reserves is complex process Claims may be resolved

over an extended period of time often five years or more and may be subject to litigation Estimating losses for liability claims

requires ProAssurance to make and revise judgments and assessments regarding multiple uncertainties over an extended period

of time As result reserve estimates may vary significantly from the eventual outcome Reserve estimates and the assumptions

on which these estimates are predicated are regularly reviewed and updated as new information becomes available Any

adjustments necessary are reflected in then current operations Due to the size of ProAssurances reserve for losses even

small percentage adjustment to these estimates could have material effect on earnings in the period in which the adjustment is

made as was the case in 2012 2011 and 2010

The effect of adjustments made to reinsured losses is mitigated by the corresponding adjustment that is made to

reinsurance recoveries Thus in any given year ProAssurance may make significant adjustments to gross losses that have little

effect on its net losses

Reinsurance Receivables

ProAssurance enters into reinsurance agreements whereby other insurance entities agree to assume portion of the risk

associated with the policies issued by ProAssurance In return ProAssurance agrees to pay premium to the reinsurer

ProAssurance purchases reinsurance to provide for greater diversification of business and to allow management to control

exposure to potential losses arising from large risks

Receivable from Reinsurers on Paid Losses is the estimated amount of losses already paid that will be recoverable from

reinsurers Receivable from Remsurers on Unpaid Losses is the estimated amount of future loss payments that will be

recoverable from reinsurers Reinsurance Recoveries are the portion of losses incurred during the period that are estimated to be

allocable to reinsurers Premiums ceded are the estimated premiums that will be due to reinsurers with respect to premiums

earned and losses incurred during the period

These estimates are based upon managements estimates of ultimate losses and the portion of those losses that are

allocable to reinsurers under the terms of the related reinsurance agreements Given the uncertainty of the ultimate amounts of

losses these estimates may vary significantly from the eventual outcome Management regularly reviews these estimates and

any adjustments necessary are reflected in the period in which the estimate is changed Due to the size of the receivable from

reinsurers even small adjustment to the estimates could have material effect on ProAssurances results of operations for the

period in which the change is made

Reinsurance contracts do not relieve ProAssurance from its obligations to policyholders ProAssurance continually

monitors its reinsurers to minimize its
exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies Any amount determined to be

uncollectible is written off in the period in which the uncollectible amount is identified
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2012

Accounting Policies continued

Investments

Fair Values

Fair values of investment securities are primarily provided by independent pricing services The pricing services provide

an exchange traded price if available or provide an estimated price determined using multiple observable inputs including

exchange traded prices for similarassets Management reviews valuations of securities obtained from the pricing services for

accuracy based upon the specifics of the security including class maturity credit rating durations collateral and comparable

markets for similarsecurities Multiple observable inputs are not available for certain of our investments including municipal

bonds and corporate debt not actively traded and investments in limited partnerships/limited liability companies LPs/LLCs

Management values these municipal bonds and corporate debt either using single non-binding broker quote or pricing models

that utilize market based assumptions that have limited observable inputs Management values investments in LPs/LLCs based

on the net asset value of the interest held as provided by the fund

Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities

Fixed maturities and equity securities are considered as either available-for-sale or trading securities

Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value as described above and unrealized gains and losses on such

available-for-sale securities are included net of related tax effects in Shareholders Equity as component of Accumulated

Other Comprehensive Income Loss

Investment income includes amortization of premium and accretion of discount related to debt securities acquired at other

than par value Debt securities and mandatorily redeemable preferred stock with maturities beyond one year when purchased

are classified as fixed maturities

Trading portfolio securities are carried at fair value as described above with the holding gains and losses included in

realized investment gains and losses in the current period

Short-term Investments

Short-term investments which have maturity at purchase of one year or less are primarily comprised of investments in

U.S Treasury obligations and commercial paper All balances are reported at amortized cost which approximates fair value

Other Investments

Investments in LPs/LLCs where ProAssurance has virtually no influence over the operating and financial policies of an

investee are accounted for using the cost method Under the cost method investments are valued at cost with investment

income recognized when received

Investment in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries

Investments in LPs/LLCs where ProAssurance is deemed to have influence because it holds greater than minor

interest are accounted for using the equity method Under the equity method the recorded basis of the investment is adjusted

each period for the investors pro rata share of the investees income or loss Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries include

tax credit partnerships accounted for using the equity method whereby ProAssurances proportionate share of income or loss is

included in investment income Tax credits received from the partnerships are recognized in the period received as reduction

to current tax expenses

Business Owned Life Insurance BOLl

ProAssurance owns life insurance contracts on certain management employees The life insurance contracts are carried at

their current cash surrender value Changes in the cash surrender value are included in income in the current period as

investment income Death proceeds from the contracts are recorded when the proceeds become payable under the policy terms

Realized Gains and Losses

Realized investment gains and losses are recognized on the specific identification basis
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Other-than-temporary Impairments

ProAssurance evaluates its available-for-sale investment securities on at least quarterly basis for declines in fair value

below recorded cost basis for the purpose of determining whether these declines represent other-than-temporary declines The

assessment of whether the amortized cost basis of debt securities particularly asset-backed debt securities is expected to be

recovered requires management to make assumptions regarding various matters affecting cash flows to be received in the

future The choice of assumptions is subjective and requires the use ofjudgments actual credit losses experienced in future

periods may differ from managements estimates of those credit losses

If there is intent to sell the security or if it is more likely than not that the security will be required to be sold before full

recovery of its amortized cost basis ProAssurance considers decline in fair value to be an other-than-temporary impairment

Otherwise ProAssurance considers the following factors in determining whether an investments decline is other-than-

temporary

For equity securities

the length of time for which the fair value of the investment has been less than its recorded basis

the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer underlying the investment taking into consideration the

economic prospects of the issuers industry and geographical region to the extent that information is publicly

available

the historical and implied volatility of the fair value of the security

For debt securities an evaluation is made as to whether the decline in fair value is due to credit loss which is defined as

the excess of the current amortized cost basis of the security over the present value of expected future cash flows

Methodologies used to estimate the present value of expected cash flows to determine if decline is due to credit loss are

For non-structured fixed maturities U.S Treasury securities obligations of U.S Government and government

agencies and authorities obligations of states municipalities and political subdivisions and corporate debt the

estimate of expected cash flows is determined by projecting recovery value and recovery time frame and

assessing whether further principal and interest will be received ProAssurance considers the following in projecting

recovery values and recover time frames

third party research and credit rating reports

the current credit standing of the issuer including credit rating downgrades whether before or after the balance

sheet date

internal assessments and the assessments of external portfolio managers regarding specific circumstances

surrounding an investment which indicate the investment is more or less likely to recover its amortized cost

than other investments with similarstructure

failure of the issuer of the security to make scheduled interest or principal payments

For structured securities primarily asset-backed securities ProAssurance estimates the present value of the

securitys cash flows using the effective yield of the security at the date of acquisition or the most recent implied

rate used to accrete the security if the implied rate has changed as result of previous impairment or changes in

expected cash flows ProAssurance incorporates six month
averages

of the levels of delinquencies defaults

seventies and prepayments in the securitization for the parameters applid to the assets underlying the

securitization in determining the net present value of the cash flows

Investments in LPs/LLCs are evaluated for impairment by comparing ProAssurances carrying value to net asset value

NAV of ProAssurances interest in the fund as reported by the fund manager Additionally Management considers the

performance of the fund relative to the market the stated objectives of the fund and cash flows expected from the fund and

fund audit reports if available

Tax credit partnership investments are evaluated for OTTI by comparing cash flow projections of future operating results

of the underlying projects generating the tax credits to the recorded value of the investment taking into consideration

ProAssurances ability to utilize the tax credits from the investments

ProAssurance recognizes other than temporary impairments including impairments of debt securities due to credit loss

in earnings as part of net realized investment gains losses In subsequent periods any measurement of gain or loss or

impairment is based on the revised amortized basis of the security Declines in fair value including impairments of debt

securities that are not evaluated as being due to credit loss not considered to be other-than-temporary are recognized in other

comprehensive income
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Asset-backed securities that have been impaired due to credit or are below investment grade quality are accounted for

under the effective yield method Under the effective yield method estimates of cash flows expected over the life of asset-

backed securities are then used to recognize income on the investment balance for subsequent accounting periods

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated balance sheets and statements of cash flow ProAssurance considers all demand deposits

and overnight investments to be cash equivalents

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Costs that vary with and are directly related to the successful production of new and renewal premiums primarily

premium taxes commissions and underwriting salaries are deferred to the extent they are recoverable against unearned

premiums and are amortized as related premiums are earned

Income Taxes/Deferred Taxes

ProAssurance files consolidated federal income tax return Tax-related interest and penalties are recognized as

components of tax expense

ProAssurance evaluates tax positions taken on tax returns and recognizes positions in the financial statements when it is

more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon resolution with taxing authority If recognized the benefit is

measured as the largest amount of benefit that has greater than fifty percent probability of being realized Uncertain tax

positions are reviewed each period by considering changes in facts and circumstances such as changes in tax law interactions

with taxing authorities and developments in case law and adjustments are made as considered necessary Adjustments to

unrecognized tax benefits may affect income tax expense and the settlement of uncertain tax positions may require the use of

cash

Deferred federal income taxes arise from the recognition of temporary differences between the basis of assets and

liabilities determined for financial reporting purposes
and the basis determined for income tax purposes ProAssurances

temporary differences principally relate to loss reserves unearned premium deferred policy acquisition costs unrealized

investment gains losses investment impairments and intangibles Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the

enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when such benefits are realized ProAssurance reviews its deferred tax assets quarterly

for impairment If management determines that it is more likely than not that some or all of deferred tax asset will not be

realized valuation allowance is recorded to reduce the carrying value of the asset In assessing the need for valuation

allowance management is required to make certain judgments and assumptions about the future operations of ProAssurance

based on historical experience and information as of the measurement period regarding reversal of existing temporary

differences carryback capacity future taxable income including its capital and operating characteristics and tax planning

strategies

Changes in tax laws and rates could also affect recorded deferred tax assets and liabilities in the future Management is

not aware of any such changes that would have material effect on the Companys results of operations cash flows or financial

position

Real Estate

Real Estate balances are reported at cost or for properties acquired in business combinations estimated fair value on the

date of acquisition less accumulated depreciation Real estate consists of properties primarily in use as corporate offices but

also includes land carrying value at both December 31 2012 and 2011 of $2.1 million Depreciation is computed over the

estimated useful lives of the related property using the straight-line method Excess office capacity is leased or made available

for lease rental income is included in other income and real estate expenses are included in underwriting policy acquisition

and operating expenses

Real estate accumulated depreciation was approximately $20.2 million and $18.6 million at December 31 2012 and 2011

respectively Real estate depreciation expense for the three years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 was $1.4 million

$1.7 million and $1.4 million respectively
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Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized over the estimated useful life of the asset Amortizable intangible assets

primarily consist of renewal rights and agency relationships and had carrying valu of $50.2 million and $46.1 million at

December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively with the difference being attributable to intangible assets acquired during 2012

Intangible assets with an indefinite life are not amortized and had carrying value of $14.3 million at both December 31 2012

and 2011 Intangible assets are evaluated for impairment on an annual basis

Accumulated amortization of intangible assets was $11.2 million and $6.7 million at December 31 2012 and 2011

respectively Amortization expense for intangible assets for the three years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 was $4.5

million $4.7 million and $1.3 million respectively The estimated aggregate amortization expense for intangible assets for each

of the five succeeding years approximates $4.7 million for 2013 $4.4 million for 2014 $3.0 million for 2015 $2.8 million for

2016 and $2.7 million for 2017

Goodwill

ProAssurance makes at least an annual assessment as to whether the value of its goodwill assets are impaired

Management evaluates the carrying value of goodwill annually on October and before the annual evaluation if events occur or

circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value below the carrying value Because ProAssurance

operates in single operating segment and all components within the segment are economically similar ProAssurance is

considered single reporting unit for the
purposes

of the impairment evaluation In assessing goodwill Management estimates

the fair value of the reporting unit on the evaluation date based on the Companys market capitalization and an expected

premium that would be paid to acquire control of the Company control premium and performs sensitivity analysis using

range of historical stock prices and control premiums Management concluded in 2012 2011 and 2010 that the fair value of the

Companys reporting unit exceeded the canying value and no adjustment to impair goodwill was necessary

Treasury Stock

Treasury shares are reported at cost and are reflected on the balance sheets as an unallocated reduction of total equity

Share-Based Payments

ProAssurance recognizes compensation cost for share-based payments including stock options performance share units

restricted share units and purchase match units using the modified prospective method whereby the methodology for

recognizing compensation expense differs depending upon the grant date of each share-based payment award Compensation

cost for awards granted after January 2006 is recognized based on the grant-date fair value of the award over the relevant

service period of the award for awards that vest in increments graded vesting compensation cost is recognized over the

relevant service period for each separately vested portion of the award Compensation cost for awards granted prior to

January 2006 but not vested on January 2006 is recognized over the remaining service period related to those awards

using the same calculation methodologies including grant-date fair values as was used to prepare pro forma disclosures prior

to January 2006 Excess tax benefits tax deductions realized in excess of the compensation costs recognized for the exercise

of the awards multiplied by the incremental tax rate are reported as financing cash inflows

Subsequent Events

In connection with its preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements PoAssurance has evaluated events that

occurred subsequent to December 31 2012 for recognition or disclosure in its financial statements and notes to the financial

statements

Accounting Changes Adopted

Accounting for Costs Associated with Acquiring or Renewing Insurance Contracts

Effective for fiscal years beginning after Iecember 15 2011 the FASB revised guidance regarding the interpretation of

which costs relating to the acquisition of new or renewal insurance contracts qualify for deferral The guidance permits deferral

of qualifying costs only when associated with successful contract acquisitions Internal selling agent and underwriter salary and

benefit costs allocated to unsuccessful contracts as well as advertising costs are excluded The guidance must be applied

prospectively but may be applied retrospectively for all prior periods ProAssurance prospectively adopted the guidance on

January 2012 Adoption of this guidance had no material effect on ProAssurances results of operations or financial position
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Fair Value Measurements

Effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15 2011 the FASB revised guidance related

to fair value measurements and disclosures all of which are to be applied prospectively The new guidance increases disclosure

requirements regarding valuation methods used to determine fair value measurements categorized as Level as well as the

sensitivity to change of those measurements and requires additional disclosures regarding the consideration given to highest

and best use in fair value measurements of nonfinancial assets The guidance also requires that when fair value measurements

of items not carried at fair value are disclosed the fair value measurements are to be categorized by level of the fair value

hierarchy Additionally the guidance also clarifies or revises certain fair value measurement principles related to the valuation

of financial instruments managed within portfolio the valuation of instruments classified as part of shareholders equity the

appropriate application of the highest and best use valuation premise and the consideration of premium and discounts in fair

value measurement ProAssurance adopted the guidance on January 2012 Adoption of this guidance had no material effect

on ProAssurances results of operations or financial position

Accounting Chan2es Not Yet Adopted

Intangibles-Goodwill and Other

Effective for fiscal years beginning after September 15 2012 the FASB revised guidance related to impairment testing of

indefinite-lived intangible assets The new guidance permits an entity to assess qualitative factors to determine whether the

existence of events and circumstances indicates that it is more likely than not that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is

impaired Quantitative impairment testing is required only if the assessment of qualitative factors indicates it is more likely than

not that impairment exists ProAssurance plans to adopt the guidance beginning January 2013 Adoption of this guidance is

expected to have no effect on ProAssurances results of operations or financial position

Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15 2012 the FASB revised guidance related

to the disclosure of amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive The most significant provisions of the new

guidance require entities to present additional disclosure regarding significant amounts reclassified in their entirety from

accumulated other comprehensive income to net income either on the face of the income statement or in the notes

ProAssurance plans to adopt the guidance beginning January 2013 Adoption of this guidance is expected to have no effect

on ProAssurances results of operations or fmancial position as it impacts disclosures only

Disclosures About Offsetting Assets and Liabilities

Effective for fiscal years beginning on or after January 2013 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB
revised guidance related to disclosures about certain assets and liabilities in an entitys financial statements The guidance

requires disclosures related to the net and
gross positions of certain financial instruments and transactions that are either eligible

for offset in accordance with existing GAAP guidance or subject to an agreement that requires such offset The guidance must

be applied retrospectively for all prior periods presented ProAssurance plans to adopt the guidance beginning January 2013

Adoption of this guidance is expected to have no effect on ProAssurances results of operations or financial position as it

impacts disclosures only
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Acquisitions

All entities acquired in 2012 and 2010 were accounted for in accordance with GAAP relating to business combinations

and are considered to be part of ProAssurances sole reporting segment the professional liability segment No entities were

acquired in 2011

During 2012 ProAssurance completed an acquisition of reciprocal exchange that converted to stock insurance

company upon acquisition The acquisition was not material to ProAssurance

On November 30 2010 ProAssurance acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of American Physicians Service Group
Inc APS as means of expanding its professional liability business Total purchase consideration transferred had fair value

of $237 million on the acquisition date and included cash of $233 million and deferred compensation commitments of $4

million ProAssurance expensed APS transaction costs of approximately $2 million during 2010 The purchase consideration

was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values on the acquisition dates The

excess of the purchase price over the net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed was recognized as

goodwill During 2011 goodwill initially recorded related to the purchase ofAPS was reduced by $1.8 million to $37.3 million

related to the completion of the valuation of pre-acquisition tax liabilities

The following table provides Pro Forma Consolidated Results for the
year

ended December 31 2010 as if the APS

transaction had occurred on January 2009 ProAssurance Actual Consolidated Results have been adjusted to reflect the

following net of related tax effects

The inclusion of APS operating results for the period preceding the APS acquisition date in 2010 ProAssurance 2010

Actual Consolidated Results include APS revenues of $6.2 million and earnings of $1.0 million attributable to the

period subsequent to November 30 2010

The effects of APS workforce reductions as if those workforce reductions had occurred in 2009

The exclusion of the direct costs of completing the APS transaction

For periods subsequent to the acquisition date amortization of policy acquisition costs ProAssurance Actual

Consolidated Results do not include such amortization because in accordance with GAAP assets for deferred policy

acquisition costs were not recognized as part of the purchase price allocation of APS

For periods preceding the acquisition date amortization of intangible assets and debt security premiums/discounts

recorded as part of the APS purchase price allocation

Year Ended

December 31 2010

ProAssurance ProAssurance

Pro Forma Actual

In thousands Consolidated Results Consolidated Results

Revenue 758670 692065

Earnings 249196 231598

On January 2013 ProAssurance completed the acquisition of Medmarc Mutual Insurance Company now Medmarc

Insurance Company Medmarc through sponsored demutualization Medmarc is based in Chantilly Virginia and provides

products liability insurance for medical technology and life sciences companies and also provides legal professional liability

insurance ProAssurance acquired Medmarc for cash of $153.7 million including the fimding of future policy credits for

eligible members of $7.5 million Allocation of the Medmarc purchase consideration to the assets acquired and liabilities

assumed was not complete as of the date of this report ProAssurance transferred the cash required to complete the transaction

$153.7 million to third-party conversion agent for the benefit of Medmarc eligible members on December 27 2012 the

deposit was classified as part of Other Assets at December 31 2012
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Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date three level hierarchy has been established for valuing assets

and liabilities based on how transparent observable the inputs are that are used to determine fair value with the inputs

considered most observable categorized as Level and those that are the least observable categorized as Level Hierarchy

levels are defined as follows

Level quoted unadjusted market prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities For

ProAssurance Level inputs are generally quotes for debt or equity securities actively traded in

exchange or over-the-counter markets

Level market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity observable inputs For

ProAssurance Level inputs generally include quoted prices in markets that are not active quoted

prices for similar assets or liabilities and results from pricing models that use observable inputs such as

interest rates and yield curves that are generally available at commonly quoted intervals

Level the reporting entitys own assumptions about market participant assumptions based on the best

information available in the circumstances non-observable inputs For ProAssurance Level inputs

are used in situations where little or no Level or inputs are available or are inappropriate given the

particular circumstances Level inputs include results from pricing models for which some or all of the

inputs are not observable discounted cash flow methodologies single non-binding broker quotes and

adjustments to externally quoted prices that are based on management judgment or estimation

Fair values of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis as of December 31 2012 and December 31

2011 including financial instruments for which ProAssurance has elected fair value are shown in the following tables The

tables also indicate the fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized to determine those fair values For some assets

the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy When this is the case the asset is

categorized based on the level of the most significant input to the fair value measurement Assessments of the significance of

particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment and consideration of factors specific to the assets being

valued
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December 31 2012

Fair Value Measurements using Total

In hou.sand.c Level Level Le%eI Fair Value

Assets

Fixed maturities available for sale

U.S Treasury obligations 205857 205857

U.S Government-sponsored enterprise obligations 56947 56947

State and municipal bonds 1212804 7175 1219979

Corporate debt multiple observable inputs 1455333 1455333

Corporate debt limited observable inputs

Private placement senior notes 346 346

Other corporate debt NRSRO ratings available 13835 13835

Other corporate debt NRSRO ratings not available 1010 1010

Residential mortgage-backed securities 289850 289850

Agency commercial mortgage-backed securities 59464 59464

Other commercial mortgage-backed securities 74106 74106

Other asset-backed securities 67237 4035 71272

Equity securities

Financial 70900 70900

UtilltiesfEnergy 31383 31383

Consumer oriented 51100 51100

Technology 11495 11495

Industrial 18.200 18200

All other 19540 19540

Short-term investments 59761 11976 71737

Financial instruments carried at fair value classified as part of

Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries 33739 33739

Total assets 262379 3433574 60140 3156093
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December 31 2011

Fair Value Measurements Jsing otal

In thousnLs-j Lee Level Level Fair Value

Assets

Fixed maturities available for sale

U.S Treasury obligations 283865 283865

U.S Government-sponsored enterprise obligations 68104 68.104

State and municipal bonds 1221187 7200 1228387

Corporate debt multiple observable inputs 1359.866 1359866

Corporate debt limited observable inputs

Private placement senior notes 612 612

Other corporate debt NRSRO ratings available 6310 6310

Other corporate debt NRSRO ratings not available 1160 1160

Residential mortgage-backed securities 452932 452932

Agency commercial mortgage-backed securities 81530 81530

Other commercial mortgage-backed securities 81188 81188

Other asset-backed securities 101809 101.809

Equity securities

Financial 25281 25281

Utilities/Energy 18748 18748

Consumer oriented 29711 29711

Technology 7556 7556

Industrial 9185 9185

All other 12677 12677

Short-term investments 111359 8062 119421

Financial instruments carried at fair value classified as part of

Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries 23841 23.841

Other investments 15873 15873

Total assets 214.517 3658543 54996 3928.056

Liabilities

2019 Note payable 14180 14180

Interest rate swap agreement 4659 4659

Total liabilities 18839 18839

The fair values for securities included in the Level category with the few exceptions described below have been

developed by one of several third party nationally recognized pricing services including services that price only certain types

of securities Each service uses complex methodologies to determine values for securities and subject the values they develop

to quality control reviews Management has selected primary source for each type of security in the portfolio and reviews the

values provided for reasonableness by comparing data to alternate pricing services and to available market and trade data

Values that appear inconsistent are further reviewed for appropriateness If value does not appear reasonable the valuation is

discussed with the service that provided the value and would be adjusted if necessary No such adjustments were necessary in

2012 or 2011
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Level Valuations

Below is summary description of the valuation methodologies primarily used by the pricing services for securities in

the Level category by security type

US Treasury obligations are valued based on quoted prices for identical assets or in markets that are not active quotes

for similar assets taking into consideration adjustments for variations in contractual cash flows and yields to maturity

US Government-sponsored enterprise obligations are valued using pricing models that consider current and historical

market data normal trading conventions credit ratings and the particular structure and characteristics of the security being

valued such as yield to maturity redemption options and contractual cash flows Adjustments to model inputs or model results

are included in the valuation
process

when necessary to reflect recent events such as regulatory government or corporate

actions or significant economic industry or geographic events that would affect the securitys fair value

State and municipal bonds are valued using series of matrices that consider credit ratings the structure of the security

the sector in which the security falls yields and contractual cash flows Valuations are further adjusted when necessary to

reflect recent events such as significant economic or geographic events or ratings changes that would affect the securitys fair

value

Corporate debt with multiple observable inputs consists primarily of corporate bonds but also includes small number

of bank loans The methodology used to value Level corporate bonds is the same as the methodology previously described for

U.S Government-sponsored enterprise obligations Bank loans are valued by an outside vendor based upon widely

distributed loan-specific listing of average bid and ask prices published daily by an investment industry group The publisher

of the listing derives the averages from data received from multiple market-makers for bank loans

Residential and commercial mortgage backed securities Agency pass-through securities are valued using matrix

considering the issuer type coupon rate and longest cash flows outstanding The matrix is developed daily based on available

market information Agency and non-agency collateralized mortgage obligations are both valued using models that consider the

structure of the security current and historical information regarding prepayment speeds ratings and ratings updates and

current and historical interest rate and interest rate spread data Evaluations of Alt-A mortgages include review of collateral

performance data which is generally updated monthly

Other asset-backed securities are valued using models that consider the structure of the security monthly payment

information current and historical information regarding prepayment speeds ratings and ratings updates and current and

historical interest rate and interest rate spread data Spreads and prepayment speeds consider collateral type Evaluations of

subprime home equity loans use the same evaluation methodology as previously described for Alt-A mortgages

Short-term investments included in the Level category are commercial paper and certificates of deposit maturing within

one year carried at cost which approximates the fair value of the security due to the short term to maturity

Level Valuations

Below is summary description of the valuation processes
and methodologies used as well as quantitative information

regarding securities in the Level category

Level Valuation Processes

Level securities are priced by the Vice President of Investments for our subsidiaries who reports to the Chief

Financial Officer

Level valuations are computed quarterly Prices are evaluated quarterly against prior period prices and the expected

change in price

Exclusive of Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries which are valued at NAy the securities noted in the

disclosure are primarily NRSRO rated corporate debt instruments for which comparable market inputs are commonly

available for evaluating the securities in question Valuation of these corporate debt instruments is not overly sensitive

to changes in the unobservable inputs used
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Level Valuation Methodologies

State and municipal bonds consists of auction rate municipal bonds valued internally using published quotes for similar

securities or by using model based on discounted cash flows using yields currently available on fixed rate securities with

similar term and collateral adjusted to consider the effect of floating rate and premium for illiquidity At December 31

2012 and December 31 2011 all of these bonds were rated A- or better

Corporate debt with limited observable inputs consists of private placement senior notes guaranteed by large regional

banks and certain corporate bonds Valuations are determined using dealer quotes for similar securities or discounted cash flow

models using yields currently available for similarsecurities Similar securities are defined as securities having like terms and

payment features that are of comparable credit quality Assessments of credit quality are based on NRSRO ratings if available

or are subjectively determined by management if not available At December 31 2012 the average rating of rated securities

was A-

Other asset-backed securities consists of securitizations of receivables valued using dealer quotes for similar securities or

discounted cash flow models using yields currently available for similarsecurities

Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries and Other investments consist of limited partnership LP and limited liability

company LLC interests valued using the net asset value NAV provided by the LP/LLC which approximates the fair value of

the interest

Such interests include the following

Unfunded

Commitments Fair Value

December 31 December 31 December 31
2012 2012 2011In thousunJ

Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries

LP primarily invested in long/short equities None 17115 17123

LPs primarily invested in non-public equities $43503 16624 6718

33739 23841

Other investments

LLC primarily invested in private equity and debt None 15873

33739 39714

The LP holds both long and short U.S and North American equities and targets absolute returns using strategy

designed to take advantage of event-driven market opportunities Redemptions are allowed with notice requirement

of up to 45 days and are paid within 30 days of the redemption date unless the redemption request is for 90% or more

of the requestors capital balance Redemptions at the 90% and above level will be paid at 90% with the remainder

paid after the LPs annual audit

The LPs are structured to provide capital appreciation through diversified investments in private equity which can

include investments in buyout venture capital mezzanine debt distressed debt and other private equity-oriented LPs

Redemptions are not allowed for one of the LPs except by special permission of the LP Income and capital are to be

periodically distributed at the discretion of the LP over an anticipated time frame that
spans

from to years

The LLC converted into publicly traded investment fund during the second quarter of 2012 Prior to conversion the

LLC was structured to provide income through diversified investments in private equity including mezzanine debt

distressed debt syndicated bank loans and other private equity-oriented investments

Liabilities are valued using the present value of expected underlying cash flows of the instrument discounted at rates

available on the valuation date for similar instruments issued by entities with similar credit standing to ProAssurance
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Quantitative Information Regarding Level Valuations

Quantitative Information about Level Fair Value Measurements

Fair Value at

December 31 Range

in millions 2012 Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Weighted As erage

Assets

State and municipal bonds $7.2 Market Comparable Comparability Adjustment 0% 10% 5%
Securities

Discounted Cash Flows Comparability Adjustment 0% 10% 5%

Corporate debt with limited $15.2 Market Comparable Comparability Adjustment 0% 5% 2.5%

observable inputs
Securities

Discounted Cash Flows Comparability Adjustment 0% 5% 2.5%

Other asset-backed $4.0 Market Comparable Corriparability Adjustment 0% 5% 2.5%

securities Securities

Discounted Cash Flows Comparability Adjustment 0% 5% 2.5%

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the entitys corporate bonds are the valuations

of comparable securities with similar issuer credit quality and maturity Changes in the availability of comparable securities

could result in changes in the fair value measurements
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December 31 2012

Level Fair Value Measurements Assets

Asset- Investment in

Corporate backed Unconsolidated Other
Debt Securities Subsidiaries Investments Total

Total gains losses realized and unrealized

Included in earnings as part of

Net Investment Income 14 14

Purchases 3136 6734 11008 20878

aea 25 1951 1118 1388 4482
Transfers in 9220 9220
Transfers out 3931 1616 15742 21289
Balance December 31 2012 $_7.175$ 15191 S_3L_33739$ 60140

Change in unrealized gains losses included in

earnings for the above period for Level

assets held at period-end 131 147

December 31 2011

Level Fair Value Measurements Assets

State and Asset- Investment in

Municipal Corporate backed Unconsolidated Other

in thou cands Bonds Debt Securities Subsidiaries Investments otal

Balance December 31 2010 7550 21229 2220 25112 56111

Total gains losses realized and unrealized

Included in earnings as part of

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated

subsidiaries 1077 1077
Net realized investment gains losses 314 318

Included in other comprehensive income 1650 15 1665

Purchases 1.684 64
Sales 350 8504 1921 194 10969
Transfers in 6587 16191 22778

Transfers out 9580 2282 11862
Balance December 312011 7200 8082 23841 15873 54996

Change in unrealized gains losses included in

earnings for the above period for Level assets

held at period-end

The following tables the Level Tables present summary information regarding changes in the fair value of assets and

liabilities measured at fair value using Level inputs including financial instruments for which ProAssurance has elected fair

value accounting

In thousands

State and

Municipal

Bonds

Net realized investment gains losses 10 131 121
Included In other comprehensive income 611 35 646

1077 318 1395
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Transfers

There were no transfers between the Level and Level categories during 2012 or 2011

Transfers shown in the preceding Level Tables are as of the end of the period and were to or from Level unless

otherwise noted

The transfers of Other investments reported in the Level Tables for 2012 and 2011 related to an interest in an LLC The

interest in the LLC cost method investment was not carried at fair value at December 31 2010 During 2011 the LLC

announced planned conversion to public fund Subsequent to the announcement ProAssurance through the recognition of

OTTI carried the LLC interest at fair value based on the NAV provided by fund management such valuation is considered to

be in the Level category The LLC converted into publicly traded investment fund during the second quarter of 2012 and the

interest in the LLC was valued using Level inputs at December 31 2012

All remaining transfers during 2012 and 2011 related to securities held for which there was little market activity for

identical or nearly identical securities during the period The securities were valued using multiple observable inputs when

those inputs were available otherwise the securities were valued using limited observable inputs

December 31 2012

Level Fair Value Measurements Liabilities

Interest

2019 Note rate swap

In thousands Payable agreement Total

BalanceDecember3l2011 14180 4659 18839

Total gains losses realized and unrealized

Included in earnings as part of

Net realized investment gains losses 769 476 1245

Loss on extinguishment of debt 2163 2163

Settlements 17112 5135 22247

Balance December 31 2012

Change in unrealized gains losses included in earnings for the above

period for Level liabilities outstanding at period-end

December 31 2011

Level Fair Value Measurements Liabilities

Interest

019 Note rate swap

In thousands Payable agreement Total

Balance December 31 2010 15616 3658 19274

Total gains losses realized and unrealized

Included in earnings as part of

Net realized investment gains losses 11 12 1001 111

Settlements 324 324

BalanceDecember3l2Oll 14180 4659 18839

Change in unrealized gains losses included in earnings for the above period

for Level liabilities outstanding at period-end 1112 1001 111
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Fair Value Option Elections

The 2019 Note Payable the Note and related interest rate swap agreement the Swap were repaid in July 2012 as

discussed in Note 10 Prior to repayment both the Note and the Swap were measured at fair value on recurring basis with

changes in the fair value of each liability recorded in net realized gains losses ProAssurance assumed both liabilities as part

of previous acquisition The fair value option was elected for the Note and the Swap because valuation at fair value better

reflected the economics of the related liabilities and eliminated the inconsistency that would have otherwise resulted from

carrying the Note on an amortized cost basis and the Swap at fair value

Financial Instruments Methodologies Other Than Fair Value

The following table provides the estimated fair value of our financial instruments that in accordance with GAAP for the

type of investment are measured using methodology other than fair value All fair values provided fall within the Level fair

value category

December 31 2012 December 31 2011

Estimated Estimated

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

in thouvands Value Value Value Value

Financial assets

Other lnvestments 31085 38656 2235 28226

Investment in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries 87310 91528 87483 96443

BOLl 52414 52414 52651 52.651

Other Assets 11400 11385 9636 9636

Financial liabilities

Revolving credit agreement 125000 125000

Trust Preferred Securities due 2034 22992 22992

Surplus Notes due May 2034 12000 12000

Note Payable due February 2012 515 519

Other Liabilities 12130 12085 15076 14946

Other Investments listed in the table above include interests in certain investment fund LPs/LLCs accounted for using the

cost method investments in Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB common stock carried at cost and an annuity investment

carried at amortized cost The estimated fair value of the LP/LLC interests is based on the NAV provided by the LP/LLC

managers The estimated fair value of the FHLB common stock is based on the amount ProAssurance would receive if its

membership were canceled as the membership cannot be sold The fair value of the annuity is the present value of the expected

future cash flows discounted using rate available in active markets for similarly structured instruments

Investment in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries consists of investments in tax credit partnerships and non-controlling

interest in limited liability company Fair values of investments in tax credit partnerships are based on the present value of the

cash flows expected to be generated by the partnerships discounted at rates for investments with similarrisk structures and

repayment periods The fair value of the LLC interest is estimated as the proceeds ProAssurance would receive upon

liquidation of the LLC

The fair value of the BOLT is the cash surrender value associated with the policies on the valuation date

Other Assets and Other Liabilities primarily consist of related investment assets and liabilities associated with funded

deferred compensation agreements Other Liabilities also includes certain contractual liabilities related to prior business

combinations Fair values of the funded deferred compensation assets and liabilities are based on the NAVs of the underlying

securities The fair values of the business combination liabilities are based on the present value of the expected cash flows

discounted at ProAssurances assumed incremental borrowing rate on the valuation date for unsecured liabilities with similar

repayment structures

The fair value of the long-term debt is the present value of expected underlying cash flows of the debt discounted at rates

available on the valuation date for similardebt issued by entities with similar credit standing to ProAssurance or if issued by

an insurance subsidiary the subsidiary issuing the debt
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Available-for-sale securities at December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 included the following

In thousands

Fixed maturities

U.S Treasury obligations

U.S Government-sponsored enterprise obligations

State and municipal bonds

Corporate debt

Residential mortgage-backed securities

Agency commercial mortgage-backed securities

Other commercial mortgage-backed securities

Other asset-backed securities

In 1/IoUcjncI

Fixed maturities

U.S Treasury obligations 267.120

U.S Government-sponsored enterprise obligations 62520

State arid municipal bonds 1.145.025

Corporate debt 1307504

Residential mortgage-backed securities 426.319

Agency commercial mortgage-backed securities 78817

Other commercial niortgage-backed securities 76.366

Other asset-backed securities 102049

3.465.720

Equity securities

283865

68104

206 1228387

7661 1367948

558 452932

2800 87 81530

4881 59 81188

1277 1517 101809

210134 10091 3665763

19 25

December 31 2012

Cross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

191642 14266 51 205857

52110 4837 56947

1134744 85329 94 1219979

1375880 96187 1543 1470$24

272990 17070 210 289850

57234 2255 25 59464

69062 5049 74106

70670 1203 601 71272

3224332 226196 2529 3447999

December 312011

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

16748

5584

83568

68105

27171

Includes other-than-temporary impairments recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income of $0.9 million at

December 31 2012 and $3.3 million at December 31 2011

3465726 210153 10091 3665788
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The recorded cost basis and estimated fair value of available-for-sale fixed maturities at December 31 2012 by

contractual maturity are shown below Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have

the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties

Due after Due after

one year five years

Amortized Due in one through through Due after Total Fair

Co4 year or less live years ten years ten years Value

191642 31677 126488 44449 3243 205857

52110 50359 6075 513 56947

1134744 39481 411230 510709 258559 1219979

1375880 60677 690198 670368 49281 1470524

272990

Agency commercial mortgage-

backed securities 57234

Other commercial mortgage-

backed securities

Other asset-backed securities

Excluding investments in bonds and notes of the U.S Government U.S Government-sponsored enterprise obligations or

pre-reftinded state and municipal bonds which are 100% backed by U.S Treasury obligations no investment in any entity or its

affiliates exceeded 10% of shareholders equity at December 31 2012

Securities with carrying value of $24.1 million at December 31 2012 were on deposit with various state insurance

departments to meet regulatory requirements ProAssurance also held securities with carrying value of $196.2 million at

December 31 2012 that are pledged as collateral security for advances under the Revolving Credit Agreement see Note 10

Business Owned Life Insurance BOLl

ProAssurance holds BOLl policies on management employees that are carried at the current cash surrender value of the

policies original cost $33 million The primary purpose
of the program is to offset future employee benefit expenses through

earnings on the cash value of the policies ProAssurance is the owner and principal beneficiary of these policies

Other In vestments

Other Investments at December 2012 and December 31 2011 was comprised as follows

December 31 December31
in miIIions 2012 20

25.1 16.2

15.9

4.3 4.4

In thousands

Fixed maturities available for sale

U.S Treasury obligations

U.S Government-sponsored

enterprise obligations

State and municipal bonds

Corporate debt

Residential mortgage-backed

securities

69062

70670

$3224332

289850

59464

74106

71272

$3447999

Investments in LPs/LLCs at cost

Investment in LLC at NAV

FHLB capital stock at cost

Other principally an annuity at amortized cost 1.7

311 382

FHLB capital stock is not marketable but may be liquidated by terminating membership in the FHLB The liquidation

process can take up to five years

1.7
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Unconsolidated Subsidiaries

ProAssurance holds investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries accounted for under the equity method The investments

include the following

December 31 2012 Carrying Value

Unfunded Percentage Iecember 31 December
In IflhlIIOflS Commitments Ownership 2012 201

Investment LPs/LLCs

Tax credit partnerships 20.5 20% 87.3 86.8

Long/Short equity fund 20% 17.1 17.1

Non-public equity funds 43.5 20% 16.6 6.7

Business LLC See Below 0.7

121.0 111.3

Tax credit partnerships interests held by ProAssurance generate investment returns by providing tax benefits to fund

investors in the form of project operating losses and tax credits The related propertes are principally low income housing

projects

The Long/Short equity fund LP targets absolute returns using strategy designed to take advantage of event-driven

market opportunities

The Non-public equity fund LPs hold diversified private equities and are structured to provide capital appreciation

The Business LLC interest is convertible preferred interest in service-related business that began business operations

in 2011 The preferred interest can be converted into non-controlling common interest in May 2015 but conversion is not

required As of December 31 2012 the carrying value of the interest was zero due to the recognition of losses incurred to-date

by the LLC

Investments Held in Loss Position

The following tables provide summarized information with respect to investments held in an unrealized loss position at

December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 including the length of time the investment had been held in continuous

unrealized loss position

December 31 2012

Total Less than 12 months More than 12 months

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

in thousandsi Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss

Fixed maturities available for sale

U.S Treasury obligations 4073 51 4073 51
State and municipal bonds 11234 94 9232 65 2002 29
Corporate debt 90154 1543 81878 1377 8276 166
Residential mortgage-backed

securities 19721 210 10029 205 692

Agency commercial mortgage-

backed securities 1643 25 498 1145 23
Other commercial mortgage-
backed securities 2100 1103 997

Other asset-backed securities 10746 601 7707 20 3039 581
130671 2529 114520 1721 16151 808

Other investments

851 8697 688 777 163
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December 31 2011

Total Less than 12 months More than 12 months

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

In tiwusancic Value Loss Valuc Loss Value Loss

Fixed maturities available for sale

U.S Treasury obligations 8379 8379

State and municipal bonds 9743 206 7143 10 2600 196

Corporate debt 205605 7661 194057 6691 11548 970

Residential mortgage-backed

securities 33605 558 31213 349 2392 209

Agency commercial mortgage-

backed securities 8433 87 4682 47 3751 40
Other commercial mortgage-backed

securities 4086 59 3143 943 57
Other asset-backed securities 26518 1517 21.282 123 5236 1394

296369 10091 269899 7225 26470 2866

Other investments

Investments in LPs/LLCs carried at

cost 4198 984 3815 856 383 128

As of December 31 2012 there were 142 debt securities 5.7% of all available-for-sale fixed maturity securities held in

an unrealized loss position representing 131 issuers The single greatest unrealized loss position was approximately $0.6

million the second greatest unrealized loss position was approximately $0.2 million The securities were evaluated for

impairment as of December 31 2012

As of December 31 2011 there were 251 debt securities 9.6% of all available-for-sale fixed maturity securities held in

an unrealized loss position representing 224 issuers The single greatest unrealized loss position approximated $1.2 million the

second greatest unrealized loss position approximated $1.0 million The securities were evaluated for impairment as of

December 31 2011

Each quarter ProAssurance performs detailed analysis for the purpose of assessing whether any of the securities it holds

in an unrealized loss position have suffered an other-than-temporary impairment in value detailed discussion of the factors

considered in the assessment is included in Note

Fixed maturity securities held in an unrealized loss position at December 31 2012 excluding asset-backed securities

have paid all scheduled contractual payments and are expected to continue doing so Expected future cash flows of asset-backed

securities held in an unrealized loss position were estimated as part of the December 31 2012 impairment evaluation using the

most recently available six-month historical performance data for the collateral loans underlying the security or if historical

data was not available sector based assumptions and equaled or exceeded the current amortized cost basis of the security

Net Investment Income

Net investment income by investment category was as follows

In rhousandv 2012 201 2010

Fixed maturities 133088 140897 146036

Equities 6947 1808 797

Short-term investments 132 100 417

Other invested assets 528 2712 3145

Business owned life insurance 2008 2017 1617

142703 147534 152012

Investment fees and expenses 6609 6578 5632
Net investment income 136094 140956 146380
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Net Realized Investment Gains Losses

The following table provides detailed information regarding net realized investment gains losses

iota other-than-temporary impairment losses

Residential mortgage-backed securities 557 782 1487

Corporate debt 878 505
Otherinvestments 131 3827 3373

High yield asset-backed securities 75 9515
Portion recognized in reclassified from Other Comprehensive Income

Residential mortgage-backed securities 201 823 1474
Net impairment losses recognized in earnings 1767 6012 15849

Gross realized gains available-for-sale securities 18645 14625 30433

Gross realized losses available-for-sale securities 2076 1.754 628
Net realized gains losses trading securities 1485 2212 6630

Change in unrealized holding gains losses trading securities 12673 3188 1542
Decrease increase in the fair value of liabilities carried at fair value 1245 111 1902
Other 1148 200

Net realized investment gains losses 28863 5994 17342

ProAssurance recognized impairment losses related to certain residential mortgage-backed securities in 2012 2011 and

2010 because carrying values for those securities were greater than the future cash flows expected to be received from the

securities

ProAssurance recognized impairments related to corporate debt securities in 2012 and 2011 because the credit standing of

the issuers had deteriorated

ProAssurance recognized impairments in 2012 2011 and 2010 related to an interest in an LLC accounted for using the

cost method that was classified as part of Other Investments In 2011 the LLC announced plan to convert to publicly

traded investment fund and OTTI was recognized in subsequent periods in order to carry
the interest at the NAV reported by

the fimd The conversion occurred in 2012 In 2010 the LLC reported realized losses on the sale of securities and

ProAssurance reduced the carrying value of its interest in the LLC in recognition of its
pro

rata share of those losses

ProAssurance recognized impairments in 2010 related to certain high-yield securities that management intended to sell

The following table presents roll forward of cumulative credit losses recorded in earnings related to impaired debt

securities for which portion of the other-than-temporary impairment was recorded in Other Comprehensive Income

In thousands 2012 2111 2110

Balance beginning of period 5870 4446 2068

Additional credit losses recognized during the period related to securities for which

No OTTI has been previously recognized 69

OTTI has been previously recognized 268 1.424 5720

Reductions due to

Securities sold during the period realized 2837
Securities which will be sold in coming periods 3411

Balance December 31 3301 5870 4446
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Other information regarding sales and purchases of available-for-sale securities is as follows

In millions 2012 20 2010

Proceeds from sales exclusive of maturities and paydowns 621.1 449.6

Purchases 646.2 782.6 850.0

Reinsurance

ProAssurance has various excess of loss quota share and cession reinsurance agreements in place Historically the

professional liability per claim retention level has varied between 90% and 100% of the first $1 million and between 0% and

5% of claims exceeding those levels depending on the
coverage year and the state in which business was written ProAssurance

also insures some large professional liability risks that are above the limits of its basic reinsurance treaties These risks are

reinsured on facultative basis whereby the reinsurer agrees to insure particular risk up to designated limit

The effect of reinsurance on premiums written and earned was as follows in thousands

2012 Premiums 2011 Premiums 2010 Premiums

Written Earned Written Earned Written Earned

Direct 536318 558200 565.746 570891 533112 548897

Assumed 113 116 149 154 93 58

Ceded 8133 7652 7388 5630 27798 29848

Net premiums 528298 550664 558507 565415 505407 519107

The receivable from reinsurers on unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses represents Managements estimate of

amounts that will be recoverable under ProAssurance reinsurance agreements These estimates are based upon Managements

expectation of ultimate losses and the portion of those losses that are allocable to reinsurers according to the terms of the

agreements Given the uncertainty of the ultimate amounts of losses Managements estimates of losses and related amounts

recoverable may vary significantly from the eventual outcome Also premiums ceded under reinsurance agreements wherein

the premium due to the reinsurer subject to certain maximums and minimums is based in part on losses reimbursed or to be

reimbursed under the agreement and will thus vary when loss estimates are revised During the years ended December 31

2012 and 2011 ProAssurance reduced premiums ceded by $34.3 million and $30.6 million respectively due to changes in

Managements estimates of amounts due to reinsurers related to prior accident year
loss recoveries

Reinsurance contracts do not relieve ProAssurance from its obligations to policyholders and ProAssurance remains liable

to its policyholders whether or not reinsurers honor their contractual obligations to ProAssurance ProAssurance continually

monitors its reinsurers to minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies

At December 31 2012 $81.6 million of the total amounts due from reinsurers of $164.0 million including receivables

related to paid and unpaid losses and LAE and prepaid reinsurance premiums less reinsurance premiums payable was due

from four reinsurers which had an individual balance which exceeded $10 million Each of these reinsurers had an A.M Best

credit rating of or above

At December 31 2012 and 2011 ProAssurance had no allowance for credit losses related to its reinsurance receivables

During the
years

ended December 31 2012 and 2011 no reinsurance balances were written off for credit reasons

At December 31 2012 all reinsurance recoverables were considered collectible Reinsurance recoverables totaling

approximately $14 million were collateralized by letters of credit or funds withheld At December 31 2012 no amounts due

from individual reinsurers exceeded 5% of shareholders equity

During 2011 ProAssurance commuted tenninated various outstanding reinsurance agreements for approximately $4.3

million in cash The commutations reduced Receivable from Reinsurers on Paid Losses and Receivable from Reinsurers on

Unpaid Losses combined by approximately $4.0 million net of cash received and reduced Reinsurance Premiums Payable by

approximately $5.6 million

There were no significant reinsurance commutations in 2012 or 2010
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the amount of assets and liabilities for

financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes Significant components of ProAssurances deferred

tax assets and liabilities were as follows

2012 2011

57811 81673

20497 21368

14634 14770

10681

2214 2606

95156 131098

8112 9319

78284 70022

5630 5439

3029

14311 13048

375 2281

109741 100109

14585 30989

In evaluating the need for valuation allowance on deferred tax assets managrnent determined that assets related to

capital losses on investments would be realized through tax planning strategy of selling investments with built in gains

valuation allowance of $0.9 million that was established in 2009 related to deferred tax assets acquired in the PICA

acquisition was released in 2010 ProAssurance has begun realizing the benefit of thse deferred tax assets and Management

believes that sufficient sources of taxable income will be available in the future to allow realization of the currently remaining

deferred tax assets

At December 31 2012 ProAssurance has no available net operating loss NOL carryforwards capital loss

carryforwards or Alternative Minimum Tax AMT credit carryforwards ProAssurance files income tax returns in the U.S

federal jurisdiction and various states

In 1/I.lflCI

Deferred tax assets

Unpaid loss discount

Unearned premium adjustment

Compensation related

Basis differencesinvestments

Intangibles

Total deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred acquisition costs

Unrealized gains on investnients net

Fixed assets

Basis differencesinvestments

Intangibles

Other

Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax assets liabilities
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The Internal Revenue Service IRS has completed an examination of the Companys 2005 through 2008 returns the

2005-2008 exam The 2005-2008 exam resulted in delaying the deductibility of certain bonus compensation which increased

taxes due for the 2007 and 2008 tax years
but decreased taxes due for the 2009 tax year by an offsetting amount the effect of

which had previously been recorded as an uncertain tax position The 2005-2008 exam resulted in no adjustment to tax expense

exclusive of interest accruals and no penalties or fines Upon finalization of the 2005-2008 exam uncertain tax positions

totaling $8.3 million were deemed effectively settled and were reversed along with approximately $0.3 million of related

accrued interest in the first quarter of 2011

The IRS has preliminarily concluded an examination of the 2009 and 2010 returns and has issued Notice of Proposed

Adjustment NOPA for these years which would increase our current tax liability by approximately $130 million

ProAssurance is protesting the IRS position and is unable to reliably predict the timing of the final resolution or the ultimate

outcome The contested issues affect only the timing of when certain expense items are deductible for tax and resolution of the

NOPA would have no effect on our recorded tax expense exclusive of interest found to be due on past-due taxes if any

Except for the 2006 tax year the statutes of limitation are closed for all years prior to 2008 The statute for the 2006 tax

year as well as the 2009 and 2010 tax year was extended until September 30 2014

reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax benefits for 2012 and 2011 was as follows

In t/JOUc1Id.SI
2012 201

Balance at January
18585 8344

lncreases/decreases for tax positions taken during the current year 10206

Increases/decreases for tax positions taken during the prior years 3556 18585

Decreases relating to settlements with taxing authorities 8344

Balance at December31 4823 18585

ProAssurances provision for uncertain tax positions at both December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 relates entirely

to the timing of deductions Changes to the provision recognized in current taxes during 2012 and 2011 were offset by the

recognition of like but opposite change to deferred taxes Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31 2012 if recognized

would not affect the effective tax rate but would accelerate the payment of tax As with any uncertain tax position there is

possibility that the ultimate deduction recognized could differ from the provision established by ProAssurance Management

does not expect any
material changes to the Companys liability other than interest accruals during the next twelve months

ProAssurance recognizes interest andlor penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense Interest

recognized in the income statement approximated $0.5 million $0.8 million and $0.4 million during the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The accrued liability for interest approximated $1.4 million and $0.9 million

at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

reconciliation of expected income tax expense 35% of income before income taxes to actual income tax expense in

the accompanying financial statements follows

In i/uucipkI 2012 2011 2010

Computed expected tax expense 138588 145109 116437

Tax-exempt inconie 14374 13793 15.048

Tax credits 10005 5654 1000

Other 6287 1840 690

Total 120496 127502 101079

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Policy acquisition costs most significantly commissions premium taxes and underwriting salaries that are primarily and

directly related to the successful production of new and renewal insurance contracts are capitalized as policy acquisition costs

and amortized to expense as the related premium revenues are earned

As discussed in Note revised FASB guidance effective January 2012 requires that policy acquisition costs related to

unsuccessful contracts be expensed immediately ProAssurance adopted the revised guidance on prospective basis Under
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prior guidance policy acquisition costs capitalized during the year ended December 31 2012 would have been $57.8 million

as compared to $53.6 million capitalized under the current guidance

Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs was $57.0 million $59.6 million and $58.9 million for the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Reserve for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The reserve for losses is established based on estimates of individual claims and actuarially determined estimates of

future losses based on ProAssurances past loss experience available industry data and projections as to future claims

frequency severity inflationary trends and settlement patterns Estimating reserves and particularly liability reserves is

complex process Claims may be resolved over an extended period of time often five
years or more and may be subject to

litigation Estimating losses for liability claims requires ProAssurance to make and revise judgments and assessments regarding

multiple uncertainties over an extended period of time As result reserve estimates may vary significantly from the eventual

outcome The assumptions used in establishing ProAssurances reserves are regularly reviewed and updated by management as

new data becomes available Changes to estimates of previously established reserves are included in earnings in the period in

which the estimate is changed

ProAssurance believes that the methods it uses to establish reserves are reasonable and appropriate Each year

ProAssurance uses internal actuaries to review the reserve for losses of each insurance subsidiary ProAssurance also
engages

consulting actuaries to review ProAssurance claims data and provide observations regarding cost trends rate adequacy and

ultimate loss costs ProAssurance considers the views of the actuaries as well as other factors such as known anticipated or

estimated changes in frequency and severity of claims and loss retention levels and premium rates in establishing the amount

of its reserve for losses The statutory filings of each insurance company with the insurance regulators must be accompanied by

an external actuarys certification as to their respective reserves in accordance with the requirements of the NAIC

Activity in the reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses is summarized as follows

In thou.sandc 2012 2011 2010

Balance beginning of year 2247772 2414100 2422230

Less reinsurance recoverables 247658 277436 262659

Net balance beginning of
year 2000114 2136664 2159571

Net reserves acquired from acquisitions 22464 82225

Net losses

Current year 451951 488152 455105

Favorable development of reserves established in prior

years net 272038 325865 233990

Total 179913 162287 221115

Paid related to

Current year 3843 34240 34593

Prior years 300703 264597 291654

Total paid 339142 298837 326247

Net balance end of year 1863349 2000114 2136664

Plus reinsurance recoverables 191645 247658 277436

Balance end of year 2054994 2247772 2414100

As discussed in Note estimating liability reserves is complex and requires the use of many assumptions As time passes

and ultimate losses for prior years are either known or become subject to more precise estimation ProAssurance increases or

decreases the reserve estimates established in prior periods The favorable development recognized in 2012 primarily reflects

lower than anticipated claims severity trend for accident years 2004 through 2009 The favorable development recognized in

2011 and 2010 was primarily due to lower than anticipated claims severity trends for accident years 2004 through 2008 and

accident
years

2003 through 2007 respectively Actuarial evaluations of both internal and industry actual claims data in 2012
2011 and 2010 all indicated that claims severity i.e the average size of claim is increasing more slowly than was anticipated

when the reserves for 2003 through 2009 were initially established
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ProAssurance is involved in various legal actions related to insurance policies and claims handling including but not

limited to claims asserted by policyholders These types of legal actions arise in the Companys ordinary course of business

and in accordance with GAAP for insurance entities are considered as part of the Companys loss reserving process which is

described in detail under Accounting Policies Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses in Note

ProAssurance has commitments primarily related to non-public investment entities totaling approximately $103.4 million

expected to be paid as follows $60.1 million within one year $42.5 million within one to three years and $0.8 million within

three to five years

ProAssurance is involved in number of operating leases primarily for office space and office equipment The following

is schedule of future minimum lease payments for operating leases that had initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in

excess of one year as of December 31 2012

Operating Leases

in thousands

2013 2710

2014 2472

2015 2085

2016 1890

Thereafter 7164

Total minimum lease payments 16321

ProAssurance incurred rent expense
of $2.7 million $3.4 million and $3.3 million in the years ended December 31 2012

2011 and 2010 respectively
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10 Long-term Debt

ProAssurances outstanding long-term debt consisted of the following

In thousands

December 31 December 31
2012 2011

Trust Preferred Securities due 2034 unsecured interest at variable rate of LIBOR plus

3.85% reset quarterly Note repaid in August 2012 at no gain or loss 22992

Surplus Notes due May 2034 unsecured interest at variable rate of LIBOR plus 3.85% reset

quarterly Note repaid in August 2012 at no gain or loss 12000

Note Payable due February 2019 the 2019 Note interest at variable rate ofLIBOR plus

0.7% carried at fair value monthly principal payments required outstanding principal at

December 31 2011 of $17.1 million Outstanding principal repaid in July 2012 loss of $2.2

million was recognized on the extinguishment 14180

Note Payable due February 2012 Note was repaid in February 2012 515

Revolving Credit Agreement expires in 2016 Borrowing at December31 2012 carries an

interest rate of 0.81% until March 31 2013 when the rate will be redetermined Secured by

investments see Note 125000

125000 49687

Revo1vin Credit A.reement

On April 15 2011 ProAssurance entered into revolving credit agreement the Agreement with five participating

lenders In September 2012 the agreement was amended and the expiration date extended to April 15 2016 The Agreement

permits ProAssurance to borrow repay and reborrow from the lenders during the term of the Agreement aggregate outstanding

borrowings are not permitted to exceed $150 million at any time All borrowings are required to be repaid prior to the

expiration date of the Agreement ProAssurance is required to pay commitment fee on the average unused portion of the credit

line during the term of the Agreement The commitment fee can range from 15 to 30 basis points based on ProAssurances

credit ratings and is set at 20 basis points at December 31 2012 Borrowings under the agreement may be secured or unsecured

and accrue interest at base rate adjusted by specified margin ProAssurance is permitted to select either the then current one
three or six month LIBOR rate with the LIBOR term selected fixing the interest period for which the rate is effective If

LIBOR is not selected the base rate defaults to the highest of the Prime rate the Federal Funds rate plus 50 basis points

or the one month LIBOR rate plus 100 basis points determined daily Rates are reset each successive interest period until

the borrowing is repaid The margin adjustment can vary from to 188 basis points depending upon ProAssurances credit

rating and whether the borrowing is secured or unsecured

The Agreement contains customary representations covenants and events constituting default and remedies for default

Additionally the Agreement carries the following financial covenants

ProAssurance is not permitted to have leverage ratio of Consolidated Funded Indebtedness principally obligations for

borrowed money obligations evidenced by instruments such as notes or acceptances standby and commercial Letters of

Credit and contingent obligations to Consolidated Total Capitalization principally total non-trade liabilities on

consolidated basis plus consolidated shareholders equity exclusive of accumulated other comprehensive income

greater than 0.35 to 1.0 determined at the end of each fiscal quarter

ProAssurance is required to maintain minimum net worth of not less than th sum of 75% of Consolidated Net Worth

consolidated shareholders equity exclusive of accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31 2010 plus

50% of consolidated net income earned each fiscal quarter if positive beginning with the quarter ending March 31

2011 plus 100% of net cash proceeds resulting from the issuance of ProAssurance capital stock

Funds borrowed under the terms of the Revolving Credit Agreement will be used for general corporate purposes

including but not limited to use as short-term working capital funding for share repurchases as authorized by the Board and

for support of other activities ProAssurance enters into in the normal course of business

On December 24 2012 ProAssurance borrowed $125 million under the Agreement on secured basis to partially fund

the acquisition of Medmarc see Note
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10 Long-term Debt continued

Future maturities of the Agreement as of December 31 2012 are as follows

In thousands

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter

$125000

Covenant Compliance

ProAssurance is currently in compliance with all covenants

Interest Rate Swap Termination

interest rate swap related to the 2019 Note was terminated for $5.1 million at the time the 2019 Note was repaid The

liability for the Swap which was carried at fair value as part of other liabilities approximated $4.7 million at December 31

2011

11 Shareholders Equity

At December 31 2012 and 2011 ProAssurance had 100 million shares of authorized common stock and 50 million shares

of authorized preferred stock The Board has the authority to determine provisions for the issuance of preferred shares

including the number of shares to be issued the designations powers preferences and rights and the qualifications limitations

or restrictions of such shares To date the Board has not approved the issuance of preferred stock

The Board declared two-for-one stock split effected December 27 2012 in the form of stock dividend treasury shares

were reissued to provide 7.7 million of the shares needed for the split In 2012 the Board declared quarterly cash dividend of

$0.25 per common share and special dividend of $2.50 per share in the fourth quarter period and declared quarterly cash

dividend of $0.1 25 per common share for each of the other quarter periods Dividends declared in 2012 totaled $192.5 million

all were paid in 2012 During 2011 the Board declared quarterly cash dividend of $0 125 per common share each quarter for

each of the third and fourth quarter periods Dividends declared in 2011 totaled $15.3 million $7.6 million of which was paid in

2011 and $7.7 million in January 2012

At December 31 2012 approximately 2.5 million of ProAssurances authorized common shares were reserved by the

Board for award or issuance under incentive compensation plans as described in Note 12 Additionally at December 31 2012

approximately 0.9 million of ProAssurances authorized common shares were reserved by the Board for the issuance of

outstanding restricted share and performance share units and for the exercise of outstanding stock options As of December 31

2012 prior Board authorizations of $135.1 million for the repurchase of common shares or the retirement of outstanding debt

remained available for use The timing and quantity of purchases depends upon market conditions and changes in

ProAssurances capital requirements and is subject to limitations that may be imposed on such purchases by applicable

securities laws and regulations and the rules of the New York Stock Exchange

ProAssurance used approximately $52.5 million of the authorization to redeem debt during the year ended December 31

2012 see Note 10

ProAssurance did not repurchase any common shares during the year ended December 31 2012 ProAssurance

repurchased approximately 0.7 million and 3.7 million common shares having total cost of $21.0 million and $106.3 million

during the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively During 2012 and 2011 approximately 23000 and 18000

treasury shares respectively having fair value of approximately $1.0 million and $0.7 million respectively were reissued to

the ProAssurance Corporation 2011 Employee Stock Ownership Plan participant accounts

ProAssurance issued approximately 37000 40000 and 81000 common shares to employees in February 2012 2011 and

2010 respectively as bonus compensation as approved by the Compensation Committee of the Board The shares issued were

valued at fair value the market price of ProAssurance common share on the date of award
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11 Shareholders Equity continued

Other Comprehensive Income

For all periods presented other comprehensive income was comprised of unrealized gains and losses including non-

credit impairment losses arising during the period related to available-for-sale securities less reclassification adjustments for

gains losses from available-for-sale securities recognized in current period net income net of tax Accumulated other

comprehensive income was comprised entirely of unrealized gains and losses from available for sale securities net of tax

Reclassification adjustments related to available-for-sale securities for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and

2010 were as follows

In tlUU.VUflIS 2012 2011 2010

Net realized investment gains losses included in the

calculation of net income 14933 10686 17329

Tax effect at 35% 5227 3740 6065

Net realized investment gains losses reclassified from

other comprehensive income 9706 6946 11264

12 Share-Based Payments

Share-based compensation costs are primarily classified as underwriting policy acquisition and operating expenses

Since the beginning of 2009 ProAssurance has provided share-based compensation to employees under the ProAssurance

Corporation 2008 Equity Incentive Plan Previously compensation was provided under the ProAssurance Corporation 2004

Equity Incentive Plan 2005 to 2008 and the ProAssurance Corporation Incentive Compensation Stock Plan @rior to 2005

The Compensation Committee of the Board is responsible for the administration of all three plans

ProAssurance has provided share-based compensation to employees utilizing four types of awards stock options

restricted share units performance share units and purchase match units The following table provides summary of

compensation expense and compensation cost that will be charged to expense in future periods by award type and the total

related tax benefit recognized during each period

Share-Based

Compensation Expense Unrecognized Compensation Cost

Year Ended December31 December 31 2012

2012 2011 2010

Remaining

Amount Recognition Period

im n1Ion.c im nillions Weighted average rearc

Stock Options 0.1 0.4 NA

Restricted Share Units 1.6 1.3 0.7 2.0 1.8

Performance Share Units 6.7 5.6 5.0 9.3 1.8

Purchase Match Units 0.3 0.1 1.2 2.5

Total share-based compensation expense
8.6 7.1 6.1 12.5

Tax benefit recognized 3.0 2.5 2.1

All awards are charged to expense as an increase to equity over the service period generally the vesting period

associated with the award Except for stock options which are separately described below awards vest in their entirety at the

end of three-year period following the grant date based on continuous service requirement and for performance share units

achievement of performance objective Partial vesting is permitted for retirees ProAssurance common share is issued for

each restricted performance or purchase match unit once vesting requirements are met except that units sufficient to satisf

required tax withholdings are paid in cash

On December 27 2012 ProAssurance paid special dividend of $2.50 per common share and effected two-for-one split

Thereafter the Compensation Committee adjusted outstanding awards and options so as to put award holders in the same

economic position after split and the dividend as before No compensation resulted fiom the adjustments because there was no

change to the intrinsic value of the awards The following tables reflect award activity as if the adjustments had occurred at the

beginning of the earliest period presented
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12 Share-Based Payments continued

Stock Options

ProAssurances stock options generally vest in five equal installments the first installment occurring six months after the

grant date and the other installments occurring annually thereafter All options are granted with an exercise price equal to the

market price of ProAssurance common share on the date of grant and an original term of ten years ProAssurance option

agreements permit cashless exercise whereby the exercise price and any required tax withholdings are allowed to be satisfied by

the retention of shares that would otherwise be deliverable to the option holder ProAssurance issues new shares for options

exercised

Activity for stock options during 2012 2011 and 2010 is summarized below

Options ptions pcions

Outstanding beginning of year 1014661 22.76 1430105 21.85 2031754 20.17

Granted

Exercised 994148 22.75 412695 19.61 601649 16.18

lorkited or expired 211 25.67 2749 25.36

Outstanding at end of year 20302 23.15 1014661 22.76 1430105 21.85

Exercisable at end oIyear 20302 23.15 959.889 22.59 1.258492 21.40

The aggregate grant date fair value of options vested during the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 was $0.9

million $0.9 million and $1.3 million respectively The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised during 2012 2011 and

2010 was $19.8 million $5.8 million and $7.7 million respectively ProAssurance outstanding options were all vested as of

December 31 2012 and had an aggregate intrinsic value of $0.4 million and weighted average remaining contractual term of

3.73 years There were no cash proceeds from options exercised during the years ended December 31 2012 2011 or 2010

Restricted Share Units

Activity for restricted share units during 2012 2011 and 2010 is summarized below Grant date fair values are based on

the market value of ProAssurance common share on the date of grant

Weighted Weighted

Average Average
Grant Date Grant Date

Fair Value Fair Value

2012 2011

Weighted

Average
Exercise

Price

2010

Weighted

Average
Exercise

Price

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price

2012 2011 2010

Lnits nits

Beginning non-vested balance 167236 25.52 120478 23.88 60937 22.56

Granted 51864 42.22 52.256 29.27 59.964 25.21

Foifeited 2823J 35.23 5075 25.38 423 22.56

Vested and released 59065 22.61 423 22.56

Ending non-vested balance 157212 31.94 167236 25.52 120478 23.88

Units

Weighted

Average

Grant Date

Fair Value

The aggregate grant date fair value of restricted share units totaled $2.2 million $1.5 million and $1.5 million in 2012

2011 and 2010 respectively
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12 Share-Based Payments continued

Performance Share Units

Performance share units vest only if minimum performance objectives are met and the number of units earned varies

from 75% to 125% of base award depending upon the degree to which stated performance objectives are achieved

Performance share unit activity for 2012 2011 and 2010 is summarized below The table reflects the base award units and does

not include potential increases or decreases that may ultimately be paid based on the actual achievement of performance

objectives Grant date fair values are based on the market value of ProAssurance common share on the date of grant

2012 2011 2010

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date

Base Units Fair Value Base Units Fair Value Base Units Fair Value

Beginning non-vested balance 522599 26.36 49366 24.56 448944 24.20

Granted 212205 42.22 196186 30.30 201780 25.21

Forfeited 20492 31.44 15804 26.28 5498 25.42

Vested 161895 23.13 151444 25.61 151565 24.31

Ending non-vested balance 552417 33.21 522599 26.36 493661 24.56

Common shares issued due to

vesting of awards 114884 112822 115130

The aggregate grant date fair value of performance share units base level granted in 2012 2011 and 2010 totaled $9.0

million $5.9 million and $5.1 million respectively The aggregate intrinsic value of vested performance share units paid to

employees in 2012 2011 and 2010 including units paid in cash to cover tax withholdings totaled $7.2 million $5.3 million

and $4.9 million respectively The vested units were issued at the maximum level 125% based on performance levels

achieved

Purchase Match Units

On December 2010 the Board on the recommendation of the Compensation Committee terminated the Amended and

Restated ProAssurance Corporation Stock Ownership Plan and adopted the ProAssurance Corporation 2011 Employee Stock

Ownership Plan the 2011 Plan The 2011 Plan provides purchase match unit for each share purchased with contributions by

eligible plan participants limited to $5000 annually per participant

Purchase match unit activity during 2012 and 2011 is summarized below Grant date fair values are based on the market

value of ProAssurance common share on the date of grant

2012 2011

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Grant Date Grant Date

Units Fair Value Units Fair Value

Granted 23799 42.59 19016 36.20

Forfeited 1610 37.12 116 36.20

Vested and released 104 36.20

Ending non-vested balance 40985 39.85 18900 36.20

The aggregate grant date fair value of purchase match units totaled $1.0 million and $0.7 million in 2012 and 2011

respectively

13 Variable Interest Entities

ProAssurance holds passive interests in number of entities that are considered to be Variable Interest Entities VIEs

under GAAP guidance ProAssurances VIE interests include interests in LPs/LLCs formed for the purpose
of achieving

diversified equity and debt returns and limited liability interest in development stage business operation ProAssurance

VIE interests carried as part of Other Investments totaled $25.1 million at December 31 2012 and $32.1 million at

December 31 2011 ProAssurance VIE interests carried as part of Investment in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries totaled $33.7

million at December 31 2012 and $24.5 million at December 31 2011
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13 Variable Interest Entities continued

ProAssurance has not consolidated these VIEs because it has either very limited or no power to control the activities that

most significantly affect the economic performance of these entities and is not the primary beneficiary of any of the entities

ProAssurances involvement with each entity is limited to its direct ownership interest in the entity ProAssurance has no

arrangements or agreements of significance with any of the entities to provide other financial support to or on behalf of the

entity At December 31 2012 ProAssurances maximum loss exposure relative to these investments was limited to the carrying

value of ProAssurances investment in the VIE

14 Earnings Per Share

Diluted weighted average shares is calculated as basic weighted average shares plus the effect calculated using the

treasury stock method of assuming that dilutive stock options have been exercised and that performance and restricted share

units have vested

Stock options are not dilutive when the option exercise price exceeds the average price of common share during the

period or when the result from assuming an option is exercised is net decrease to outstanding shares All outstanding options

were dilutive for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 During the year ended December 31 2010 the average number

of options not considered to be dilutive approximated 123000

15 Benefit Plans

ProAssurance maintains defined contribution savings and retirement plan the ProAssurance Savings Plan that is

intended to provide retirement income to eligible employees The plan provides for employer contributions to the plan of

between 5% and 10% of salary for qualified employees During 2011 and 2010 ProAssurance also maintained several similar

plans of acquired entities prior to the plans being merged into the ProAssurance Savings Plan ProAssurance incurred
expense

related to the savings and retirement plans of $5.1 million $4.3 million and $4.4 million during the years ended December 31

2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

ProAssurance also maintains non-qualified deferred compensation plan the ProAssurance Plan that allows

participating management employees to defer portion of their current salary ProAssurance incurred expense related to the

ProAssurance Plan of $0.2 million during each of the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 ProAssurance deferred

compensation liabilities totaled $11.1 million at December 31 2012 and $11.5 million at December 31 2011 The liabilities

included amounts due under the ProAssurance Plan amounts due under individual agreements with current or former

employees and amounts due under currently inactive non-qualified plan

16 Statutory Accounting and Dividend Restrictions

ProAssurances insurance subsidiaries are required to file statutory financial statements with state insurance regulatory

authorities prepared based upon statutory accounting practices prescribed or permitted by regulatory authorities Differences

between net income prepared in accordance with GAAP and statutory net income are principally due to policy acquisition

and certain software and equipment costs which are deferred under GAAP but expensed for statutory purposes and certain

deferred income taxes which are recognized under GAAP but are not recognized for statutory purposes

The NAIC specifies risk-based capital requirements for property and casualty insurance providers At December 31 2012

statutory capital for each of ProAssurances insurance subsidiaries was sufficient to satisfy regulatory requirements Net

earnings and surplus of ProAssurances insurance subsidiaries on statutory basis are shown in the following table The table

below includes the statutory earnings ofAPS for the statutory annual period of the year of acquisition and thereafter see Note

Consolidated net income on GAAP basis includes the earnings ofAPS only for the periods following acquisition

November 2010 The below table does not include Medmarc as the acquisition occurred on January 2013 see Note 18

In millions

Statutory Net Earnings Statutory Surplus

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011

$312 $291 $261 $1499 $1453

ProAssurance insurance subsidiaries as of December 31 2012 in aggregate are permitted to pay dividends of

approximately $309 million during 2013 without prior approval However the payment of any dividend requires prior notice to

the insurance regulator in the state of domicile and the regulator may prevent the dividend if in its judgment payment of the

dividend would have an adverse effect on the surplus of the insurance subsidiary
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17 Quarterly Results of Operations unaudited

The following is summary of unaudited quarterly results of operations for 2012 and 2011

2012

dn thousands except per share data 1st 2nd 3rd 4th

Net premiums earned 136659 131266 127125 155615

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses

Current year 117656 108134 106621 119539

Prior year 47457 60050 50000 114531

Net income 55645 58453 60106 101266

Basic earnings per share 0.91 0.95 0.98 1.65

Diluted earnings per share 0.90 0.95 0.97 1.64

2011

in thousands except per share data 2nd 3rd 4th

Net premiums earned 132077 117063 134627 161649

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses

Currentyear 110407 114519 115276 147950

Prioryear 39984 50.166 52.100 183614

Net income 47693 55096 43705 140602

Basic earnings per share 0.78 0.90 0.72 2.30

Diluted earnings per share 0.77 0.89 0.71 2.28

For all periods presented per share amounts reflect the effect of the two-for-one stock split that was effected December 27

2012 in the form of stock dividend

Quarterly and year-to-date computations of per share amounts are made independently therefore the sum of per share

amounts for the quarters may not equal per share amounts for the respective year.to-date periods

18 Subsequent Events

As discussed in Note on January 2013 ProAssurance completed the acquisition of Medmarc through sponsored

demutualization Funds required for the purchase were transferred to third party conversion agent on December 27 2012 and

distributed to eligible Medmarc members on January 2013
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Amount Which is

Recorded Presented

Cost Fair in the

Type of Investment Basis Value Balance Sheet

In thou cands

Fixed Maturities

Bonds

U.S Government or government agencies and authorities 243752 262804 262804

States municipalities and political subdivisions 1134744 1219979 1219979

Foreign Governments 5172 5546 5546

Public utilities 94751 101664 101664

All other corporate bonds 1275707 1.363064 1363064

Certificates of deposit 250 250 250

Mortgage-backed securities 469956 494692 494692

Total Fixed Maturities 3224332 3447999 3.447999

Equity Securities available-for-sale

Common Stocks

Banks trusts and insurance companies

Total Equity Securities available-for-sale

Equity Securities trading

Common Stocks

Public utilities 9120 9497 9497

Banks trusts and insurance companies 65629 70900 70900

Industrial miscellaneous and all other 113142 122221 122221

Total Equity Securities trading 187891 202618 202618

Other long-term investments 204548 224292 204548

Short-term investments 71737 71737 71737

Total Investments 3688508 3946646 3926902
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Condensed Balance Sheets

In thousands 2012 2011

Assets

Investment in subsidiaries at equity 2092445 1896148

Fixed maturities available for sale at fair value 249318 163268

Equity securities trading at fair value 10487 10705

Short-tenn investments 4366 62976

Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries 728

Cash and cash equivalents 29397 47938

Due from subsidiaries 23708 60177

Other assets 7747 10391

Total Assets 2417468 2252331

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Liabilities

Other liabilities 21888 64886

Long-term debt 125000 22992

Total Liabilities 146888 87878

Shareholders Equity

Common stock 619 346

Other shareholders equity including unrealized gains losses on securities of

subsidiaries 2269961 2164107

Total Shareholders Equity 2270580 2164453

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity 2417468 2252331
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Condensed Statements of Income

\ear Ended December31

In tIuusandc 2012 2011 20

Net investment income 5281 1582 2271

Equity in earnings loss of unconsolidated subsidiaries 728 2.479 304

Net realized investment gains losses 3230 141 3474

Other income loss 54 101 53

7837 937 6102

Expenses

Interest expense 1534 1.833 1404

Other expenses 8870 7855 7.911

10404 9688 9315

income loss before income tax expense benefit and equity in net

income of consolidated subsidiaries 2567 10625 3.213

Income tax expense benefit 773 3209 747
Income loss before equity in net income of consolidated

subsidiaries 3340 7416 2466

Equity in net income of consolidated subsidiaries 278810 294512 234064

Net income 275470 287096 23 1.598
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flow

Year Ended December31

in thousands 2012 201 2010

Cash provided used by operating activities 3601 3982 191

Investing activities

Purchases of

Fixed maturities available for sale 1.71

Equity securities trading 364 990 5.960

Investments in distributions from unconsolidated subsidiaries net

Other partnership investments 5000

Proceeds from sale or maturities of

Fixed maturities available for sale 150192 19398 79941

Equity securities available for sale

Equity securities trading 616 6887 29458

Net decrease increase in short-term investments 58657 28708 10.251

Dividends from subsidiaries 59369 90020 232800

Contribution of capital to subsidiaries 184330 12500 10.000

Cash paid for acquisitions net of cash received 233022

Other 3070 1.699

84139 71037 98456

Financing activities

Proceeds from long-term debt 125000

Principal repayment of debt 32992

Repurchase of common stock 21005 106346

Subsidiary payments for common shares and share-based

compensation awarded to subsidiary employees 7066 6071 6568

Excess of tax benefit from share-based payment arrangements 7022 171 1.847

Dividends to shareholders 200118 7617

Other 12259 2561 1830

106281 23401 99761

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 18541 43.654 7.496

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period 47938 4284 11.780

Cash and cash equivalents end of period 29397 47938 4284

Significant non-cash transactions

Securities transferred at fair value as dividends from subsidiaries 241081 197224
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Basis of Presentation

The registrant-only fmancial statements should be read in conjunction with ProAssurance Corporations PRA Parent

consolidated financial statements At December 31 2012 and 2011 PRA Parents investment in subsidiaries is stated at the

initial consolidation value plus equity in the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries since the date of acquisition

Acquisitions

On November 30 2010 ProAssurance acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of American Physicians Service Group
Inc APS for approximately $237 million Additional information regarding the acquisition is provided in Note of the Notes

to Consolidated Financial Statements

Long-term Debt

Outstanding long-term debt as of December 31 2012 and 2011 consists of the following

In thousands

2012 2011

Trust Preferred Securities due 2034 unsecured interest at variable rate of LIBOR

plus 3.85% reset quarterly Note repaid in August 2012 at no gain or loss 22992

Revolving Credit Agreement expires in 2016 Borrowing at December 31 2012 carries

an interest rate of 0.81% until March 31 2013 when the rate will be redetermined

Secured by investments see Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 125000

125000 22992

Trust Preferred Securities outstanding as of December 31 2011 is shown in the above table net of $10 million in Trust

Preferred Securities held by ProAssurances wholly owned subsidiaries In 2012 all outstanding Trust Preferred Securities were

repaid including those held by ProAssurances wholly owned subsidiaries

See Note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included herein for detailed description of the terms of

the Revolving Credit Agreement

Related Party Transactions

PRA Parent received dividends from its subsidiaries of $300.5 million $287.2 million and $232.8 million during the

years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively PRA Parent contributed capital to its subsidiaries of $184.3

million $12.5 million and $10.0 million during the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Income Taxes

Under terms of PRA Parents tax sharing agreement with its subsidiaries income tax provisions for individual companies

are allocated on separate company basis
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In thousands 2012 2011 2010

Deferred policy acquisition costs 23179 26626 27281

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses 2054994 2247772 2414100

Unearned premiums 233861 251155 256050

Net premiums earned 550664 565415 519107

Net investment inóórne 136094 140956 1463 80

Losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred related to current

year net ofreinsurance 451951 488152 455105

Losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred related to prioryear

net of reinsurance 272038 325865 233990

Paid losses and loss adjustment expenses net of reinsurance 339142 298837 326247

Underwriting policy acquisition and operating expenses

Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs 57007 59591 58939

Other underwriting policy acquisition and operating e..nses 78624 76830 76041

Net premiums written 528298 558507 505407

Note all amounts above are derived entirely from consolidated property and casualty entities
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in thousands

Property and LiabIlity

Premiums earned

Premiums ceded

Premiums assumed

Net premiums earned

Percentage of amount assumed to net

558200 570891 548897

7652 5630 2E4S
116 154 58

550664 565415 519W7

0.02% 0.03% 0.01%

All of ProAssurances premiums are related to property and liability coverages

2012 2011 2010
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Exhibit

Number Description

Schedules to the following documents are omitted the contents of the schedules are generally described in

the documents and ProAssurance will upon request furnish to the Commission supplementally copy of

any omitted schedule

2.1 Plan of Conversion of PICA as filed with the Illinois Director of Insurance on November 13 2008

2.2 Stock Purchase Agreement executed by ProAssurance Corporation and PICA dated October 28 2008

2.3 Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among ProAssurance Corporation CA Bridge Corporation and

American Physicians Service Group Inc dated August 31 2010

3.1a Certificate of Incorporation of ProAssurance

3.1b Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of ProAssurance

3.2 Third Restatement of the Bylaws of ProAssurance

ProAssurance will file with the Commission upon request pursuant to the requirements of Item 601 b4
of Regulation S-K documents defming rights of holders of ProAssurance long-term indebtedness

10.1a Medical Assurance Inc Incentive Compensation Stock Plan formerly known as the Mutual Assurance

Inc 1995 Stock Award Plan

10.1b Amendment and Assumption Agreement by and between ProAssurance and Medical Assurance Inc

10.1c Amendment and Assumption Agreement by and between Mutual Assurance Inc and MAIC Holdings Inc

dated April 1996

10.2a ProAssurance Corporation 2004 Equity Incentive Plan

10.2b First amendment to 2004 Equity Incentive Plan

10.3 Form of Release and Severance Compensation Agreement dated as of January 2008 between

ProAssurance and each of the following named executive officers 10

Edward Rand Jr

Howard Friedman

Jeffiey Lisenby

Darryl Thomas

Frank ONeil
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10.4 Deferred Compensation Plan and Agreement effective as of January 2011 between ProAssurance and

Victor Adamo 11

10.5a Employment Agreement between ProAssurance and Stancil Starnes dated as of May 2007

10.5b Amendment to Employment Agreement with Stancil Starnes May 2007 effective as of January

2008 10
10.6 Consulting Agreement between ProAssurance and William Listwan

10.7 Form of Release and Severance Compensation Agreement dated as of April 2012 between ProAssurance

and Jerry Brant 18
10.8 Form of Release and Severance Compensation Agreement dated as of September 2011 between

ProAssurance and Ross Taubman

10.9 Form of Indemnification Agreement between ProAssurance and each of the following named executive

officers and directors of ProAssurance

Victor Adamo
Lucian Bloodworth

Robert Flowers

Howard Friedman

James Gorrie

Jeffrey Lisenby

William Listwan

John McMahon

Drayton Nabers

Frank ONeil
Ann Putallaz

Edward Rand Jr

Frank Spinosa

Stancil Starnes

Ross Taubman

Anthony Tersigni

Darryl Thomas

Adam Wilczek

Thomas Wilson Jr

10.10 ProAssurance Group Employee Benefit Plan which includes the Executive Supplemental Life Insurance

Program Article VIII 21
10.11 Amendment and Restatement of the Executive Non-Qualified Excess Plan and Trust effective January

2008 10
10.12 Director Deferred Compensation Plan as amended and restated December 2011 20
10.13 ProAssurance Corporation 2008 Equity Incentive Plan 15
10.14 First Amendment to the 2008 Equity Incentive Plan 20
10.15 ProAssurance Corporation 2008 Annual Incentive Compensation Plan
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10.16 ProAssurance Corporation 2011 Employee Stock Ownership Plan

10.17 Revolving Credit Agreement between ProAssurance and U.S Bank National Association Wells Fargo

Bank National Association Branch Banking and Trust Company First Tennessee Bank N.A and JP

Morgan Chase Bank N.A 17

10.18 Amendment No to Revolving Credit Agreement between ProAssurance and U.S Bank National

Association Wells Fargo Bank National Association Branch Banking and Trust Company First Tennessee

Bank N.A and JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A 19

10.19 Pledge and Security Agreement between ProAssurance and U.S I3ank National Association 17

21.1 Subsidiaries of ProAssurance Corporation

23.1 Consent of Ernst Young LLP

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer of ProAssurance as required under SEC Rule 3a- 14a

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer of ProAssurance as required under SEC Rule 13a-14a

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer of ProAssurance as required under SEC Rule 3a- 14b and

Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code as amended 18 U.S.C 1350

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer of ProAssurance as required under SEC Rule 3a- 14b and 18

U.S.C 1350

101 .INS XBRL Instance Document

101 .SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101 .CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101 .DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Defmition Linkbase Document

101 .LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document

101 .PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

Denotes management contract or compensatory plan contract or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this report
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Footnotes

Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurances Current Report on Form 8-K for event occurring November 13 2008 File

No 001-16533 and incorporated herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32

Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurances Current Report on Form 8-K for event occurring August 31 2010 File

No 001-16533 and incorporated herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32

Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurances Registration Statement on Form S-4 File No 333-49378 and incorporated

herein by reference pursuant to Rule 2b-32 of the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC
Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurances Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2001 File

No 001-16533 and incorporated herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32

Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurances Current Report on Form 8-K for the event occurring December 2010 File

No 001-16533 and incorporated herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32

Filed as an Exhibit to MAIC Holdings Registration Statement on Form S-4 File No 33-9 1508 and incorporated

herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 2b-32

Filed as an Exhibit to MAIC Holdings Proxy Statement for the 1996 Annual Meeting File No 0-19439 is

incorporated herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32

Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurances Definitive Proxy Statement File No 001-165333 on April 16 2004 and

incorporated herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32

Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurances Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2006 File

No 00 1-16533 and incorporated herein by this reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32

10 Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurances Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007 File

No 001-16533 and incorporated herein by this reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32

11 Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurances Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2010 File

No 00 1-16533 and incorporated herein by reference pursuant to Rule 12b-32

12 Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurances Current Report on Form 8-K for the event occurring May 12 2007 File

No 00 1-16533 and incorporated herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32

13 Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurances Current Report on Form 8-K for event occurring on September 13 2006 File

No 00 1-16533 and incorporated herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32

14 Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurances Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2009 File

No 001-16533 and incorporated herein by this reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32

15 Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurances Registration Statement on Form S-8 File No 333-156645 and incorporated

by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 2b-32

16 Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurances Definitive Proxy Statement File No 001-165333 on April 112008 and

incorporated herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 2b-32

17 Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurances Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2011 File

No 00 1-16533 and incorporated herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32

18 Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurances Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2012 File No
00 1-16533 and incorporated herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32

19 Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurances Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2012 File

No 00 1-16533 and incorporated herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32

20 Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurances Annual Report on Form 10K for the year ended December 31 2011 File No
00 1-16533 and incorporated herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule l2b-32

21 Filed as an exhibit to ProAssurances Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2004 File No
00 1-16533 and incorporated herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32
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CERTIFICATION

Stancil Starnes certify that

have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of ProAssurance Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact

necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading

with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods

presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15 and internal control over fmancial reporting as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed

under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is

made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such interaal control over fmancial reporting to be

designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of fmancial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report

based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that has materially

affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of registrants board of directors or persons performing

the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and report

financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other emp oyees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 19 2013

Is Stancil Starnes

Stancil Stames

ChiefExecutive Officer

Exhibit 31.1



CERTIFICATIONS

Edward Rand Jr certify that

have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of ProAssurance Corporation

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact

necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading

with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods

presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15 and internal control over fmancial reporting as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed

under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is

made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over fmancial reporting to be

designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report

based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that has materially

affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over fmancial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of registrants board of directors or persons performing

the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and report

financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 19 2013

/5/ Edward Rand Jr

Edward Rand Jr

ChiefFinancial and Accounting Officer

Exhibit 31.2



signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to ProAssurance Corporation and will be

retained by ProAssurance Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of ProAssurance Corporation the Company on Form 10-K for the
year ending

December 31 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report Stancil

Starnes Chief Executive Officer of the Company certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and result of

operations of the Company

/s/W Stancil Stames

Stancil Starnes

Chief Executive Officer

February 19 2013

Exhibit 32.1



signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to ProAssurance Corporation and will be

retained by ProAssurance Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of ProAssurance Corporation the Company on Form 10-K for the year ending

December 31 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report Edward

Rand Jr Chief Financial and Accounting Officer of the Company certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant

to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and result of

operations of the Company

Is Edward Rand Jr

Edward Rand Jr

Chief Financial and Accounting Officer

February 19 2013

Exhibit 32.2



Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In addition to Net Income we use Operating Income which is Non-GAAP financial measure that is

widely used in our industry to evaluate the performance of underwriting operations Operating Income

excludes the after-tax net effects of confidential settlements Net Realized Investment Gains Losses Debt

Retirement Gain or Loss and Guaranty Fund Recoupments Assessmenls We believe Operating Income

when considered along with Net Income presents useful view of the performance of our insurance

operations

While we believe disclosure of certain Non-GAAP information is appropriate you should not consider

this information without also considering the information we present in accordance with GAAP which

includes the net effect of confidential settlements Net Realized Investment Gains Losses Debt Retirement

Gain or Loss and Guaranty Fund Recoupments Assessments during the periods presented below The

following table reconciles Net Income to Operating Income

Reconciliation of Income from Continuing Operations to Operating Income

in thousands except per share amounts

All share and per share results reflect the

effect of two-for-one stock split effective

December 27 2012

Net income

Items excluded in the calculation

of operating income

Gain loss on the extinguishment of debt

Net realized investment gains losses

Guaranty fund assessments recoupments

Effect of confidential settlements net

Pre-tax effect of exclusions

Tax effect at 35%

Operating income

Per diluted common share

Net income

Effect of exclusions

Operating income per diluted common share

Year Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

177725 222026 231598 287096 275470

4571 2839 2163

50913 12792 17342 5994 28863

1334 533 1336 66 345

7143 1694

45008 10486 18678 13203 28049

15753 3670 6537 4621 9817

206980 215210 219457 278514 257238

2.61 3.35 3.60 4.65 4.46

0.42 0.10 0.19 0.13 0.30

3.03 3.25 3.41 4.52 4.16

This page is not part of ProAssurances Annual Report on Form 10K and was not filed with the Securities

Exchange Commission
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INVESTOR INFORMATION

There were 61815749 shares of ProAssurance Corporation

common stock outstanding at March 15 2012 On that date

we had 3132 shareholders of record Our common stock

trades on The New York Stock Exchange under the symbol

PRA The price of our stock is available from
any

website that

provides stock quotes including the website of The New York

Stock Exchange www.nyse.com we also post
the price of our

stock on our website www.ProAssurance.com

YOUR SHARES

If you hold your
shares through brokerage account your

broker or customer service representative at that firm should

be able to answer questions about your holdings

If you hold your
shares in certificate form or have shares

held in direct registration DRS you are registered

holder Registered holders may contact our transfer agent

Computershare for address changes transfer of certificates and

replacement of share certificates that have been lost or stolen

You may reach Computershare in variety of ways

DIRECT DEPOSIT OF DIVIDENDS FOR

REGISTERED HOLDERS

We encourage registered holders to have dividends deposited

directly into designated account to ensure prompt secure

delivery of your
funds You may arrange for Direct Deposit

by updating your banking details with Computershare

www-us.computershare.com/investor/myprofile once you have

established online access to your account with Computershare

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE

WITH REGULATORY AND NEW YORK STOCK

EXCHANGE REQUIREMENTS

We invite you to visit the Investor Relations and Corporate

Governance sections of our website www.ProAssurance.com

There you will find important
information about our Company

including our Corporate Governance Principles and Code of

Ethics and Conduct which were developed and adopted by

our Board of Directors The Governance section of our website

www.proassurance.com/investorrelations/governance.aspx

also provides copies of the Board-adopted charters for our Audit

Compensation and Nominating/Corporate Governance

Committees and our Internal Audit Charter Our Corporate

Governance section also provides information such as stock

ownership guidelines committee composition and leadership

and director independence including categorical standards to

assist in determining independence

Our filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission

SEC are available in the Investor Relations section of our

website www.proassurance.com/investorrelations/sec_filings

aspx Our SEC filings are also available in the EDGAR

section of the SECs website www.sec.gov/edgar.shtml

Stancil Starnes our Chief Executive Officer submitted the

required Section 12a CEO Certification to The New York

Stock Exchange in timely manner on June 2012

Additionally we have been timely in the filing of CEO/CFO

certifications as required in Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act These certifications are published as exhibits in our

Form 10-K filed with the SEC on February 19 2013

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Investor Relations section of our website also contains

detailed financial information dividend payment history

SEC filings the latest news releases about the Company and

our latest presentation Inaterials We also maintain an archive of

presentation materials although you
should realize that archived

information by its very nature may no longer be accurate

OBTAINING INFORMATION DIRECTLY

FROM PROASSURANCE

Any of the documents mentioned above may be obtained from

our Communications and Investor Relations Department using

one of the contact methods below

E-MAIL

Investor@ProAssurance.com

U.S POSTAL SERVICE

ProAssurance Corporation

Investor Relations Communications

P.O Box 590009

Birmingham AL 35259-0009

PHONE OR FAX

Phone 205 877-4400 800 282-6242

Fax 205 802-4799

ANNUAL MEETING

The 2013 Annual Meeting is scheduled for 900 AM CDT

on Wednesday May 22 2013 at the headquarters of

ProAssurance Corporation 100 Brookwood Place

Birmingham Alabama 35209

ProAssurance Treated Fairly ProControl LawyerCare and

the Curl device are registered trademarks of ProAssurance

Corporation Certitudes is registered trademark of Ascension

Health and is used by permission All Rights Reserved

By Phone

lao 851.4218

or

201 6806578

By Internet

Information about
your

account including share transfer

direct deposit of dividends and your
dividend payment history

www-us.computershare.com/investor/

Immediate access to tao forms

www.us.compatershare.com/investor/quicktax

For technical assistance with the Cornputershare website

please phone 1800 942-5909

By Malt

Computershare Investor Services

P.O 10043006

Providence RI 02940-3006

oso Royall Street

Canton MA 02021



Treated
Fairly

100 Brookwood Place

Birmingham Alabama 35209

205 877-4400

800 282-6242

www ProAssurance.com





31

50 64

13

40

OSbQ

1Th000

bO











cond di insut io Nil to broil ns ib
rat Ic

th li okm to us to to in In ie in pI of ii bib

ill opt liiir din wri of
pro lu is liabdi fo he iii scien ii dusrry

in fino ni ii vi in vitiD iii biot choolox
Ni

ii ph ins al

ii ho it ih
y1

ih ox al Ox us ox hoxo old oit its xtxoo Ii lb

fo nd or of parallels of PtoAssui sOre rth th tr ngi ii of

hcii ta ii en ott whi na at and igiicd h1 ihe ti action viii hr

al our

Wr or 001100 or ii ahli
op dir ow ii laul ruIn

Lu ado we ii ii it in sort ar to col rs tha oii

vi uu SI or to rh iprration ii mr toi is to 01100 As or ot tlu ii

to ii ho wh ir Ion to or Lw ythin

lhrIi vethi tiiiyti hf tentlac iS mi cis turtal ir ot on ay
rind in ii ds ito de nd kno tha this ahilit is liii OOij sart

icr It ira lo to hilt riot to vi hot pioi

In stotid tha tori inpi fo
pu

our hilit to ret in 9000 of our ply ito

nit ix ii 01 olu to se tb Ut rireds fin OOt point oud

di sr to nl rhi
op ins irt ii oAssu cc

it Ii
iplin

Ii to ondctwtiui usd puvo ii it nrci 1001 in pot at

us to Al sr of iv ipu los mpr mi ion fom Yr

rr arwal is Ii rr utd wit in nrw hi or mm in talc ing in or it horn is

iii heist si th let mined ri tnt on th bonnet tt imo
lay iirc sO

this iii di In ii stint envir000 tilt wI ich at opristing md il ii iporian

of lid rind wi itixi ci tool cxiii ai 001 10 to Is wh 00114 00 it foi

Un qoalI pint tion nd to iho wI lOve 110 dr Bo Ii fir in xui

aihn is tin pc formi

Wi oefully to the rib oi have itrusi to usc will oot row thc tI hn

ju
Is ak of ti isi is ii it in to sb lii 10 OW ov is tx in

mu shilit fd in ra in hut not the pros of on futui

si





We have an nvubk ci avIs tecotd of sits en and in my iew our lutuic is as bright as our

past As healthcare in Ameiia aggregates into laigei mote geographically diversc

enoti ws are uniquely positioned to resp sod With tats exvcptioii oui smaller phvsiciui

los used competitors lack expcitsiice nr ti sg Is ispirals and facilities Many lack the ahilit5

to teach across stats lines to covet
grt wing risks and they do not possess the halaris

shs ci srtengi Iii hat will allo hun tc ompets fot tomoi rows dpnil is tnt risks

tigci somperitots ot the oihci It tnd cli not have the pbs struts locus ot experience to

undet stand tli it ic al ills tenses that can us ste divide when faci litis and ph sicians

ate iostiresl togethei bus this divid ieates real harrier foi most but it cieates real

opportunioes for ioAsssirancs ProAs sura nce

is cxpeocnce tch and financial fIt
xtFility

is what tllowed us to partnsr with \st ensiOn Wc named to the
Health to rc iu Cu iiuds prugiaoi now is ith $15 million ofprcmium in tots in

gist two atid Ifs ars Asecr sion Heal li is one of the nations largest most uioavitivs for the

healrhcaie sreo and the success tsl out isk sharus parineish is but one example xth straight yearol oor ability to susscssl oIly adapt to the new realities of heilthearc in Amermi am

sooviots ci ws will have many osor ich pportunities due to our proven ihilities in

osuring physic tans lacilii its and hospii

In suminaty svs ie building btidge to se future kveraging out dxpetience to cnhtncs

thy coverage we offer to on siicablc base of tiaditional insurecls svhtle using out do ades

td ci icnce and ur capital to is spn id to rhc giowiug needs repieseoted by cver aigci

iooie sophist jested into teds ho scsk ii ii sntinec psi tttet nor Just an instnartec prswtdct

We stand early to he that part ncr sot lot is ii oader les.pcr an Strongc

4iI4I
Stamtcil Startse

halt iitait vii trJ tttzvr 0/Jo ci





Bo jj it rctt

Wea PeA wet oildg tw mu 2012 JIaslBttus He endfaon cybeur fg
as ofnk n-naI tal sea bit ouaB Øof ciss oat 1n
taint atspred so on aadoursrdusrywcns bsai Wa rnq far tan

OkanJccuf Tmzyu at vi .g true at uc







FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

unaudited 2012 2011

OPERATING DATA iN MILLiONS

Revenues 5286 4924

Operating prot 383 326

Net income loss 63

DILUTED EARNINGS LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

Earnings loss from continuing operations .01 .01

Diluted earnings loss .08 .02

Diluted weighted average
shares outstanding in millions 719.6 693.0

BALANCE SHEET DATA 1NM1LLiONS

Total assets $12994 $1 3090

Total debt 5411 5753

Total equity 6859 671

OTHER DATA

Adjusted EBlTDA in millions 1190

NAREIT funds from
operations per diluted share 1.04 .89

Adjusted funds from operations per diluted share 1.10 .92

Stock price on December 31st 15.67 14.77

COMPARABLE HOTEL DATA121

Numberofproperties 103 103

Number of rooms 54804 54804

Average room rate $191.15 $184.52

Occupancy percentage 74.5% 72.5%

RevPAR $142.48 $133.87

NAREIT Funds From
Operations FF0 and

Adjusted
FF0

per
diluted share and Adjusted Earnings before Interest Expense Income Taxes Depreciation

Amortization and other Items Adjusted EBITDA are not generally accepted accounting principles GAAP financial measures within the meaning of the rules

of the Securities Exchange Commission These measures have been reconciled to comparable GAAP measures See
page

16 of this
report

We define our comparable hotels as properties that are owned or leased by us and the
operations

of which are included in our consolidated results whether as

continuing operations or discontinued
operations

for the
entirety

of the
reporting periods being compared and that have not sustained substantial

property

damage or business interruption or undergone large-scale capital projects during the
reporting periods being compared

Room revenue
per

available room RevPAR
represents

the combination of
average daily room rate charged and the

average daily occupancy achieved and is

commonly used indicator of hotel performance RevPAR does not include food and beverage or other ancillary revenues generated by
the property

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is included in our mailing to stockholders and

together with this 2012 Annual Report forms our annual report to stockholders within the
meaning

of SEC rules

ON THE COVER OPENED JUST IN TIME FOR THE CENTENNIAL OF NEW YORKS GRAND CENTRAL TERMINAL THE ALL-NEW

WESTIN NEW YORK GRAND CENTRAL MAKES IT EASYTO EXPERIENCEALL MANHATTAN HASTO OFFER FROM

TIMES SQUARE TO THE ROCKEFELLER CENTER
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HOST HOTELS RESORTS IS THE PREMIER HOSPITALITY REAL ESTATE COMPANY WITH INVESTMENTS 1N

HIGH QUALITY ASSETS IN KEY MARKETS AND PRIME LOCATIONS AROUND THE GLOBE WITH SIGNIFICANT

BARRIeRS TO ENTRY OUR LONGTERM GOAL IS TO MAXIMIZE STOCKHOLDER VALUE THROUGH DISCIPLINED

AND OPPORTUNISTIC CAPITAL ALLOCATION AND SOUND FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT WE REMAIN FOCUSED

IN OUR SEARCH FOR TOPTIER LODGING PROPERTIES OPERATED BY WORLD CLASS OPERATORS WI1H WELL

ESTABL SHED BRANDS THAT WILL PROVIDEATTRACTIVE RETURNS ON OUR INVEStMENT WE BELIEVE THAT EXECU

lION OF THIS STRATEGIC VISION OVER THE PAST TEN YEARS HAS RESULTED IN AN UNMATCHED PORTFOLIO

WITH EXPANDED MARKET PRESENCE IN DESTINATION CITIES WHERE THE POTENTIAL FOR GROWTH IS STRONG

OPL

pi
one of the let 5est economic

ike the world and is key componet

our ci iivei siw etion We rem

fo sd cii dent
yi ig

and
arpuir ng pual ty

is rye toy recognizable global centers

oil mr ice ci tourism
gateway

cities

it itti th do riestic and international

rvele Sine 2006 together with our

it re paitners we iave invested over

$2 bill on uppor upscale nd luxury

prupe 6hT ountries

atoliST RFGIS



HOS1 HOTELS RESORTS HAD AN OUTSTANDING YEAR IN 201 OUR

FOCUSED AND DISC PLINED EXT CUIION OF LONC TERM SIRATEGIC INI

TIAIIVES HAS FURTHER SOLIDIFIED OUR POSITION AS IF NATION

LARGEST LODGING REAL ESTATE INVESTMLNT TRUSt WE HAVE CON IINUT LI

TO AGGRE SSVE1Y MAN GE OUR EXIST NG PORTEC 110 AND PRACTICE

SYSTEMAI IC AND DI CIPI INEDAPPROACH TO CAPITA ALLOCATION WHILE

EXPANDING OUR LOBAL LAIFO IMAC ROSS TARGE MARKE IN EUROPE

LA1IN AMER CAANDIHE ASIA AClFIC REC IONS OUR POR1I-OLIO BOASTS

BROAD ARRAY 01 PREMIUM BRANDS AND KEY MARKET LOCA IONS

CAREFULLY DIRE lID BY OUT EXPERIENCED MANAGEMI NT TEAM 10

DRIVE OPT ATING PERFORMANCE

In 2012 we ovc can signrfTcant
hr adwir ds ru ed by hnar eial an

oohu diflic ulties in Err Un ed Stares am 055 th gooe to ech eve

our third ea row inc eased revenues Ou results were driv

by sti ong group and trvn out demand as well as rate growth
and solid

-oct cor trols resi lOng substantially imp eyed
opera irig pe

rforrn ncr home of the g1 ghts for 2012 ir elude

Iota1 revenue ire se 4% reflec
ting

5v increase in revonue at oui cornp ir rUe hotel as well as mere

me it il vene es from 11

prop
tie acpuired in 201 and 2011 lie increase in

eornpara
$e hotel revenues as

drive by 162 inc re as in average daily ates and owt in occupancy resulting in 4% ir crease in Re PAR

The key drive cf ow business this
yeai is rn ire th 4% rricrerse in group room nights wI ich lowed

open tore to aggressively ni rease roor rate espec rally ir oui transme it segments

Adjusted
Eunds frc

Operatio is inc rsed by 217 to 10
per

diluted shar wrile
Adjusted

BITDA grew

li/v to 190 billion Net incerTie Gm tl
year is $63 million while diluted

arrrrngs
comrnomm sha was

$08 for hc year

We cur
ed he Grand Hyatt Wash

ngton
in Jr

ly
for $400 rillior great asset witfi superb

ocation in

strong market with long term growth potential Globally we continued to invest thr
ou1

our joint ver turcs

cuiring properties
valued at nearly $700 emllion in ince Germ

wry
Ihe Nether Ian is and Australia

We completed tie sal of four
proper

tm ir 2012 md early 2013 for
pre

ceed if $445 million
taking advantage

of ira ket conditions to ebalancc investments in our portfolio arid
pie

vide caprt mIte fund
aeguismtions

and for

the paynmnt of debt

We invested $212 million ii
redeveloprrrent

and return err investment
ca1

mtal projects that are desig
red to

increase the profitebility of our eropertim
These

projects
include thy recent re branded Westin New York

and entral whose conversion includ the
corriplete renovatmo of 714 guetr rems thc ballroom and meet

mg ace frtrres center lobby and public ireas well as the
develepmer

of new bar and est urant

rc /111

cfr aid



We entered into lease agreement with Vornado Realty
Trust to create superior highend retail space as well

as captivating sixstory block front LED signage at the New York Marriott Marquis that will
dramatically

improve its
presence

in Times Square The new lease is expected to generate
substantial economic benehts and

has already increased rental income by more than $6 million annually

We entered into
ajoint

venture agreement with Hyatt Residential Group to develop sell and
operate

131unit

vacation ownership project on vacant land we owned adjacent to our Hyatt Regency Maui Resort Spa on

Kaanapali
Beach In addition to proOt from the sale of units we expect to bene6t from synergies created with

the resort

We achieved an investment grade rating
for our senior debt as result of our unwavenng pursuit

of
strong

balance sheet We achieved this milestone by lowering our debtto-EBITDA ratio reducing our
average

interest

rate and lengthening our
average

debt maturities

We declared
nearly $220 million in dividends or $30 per share in 2012 more than doubling the prior

year amount

our accomplishments demonstrate focused and disciplined approach to runnmg our business that has made

us recognized
leader in the lodging industry We havejudiciously accessed capital throughout the lodging cycle

taking advantage
of market conditions to invest in our portfolio to enhance customer satisfaction and increase

probtability while signiAcantly improving the competitive position
of our properties to be prepared for the current

upturn
in market conditions Over the

past
ten

years
we have greatly

increased our brand diversity while reallo

cating our investments into gateway cities and key international markets where we believe industry fundamentals

are strong
and the potential for growth is highest

We
anticipate

that hotel demand will continue to grow in 2013

as the world economy improves leading to increasing demand that will continue to exceed available supply in the

near term driving
RevPAR increases and bottom line results

We believe that the longterm outlook and
strong underlying industry fundamentals will continue to gain

momentum throughout 2013 and 2014 providing an improving marketplace
for

welLpositioned companies like

Host to thrive With ownership interests in over 140 hotels across the U.S Europe Latin America and Asia-Paci6c

that are operated by
worldclass

operators
with well recognized brands we have established platform for long-

term success We are convinced that our combination of quality assets Onancial strength and management

expertise creates an attractive
opportunity

for our company and investors We
appreciate your support

and will

continue to strive for increased stockholder value

//J/I/
EDWARD WAETER WCHAP MARRKTT

President and Chief Execative
Officer

Chairman of the Board

March 23 2013

HOST HOTELS Rt.SORTS 2012



As Host
aligns its strategy tc the growng demands of todays marketplacc

we cannot ignore
the bhstenr

speed
of

glob
dization and its impact or th

lodging ndustry
both in thr US and abroad inc 2009 nbound travel to

the US has rn reused approximately 25% trend we
expect

to continue as

the
growing prosp rity of middle class populatio is in srkcts uch is hin

India and Braz fuel irs sourcE global demand Our
target

arkets cater

to the
grc wing

numhei of intern itional travelers have
strong

lo al demand

generators
that

appeal to multiple customer segments and have
high

burners

to entry
In the US these markcts include Nrw York Washmgton

Boston Miami Chirapo Angeles
San in isco Sa

Diego
and Seattle

While
attaining our optimal portfoho

mix is

long tm ri god dun
ig

0l2

we continued to strengthen our eser cc in gateway Uf mi ets with the

acquisition
of the 888 room rand

Iyatt
Wad

ington

With our investment in Lui ope wev tocusec on destruct ons that attract

both domestic and foreig travele we believe international demand helps

to rctain and incrsase asset value ovcr time Ourfocs iso markets like Fondon

Paris Munich ird Berlin where we bclieve
opportur

ities exst to quire quality

assets at reasonable
pi

emiur or cost of capital and significant dis ounts

to replacement costs During 2012 the joint venture quired total of six

properties including tH 75/ioom Paris Mirnott Rye Gauche Hr el

Conference Center the 402 room Rcnaissarrc Amsterdam and ou Si st

properry in Germany the 192 room to Meridien srand etci in Nurembcrg

We also believe that Lat America has umber of
trorig

ecoriomi

sucF as Brazil md Chile with favo able long ter ii growth prospects
Gui

primary target
market in the

region is Brazil is belic ye that the icr ed

investr rent in infrastructurs
coupled

with internaticn demand
gc

ns rated

by tic upcom ng
2014 Wurld Cup arid 2016 Olympics provide stiong

four dation for contir ued growth
1n 2012 we as purred mud in Rio Ja cue

arid
began development of two Acor

marriged propcrties trtaling 405

rooi hich ire vell located to Lkc adatagc of th

ui joint venture in thc Asia Prcifrm
region

invested approximately $80

million in 2012 tc
acquire

renovate and hi crid ou first ui Pourts by

She atori in Ps rth Australia he
joint venture par ne ship in Ind ako

celebrated the
openir

of Novotel and ibis hotcI
mngaluru in early

2012

increasing the number of ou consolidated orjoirit ye iture
pro

erties
oper

ated by the ench sed Accor ir this rcgion nin We will conti rue to

expl ie more opportunities in markets such as Au trulia arid Singapore

ntrtin2
huth

cqi inn8 upper ups
clu hotels rid the dev

lnpment

oi onvc rsion of midsca and
mpsc

rIo hotels
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LUXURIOUS HOTEL IN ONE OF EUROPE MOST DYNAMIC GITIES THE HOTEL ARTS

BAICELONA QWNW BY OUR EUROPEAN JOINT VENtURE OPFRS TAVELRS

ACCESS TO SUN DRENCHED MEDITERRANEAN EACHES AND THE RICH

ARCHITECTURAL HERITAGE AND ARTISTIC APPEAL OI THIS CLASSIC SPANISH CIrY





rvilg accuired quality assets in prime locations we constantly investigate

new wenues to drive revenuo growth and create long term stockholder

value During 2012 we invested $144 million in redevelopment and return

on investment
projects

which are designed to increase cash flow and improve

profitability by capitalizing on changing market condil ions ar the favorable

locations of our properties
We believe these

prolects
have potential to drive

outstanding performance at our properties
For example in 2012 For three

ecently ompleted edevelopment projec ts the Atlanta Marriott Perimeter

enter Chicago Marriott OHare and the Sheraton Indianapolis Hotel at

Keystone Crossing the hotels have experienced an average
RevPAR growth

over 40% when compared to the pre
construction periods

During 2012 we also invested $128 inillon in capital projects
at our recently

cquued propei ties These
projects aie part

of capital and opeiational

ImproverTlent plan
that we

prepaie
F0 all

iiewly acquiied piopertieT to dove

piofitability and enhancc the
guest experience These ojccts include the

$88 million conversion ofthe Westin New York Grand Central formerly the

New York Helmsley Hotel the renovation of 2/0 rooms at the New

York Union Scjuare and on
going

oom renovations at the 888 room Grand

Hyatt Washington and the 628 room Manchester Grand Hyatt San Diego

We entered into two significant
value enhancement

projects in 2012 in

rde to maximize the highest and best use of all
aspects

of our hotels

turi 2012 we leased the etail and signg cmponnt of the Nw Ycirk

Marriott Marquis to Vornado Realty Trust where Vornado plans to spend

much as $140 million to redevelop and expand the cx sting space In

addition to the significantly higher rental income this project promises

dramatic improvement of the propertys presence
on limes Square

Our

sccond project
in

joint venture with Hyatt is the development of 131

unit vacation ownership project on vacant parcel of land adjacent to the

Hyatt Regency Maui Resort Spa We
expect to recognize profits not only

from the sale of units but also
through

resort fees and other
synergies

ncluding increased occupancy at our hotel

As pait
of our overall

portfolio strategy we continually look to recycle

capital out oF assets that do not fit our core portfolio These are generally

properties
where we believe we can capitalize on attractive icing and apply

the proceeds to other business objectives the potential
for evenue growth

is slower or where the
long term capital needs are higher The recent

opportunistic
sale of the Atlanta Marriott

Marc1uis
contributed to our goal

of nbalancing our strategic mix as it reduced our overall market
presence

in Atlanta to approximately
3% of revenues

121





ACQthRED IN 2012THE RAND HYATT WASHlNflON Is ENTRALLV LOCATED 1NE

NATIONS CAPrrAAND WiTh OVER 4E000 $QUAR FEET OP MEETING SMCE AND

EASVACCE$$TO 1flSrORC MoNuMENtMuSgUMs ANQThECONVENTON CENTER

OEAL FO BUSNE$S AND tESJRE TRAVELERS AUK
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cent nuesto be well below histoncal ave
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Wo heheve that future res
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pr
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Our goal is to maintain strong balance sheet with low levei
age ratio and

halaned debt maturities in order to mmimize our cost of capital and to

maximize financial flexibility
in order to take

advantage
of opportunities

throughout the lodgmg cycle
Dui

ing 2012 we issued $1 billion of debt

including $450 million of senior notes at the lowest interest rate in company

history
and $500 million term loan through our credit facility wnich

based on our leverage
ratio at December 31 2012 had an interest rate of

just
2.0% We used the

proceeds
from these debt issuances along with

available cash to repay approximately $1 billion of debt decreasing our

weighted average
interest rate by 90 basis points to 5.4% and lengthening

weighted average
debt

maturity by years to 5.1
years

As operations
have improved we have

strategically
focused on raising

and deploying capital to
improve

our financial credit statistics while at the

di tine raking substantial investments in our portfolio through acquisi

tions and capital projects
Since beginning our at the market

offering

programs in 2009 we have raised over $1.3 billion of equity
which has been

deployed to fund the majority of our acquisitions and other capital spending

and helped to lower our leverage ratio by over 100 basis
points

As result

of this careful and considered allocation of
capital in 2013 we achieved

anot her strategic goal an investment grade rating on our senior notes from

both Moodys Investors Service and Standard Poors
Ratings

Services

investment grade rating
has the

potential to lower the cost of borrowing

ur den our ci edit facility and will enable us to have better access to capital

markets throughout the lodging cycle

We maintain debt profile structure that has balanced rnatui ity
schedule

and benefits from access to multiple types
of financing as over 80% of our

debt consists of senior unsecured notes exchangeable debentures and bor

rowings
under our credit

facility
We have strategically educed the number

of properties
with secured debt and as of December 31 2012 only 14 of

our consolidated hotels were encumbered
by moitgages The strength of

oui balan sheet with sumcient
liquidity

and access to the capital markets

allows us to take
advantage

of investment opportunities so we can riaintain

our focus on providing
shareholder value
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SELECTED FINANCJAL DATA

RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME LOSSAVAILABLE TO COMMON STOCKHOLDERS TO NAREITAND ADJUSTED FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS

PER DILUTED SHAREa

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

UNAUDITED IN MILLIONS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2012 2011

NET INCOME LOSS 63 16
Less Net income loss attributable to non-controlling interests

NET INCOME LOSS AVAI LABLE TO COMMON STOCKHOLDERS 61 15
Adjustments

Gain on
dispositions

net of taxes 48
Gain on property insurance settlement

Amortization of deferred
gains

and other property transactions net of taxes

Depreciation and amortization 691 645

Non-cash impairment charges 60

Partnership adjustments 12

FF0 of non-controlling interests of Host LP

NAREIT funds from operations 759 626

Adjustments to NAREIT FF0
Losses on the extinguishment of debt 35 10

Acquisition costs 10

Litigation
losses

Loss attributable to non-controlling interests

Adjusted FF0 803 649

Adjustments for dilutive securities

Assuming conversion of Exchangeable Senior Debentures 31 30

Assuming deduction of interest redeemed/exchanged 2004

Exchangeable Senior Debentures

Diluted NAREIT FFOa 790 658

Diluted Adjusted FFOa 834 681

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding EPS 719.6 693.0

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding NAREIT FF0 and Adjusted FF0 760.0 739.5

NAREIT FF0 PER DILUTED SHARE 1.04 .89

ADJUSTED FF0 PER DILUTED SHAREa 1.10 .92

RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME LOSS TO EBITDA AND ADJUSTED EBITDA

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

UNAUDITED IN MILLIONS 2012 2011

NET INCOME LOSS 63 16
Interest expense 373 371

Depreciation and amortization 691 638

Incometaxes 31

Discontinued operations

EBITDA 1161 1001

Gain on dispositions 48
Acquisition costs

Gain on property insurance settlement

Non-cash impairment charges 60

Amortization of deferred gains

Equity investment adjustments

Equity in earnings of af1liates

Pro rata Adjusted EBITDA of equity investments 34 29

Consolidated partnership adjustments

Pro rata Adjusted EBITDA attributable to non-controlling partners

in consolidated
partnerships 16 14

ADJUSTED EBITDAa $1190 $1018

For further discussion of why we believe NAREIT FF0 and Adjusted FF0
per

diluted share and Adjusted EBITDA are useful supplemental measures of our performance

and the limitations on their use see our Annual
Report on Form 10-K included in our mailing to stockholders

NAREIT FF0 and
Adjusted

FF0
per

diluted share are adjusted
for the effects of dilutive securities Dilutive securities may include shares granted under compre

hensive stock plans preferred OP Units held by non-controlling partners exchangeable
debt securities and other

non-controlling
interests that have the

option

to convert their limited partnership interest to common OP Units No effect is shown for securities if they are anti-dilutive

16 HOST HOTELS RESORTS 2012
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2nd Quarter 8.30 15.60 0.03
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